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ASSEMBLY, No. 2850 

STATE OF NEW JERSEY 
INTRODUCED JUNE 16, 1986 

By Assemblymen LITTELL, FOY, Felice, Assemblywoman Randall, 
Assemblymen Haytaian, Arango, Genova, Miller, Zecker, Kline, 
Dario, Franks, Chinnici, Muziani, Raffertv, Zimmer, Azzolina and 
Assemblywoman Smith 

AN AcT authorizing the Department of Labor to establish uniform 
standards for the use of drug abuse tests in the workplace and 
supplementing Title 34 of the Revised Statutes. 

1 BE IT EXACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the State 
2 of New Jersey: 
1 1. This act shall be known and may be cited as the "Workplace 
2 Drug Abuse Testing Act.'' 
1 2. As used in this act: 
2 a. "Commissioner" means the Commissioner of Labor; 
3 b. "Controlled dangerous substance" means a drug, substance, 
4 or immediate precursor as defined in Schedules I through V of 
5 article 2 of the "i\ ew Jersey Controlled Dangerous Substances 
6 Act," P. L. 1970, c. 266 (C. 24:21-1 et seq.); 
7 c. ''Drug abuse test'' means any chemical test, including but not 
8 limited to urinalysis, blood analysis, or breathanalysis, used for the 
9 purpose of determining the presence or absence of controlled dan-

10 gerous substances in a person's body; 
11 d. "Employee" means and includes any person who supplies a 
12 service for remuneration or for any contract for hire to an em-
13 ployer in this State; 
14 e. "Employer" means and includes any private indhidual or 
15 organization that is an employer under R. S. 43 :21-19, any govern-
16 mental authority that is a public employer under P. L. 1968, c. 303 
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2 

11 (C. 34 :13A-1 et seq.) and any other individual or organization 
18 which the commissioner designates, by regulation, as an employer 
19 under this act. 

1 3. The commissioner may adopt and from time to time supple-
2 ment, alter or repeal rules and regulations relating to the adminis-
3 tration of emplo~·ee drug abuse tests lJy employers. S1~ch rules and 
4 regulations shall establish standards for the acquisition of samples, 
5 the handling, control, and disposition of samples, the methodology 
6 and procedures used to evaluate the contents of samples, the sta-
7 tistical margins of error as~ociated with a drug te~t, and the per-
8 ·sonnel who may he authorized to conduct clt·ng abuse tests. The 
9 commissioner shall adopt, snpplenwnt, alter, or repeal these rules 

10 and regulations in consultation with Commissioner of Health and 
11 the Attorney General. 
1 4. ·It shall be unlawful for any employer or his duly authorized 
2 agent to administer a drug abuse test or a set of drug abuse tests 
3 to any employee or job applicant unless the test and test procedures 
4 conform with the rules an(l regulations promulgated by the com-
5 missioner under section 3 of this act. 
1 5. It shall he unlawful for any employer or his duly authorized 
2 agent to administer a drug ahuse test or a set of drug abuse tests 
3 to any employe without first having reasonable suspicion that the 
4 employee is under the influence of a controlled dangerous substance. 
5 Suspicion shall l ·e based upon ...-isible eYidence of erratic job be-
6 havior, including lmt not limited to sewre declines in the employee's 
7 productivity, higher than average accident rates on the job, repeated 
8 lateness or absence from work, ,-iolent behavior, emotional un-
9 steadiness, sensory or motor-skill malfunctions, or possession of a 

10 controlled dangerous substance. 
1 6. A~y Yiolation of the provisions of the act shall be punishable 
2 by a fine of not less than $500.00 to be collected in a civil action 
3 by a summary proceeding under the Penalty Enforcement Law 
4 (K. J. S. 2A :5S-1). 
1 7. Any agreement or contract between an employer and an em-
2 ployee, employee association, or union may: a. require additional 
3 or supplementary control on the administration of drug abuse tests 
4 provided that the standanls and specifications estahlished in the 
j agreement or contract exceed the stantlards and specifications estab-
6 lished by the commisiiioner in rules and regulations promulgated 
7 pursuant to this act; or b. prohibit the administration of a drug 
8 te~t upon any employee coYered by the ag-reement or contract. 
1 8. Thi~ act shall take effect on the 90th llay following enactment. 
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STATE~IEXT 

This !>ill authorize,:: the Commissioner of Labor to promulgate 
rules and regulatiom; concerning thP aclministration of drug abuse 
tests hy pri\·ate and pl1lJlic emplo;·er~. The bill prohibits an em-
plo;;·er or his agent from administering drug abuse tests to em-
ployees or job applicants if the tests do not meet the standards 
establishe1l b;· the rulPs and regulations promulgated under this 
act. It abo probihit:- rmployen: from testing employees for drugs 
without reasonable ;;u;;picion that tlH' emplo:·ee is using drugs. Any 

· person who Yiolates tbe proYisions of tbe act would be subject to a 
fine of at least $501).00. The hill also permits employees, unions, 
anrl employee associations to estal1lish agreements with their em-
ployers that woull1 proYide stron;ter procedural and methodological 
standard;; for drug abusP testing in tlw \\·orkplace or prohibit the 
admini::-:tration of drug test;.. on employees coYered by the agreement. 

LABUR RELATlU;\S AXD EMPLOY~IEXT 
Authorizes Comm. of La hor to estahlish uniform standards for em-
ployee drug testing. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROBERT LITTELL (Chairman): I'm gong to 
ask for a few moments of your time, please. There is a bill 
being introduced here today, A-2850, with me as sponsor. It 
is a controversial bill, but it has been successful in 
generating some interest along with the problem itself 
being very prevalent because of the concern many people 
have throughout this State with drugs in the workplace. It's 
not an easy issue. There's no clear-cut answer. I think 
everybody agrees to that. The fact of the matter is, drugs 
are a part of our life here in these United States, which I'm 
sorry to admit and say, and drug testing is something we have 
to learn to live with and deal with. 

What we're attempting to do here to be fair handed, 
to a provide a way that will protect the rights of employees 
and the integrity of the system, and to make sure that there 
is confidentiality with regard to their identity in any 
testing program. 

At the same time, we want to make sure that any tests 
that are administered are tests that are sufficient and safe, 
and that they are adequate as far as their reliability. 

To that extent, we have had many ideas for 
amendments. We expect to hear many more today. We will hear 
all of the testimony, if possible. We have about 25 
witnesses, so we'll have to move right along. I wi 11 probably 
not go around the table after each witness, in order to save 
time. Unless you have a specific question that you feel has 
to be asked, I ask the members to hold them until the end. 
But if you feel that you have to ask a question, let me know 
and we will get to it. 

We will attempt to hear all of the testimony today, 
and at a meeting to be held in October, we expect to have all 
of those amendments prepared for discussion and voting on at a 
meeting -- some time in October. So, there will be no vote on 
the bi 11 today and no vote on the amendments today. Because 

l 
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there are so many issues, we won't attempt to burden the staff 
with trying to draft all those amendments while we're going 
through the process today. 

Now, I'd like to give Assemblyman Foy, who is the 
prime cosponsor on this bill. an equal opportunity say a few 
words. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I want to 
thank everyone who is present today and has taken the time to 
communicate to the Committee their views on this very 
important topic. 

The genesis of this legislation on the part of 
Assemblyman LITTELL and myself is our view that the 
Legislature has an obligation to develop important public 
policy that affects the people of the State of New Jersey. I 
don't know of any issue that is as topical in affecting the 
rights and the res pons i bi 1 it ies of individuals in New Jersey 
as the issue of drug testing and its application in the 
workplace. 

It is clear that there are many dimensions to this 
issue from a variety of perspectives, and it's our goal in 
developing this legislation to make it the law of the State of 
New Jersey that the legislation that is developed is one that 
addresses the interests of all of the individuals and groups 
involved. And 1 see those interests as being, fundamentally, 
two different extremes -- both of them legitimate. 

One: The right of an employer to have a workplace 
that's free from drug and substance abuse in terms of its 
employees; but, on the other extreme, the right of every 
individual and every worker in this State to be free from any 
type of harassment or invasion of their privacy rights. This 
bill will be an attempt to reconcile those two extreme, but 
legitimate views. 

And it seems that what we're attempting to do here is 
to balance those rights of employers and of workers, at the 

2 



same time balancing the fundamenta 1 right of society and its 
inherent interest in this particular issue. 

So, we welcome all of your input. We're all big 
boys. We're not afraid to be subject to critic ism if you 
think we've made some mistakes, and we certainly welcome some 
praise if you think that we've done anything good. 

So, good luck with your testimony today, and you may 
be assured you'll have a full and fair hearing from this 
Committee. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you. We first have 
Doctor Mark Powell and Jack Dalton, representatives from 
Hoffman LaRoche. I turn it over to you, gentlemen. 
J 0 H N B. D A L T 0 N: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Hoffman 
LaRoche is one of the world's leading health care companies. 
Widely known for original research and development, Roche has 
been responsible for numerous important medicines, some for 
diseases that affect countless numbers of people and others 
for diseases that afflict only a few. 

A leader in biotechnology, Roche has recently 
introduced Roferon A, our brand of Interferon, the first 
product produced for clinical trials through recombinant DNA 
technology. 

Roche provides he a 1 th care profess iona 1 s with a wide 
range of medical products and services, including diagnostic 
test systems, radio pharmaceuticals, clinical laboratory 
services, and specialty chemicals. Two of our operating 
groups, Roche ·Diagnostic Systems and Roche Biomedical 
Laboratories, are involved in toxicology testing for drugs of 
abuse. 

Roche Diagnostic Systems manufactures the industry's 
leading line of substance abuse assays -- known as Abuscreen 

and Roche Biomedical Laboratories performs bioanalytical 
testing for drugs of abuse, along with offering many other 
clinical laboratory tests. 

3 
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Roche believes that good health is the result of high 
quality medical products and services, knowledgeable health 
care professionals, and well informed consumers. 

As a health care company whose primary concern is 
enhancing the quality of life, Roche views substance abuse as 
a disease, and advocates treatment and rehabi.litation as its 
cure. 

Diagnostic Dimensions. Inc .• a new subsidiary of 
Hoffman LaRoche, has developed one of the first and most 
comprehensive programs to address the problem of substance 
abuse in the workplace. We help client companies to develop 
and implement substance abuse intervention programs. tailored 
to their specific organizational needs. This comprehensive 
approach includes educating and training of corporate 
personnel to identify and assist substance abusers in the 
workplace, and the establishment of testing programs to detect 
substance abuse. 

Testing services are offered through Roche Biomedical 
Laboratories the Roche nationwide clinical laboratory 
subsidiary. The management. education, and training portion 
of the Diagnostic Dimensions Program was jointly developed by, 
and is being offered through. Development Dimensions 
International of Pittsburgh. a major educational firm. 

Much has been written on the controversies involving 
urine testing and, in fact. the June, 1986 issue of Drug Abuse 
and Alcoholism Newsletter. a copy of which I have attached to 
my remarks, puhlished by the Vista Hill Foundation, a 
multi-hospital, nonprofit corporation that specializes in 
acute psychiatric care. addresses that topic ·-- controversies 
involving urine testing. 

It says in part and I quote: "Removing a 
substance abuser from the workplace can have a salutary effect 
upon the work environment. production. and employee morale. 
Urine and breath testing can make a contribution to this end. 
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Broader and probably more important goals are served. If an 
organization has a well-thought-out, fair, confidential 
program, it will serve as a deterrent to the use of 
intoxicants by other workers, in addition to those picked up 
on urine tests. 

"This secondary effect has been proven by experience 
from the military. Three worldwide surveys from all military 
branches were conducted. In 19 80. 27\ of mi 1 i tary personne 1 
has used an illegal drug within the past month. In 1982, the 
figure was 19\. And in 1985, it was 9\. The major change 
during those five years was the institution of a reliable 
urine screening program." 

It goes on to say, "A rna j or i ty of employees wi 11 be 
pleased with a clear policy and program of reducing drugs in 
the workplace. They can expect increased personal safety, 
less theft of their property, and better teamwork with the 
work group in other words, a better environment." Close 
quote. 

My associate, Doctor Mark Powell, directs the 
Department of Pharmaceutical and Toxicological Testing at 
Roche Biomedical Laboratories here in Raritan. New Jersey. 
Doctor Powell received his Ph.D. in medicinal chemistry from 
the University of Washington, in Seattle. He has published 
numerous articles in various scientific journals and books. 

Doctor Powell serves on the Steering Committee of the 
North Jersey Drug Metabolism Discussion Group of the American 
Chemical Society. He is a member of the American Society for 
Mass Spectrophotometry. the American Association for the 
Advancement of Science, the American Chemica 1 Society, and is 
presently serving on the Board of Directors of the Epilepsy 
Institute. 

I'm pleased to present my associate, Doctor Mark 
Powell, who will discuss the technological aspects of our drug 
testing programs. and other matters related to them. 
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D 0 C T 0 R MARK P 0 W E L L: Thank you very much. Mr. 
Dalton. Gentlemen. I welcome the opportunity to come in front 
of the Commit tee today. It 1 s certainly no secret to everyone 
in this particular room that the use of drugs in the United 
States has reached what is commonly referred to as epidemic 
proportions. 

The use of drugs also clearly is not confined to any 
particular subgroup of people. nor is it confined to any 
particular type of industry. We 1 re seeing rampant drug use 
throughout all ages. and throughout all aspects not only of 
industry. but also of education. of sports and we 1 ve 
reached a point where certainly members of the U.S. government 
have taken a leading role in stating that something needs to 
be done in order to attempt to combat the widespread use of 
illicit drugs in the United States. 

The various figures that have been tossed around 
range from probably a low of $25 billion to a high approaching 
$100 billion. in terms of dollars lost to productivity per 
year in the United States 
the relative merits of 
figure. but the end of 

throughout industry. 
both the low figure 

result of which 

You can debate 
and the high 

is clearly a 
significant problem which involves a great deal of money to 
industry. 

Because of this. we have seen a significant increase 
in the percentage of Fortune 500 companies which have 
implemented drug testing policies nationwide. It is estimated 
that in 1982 only about 5% of Fortune 500 c:ompanies in the 
U.S. had active drug testing policies. It is further 
estimated that by the end of 1986 that number will have risen 
to 35%. and it has also been stated publicly that as many as 
80% of Fortune 500 companies are currently considering the 
implementation of a drug testing policy at some future point 
in time. 

Because of the widespread interest in drug testing, 
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it's very. very important to go over some of the basics that 
are associated with drug testing itself because it's not 
enough just to use the generic term drug testing when you • re 
discussing the overall phenomena of the increase in drug 
testing. You have to get1 down to the specifics of what types 
of tests are being used. and how are they being used? This is 
particularly important in any discussions that are going to 
relate to accuracy and to specificity. 

so. I felt that it was appropriate to take the time 
in front of the committee today to go over what I refer to as 
the nuts and bo 1 ts of the drug testing i tse 1 f. because a 
reasonable understanding of this is necessary in order to put 
together any type of legislation which may deal with 
regulating the drug testing industry. 

By and large. drug testing is confined to urine 
analysis. although it's clearly possible to use the diagnostic 
kits to measure the presence of drugs not only in urine but 
also in plasma and other body fluids. Because of the 
invasiveness of drawing blood, generally the urine tests have 
been confined to urine analysis. 

There are three basic types of testing which can be 
employed throughout industry in terms of urine. One is 
so-called pre-employment screening, which means that you're 
requiring an employee to submit a urine specimen as part of 
his employment procedure prior to joining a corporation or 
workplace. secondly, a so-called "for cause testing." refers 
to collecting a urine specimen after an accident. or an event 
of some kind. to determine whether the presence or absence of 
illegal drugs, or illicit drugs, played a part. And. finally. 
there's a so-called random testing, which merely refers to the 
obtaining of a urine specimen at any time for testing. 

It has been said previously that these three types of 
testing are in order for effectiveness. in terms of reducing 
overall drug use in the workplace. It's probably also true --
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and you may hear it later that they're in order for 
increasing difficulty to defend legally. 

For that reason. the most widespread 
testing in the United States currently 
pre-employment drug screening. 

use of urine 
is so-called 

A basic tact that is being taken across the United 
States currently is that policies are being set up whereby the 
use of drugs is not consistent with long-term employment at a 
given corporation. And this is the type of policy-- or. 
generally. policies are built around this philosophy. 

The urine testing itself is widely split into two 
categories. One category is the so-called screening test. and 
the second category is the so-called confirmation test. The 
screening tests are employed to do broad-scale screening of 
very large numbers of urine samples. Now, I'll deal with each 
of these two types of tests in turn. beginning with the 
screening test. 

By and large, screening tests are divided into two 
general categories. One is an immunoassay test. and the 

second is a so-called thin layer chromatography, or TLC test. 
The TLC test, historically, had been the most widely used 
throughout the industry to test for drugs, as well as a number 
of other medications. They are relatively easy to perform. 
although they have a high degree of technical expertise 
associated with them in terms of interpreting the results. 

The resu 1 ts that come off TLC tests are not 
straightforward, ~nd they are dependent upon the expertise of 
the technician who • s preforming the test to a much greater 
degree than immunoassay tests are. Nevertheless, it's easier 
to use TLC to screen for a broad range of drugs; therefore, 
these have been widely employed. They are also relatively 
inexpensive, which is another reason why they • ve been widely 
employed. 

However, nowadays most people are employing, as 
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ini t ia 1 screening technologies. an immunoassay test. the two 
most celebrated of which are RIA. which stands for radio 
immunoassay. or EIA. which stands for enzyme immunoassay. 
These are the two types of tests that most people in industry 
now are going towards as the methodology of choice for your 
initial screening technology. 

These tests are very similar in their approach to the 
way they detect the presence of drugs in urine. and they both 
make use of the inherent spec if ici ty associated with 
antibodies to detect the presence of illicit substances in the 
urine. It 1 s probably not appropriate to go into great detai 1 

on the differences between the two types of technologies. 
They are somewhat similar. and they are both widely employed 
throughout the United States. 

Roche. as do most major clinical laboratories. 
recommends strongly that all initial positive test results be 
confirmed by a second. independent confirmatory methodology. 
This is an extremely important point. And the second 
independent confirmatory methodology that 1 s recommended 
which 1 will go into detail shortly -- is gas chromatography. 
mass spectrophotometry. or GCMS. This is the second part of 
the two-stage testing procedure. the so-called confirmatory 
test. 

Now there is some confusion periodically that 
surrounds confirmatory testing. and it all depends on how you 

define confirmatory testing. Some people define confirmatory 
testing as any type of testing other than what you did 
initially. We prefer to define confirmatory testing as the 
second independent which is at least as sensitive as the 
ini t ia 1 test. and what has become widely accepted 
particularly in the field of forensic law is gas 
chromatography. mass spectrophotometry. This type of testing 
actually provides a molecular fingerprint of the drug and is 
considered to be definitive in its ability to recognize 
specific drugs in urine. lt 1 S extremely sensitive. It 1 s also 
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fairly expensive. It's technologically very complicated. It 
requires a great deal of expertise on the part of the 
technicians who run the instrumentation. Because of that, 
it's not a good candidate for initial screening. It's too 
time-consuming for large-scale screening of high volumes of 
urine. However. it's widely employed as a confirmatory 
testing technology. So •. those are the two components of the 
testing technology itself. 

Now the third component. which actually has nothing 
to do with testing but is every bit as important as part of 
the overall policy and procedure that you utilize, is the 
chain of custody. The chain of custody is the generic term 
which is -- although it's widely used, refers to the internal 
tracking system by which a laboratory keeps track of the 
identity of a specimen at all times that is within the 
laboratory's confines. This is absolutely essential to having 
an overall program of drug testing which is legally 
defensible. and the use of chain of custody which most 
major laboratories provide -- gives not only the location of 
the specimen at all times when it's in the laboratory but, in 
addition to that, it gives the names of the actual technicians 
who did the testing, and it's a record of that which is 
provided and can be used in a court of law, in a case where a 
defense is raised that a sample was adulterated 
in which the sample was within the confines 
laboratory. 

at some time 
of a given 

So, thes~ are the essential components of the overall 
urine testing itself. Clearly, there are a number of issues 
which are commonly discussed. There are a number of critical 
issues regarding drug testing: The possibility of so-called 
"cross-reactivity" when you're using the immunoassay test, 
which means the possibility that you could be taking some 
other drug which could mimic an illicit drug, which would 
cause could cause you to get a so-called "false 
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positive" result, which shows the presence of a drug of abuse 
in the urine when, in fact, no drug had been taken. 

There are a number of critical issues which I'm sure 
may or may not be discussed today, but the components of a 
successful drug program, we feel, are the use of immunoassay 
technologies as an initial screening procedure. a chain of 
custody for documenting the integrity of the sample. and 
confirmatory testing by GCMS of all initial positive test 
results. 

Are there any specific questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Doctor, you talked about the 

possibility of somebody showing a false positive if they had 
taken another drug which might give a similar effect. There 
are other things like people talk about sesame seeds on a 
hard ro 11, or things of that type. Would you just address 
those for the public, because there is a lot of uncertainty as 
to how your testing can tell the difference between those 
sorts of things and real drugs. 

DR. POWELL: Okay. Well. you've asked two different 
questions okay? And the reason I say you've asked two 
different questions is because the sesame-seeds-on-a-roll 
issue is not a case of a false positive. As you know -- and 
it's actually not sesame seeds, it was poppy seeds -- poppy 
seeds, which are derived from the poppy plant, do in fact have 
the same origin as opiates. And originally this started-- It 
originally started, actually, out in California a few years 
back, when a defense used in court for a positive opiate 
screening -- a result which would suggest prior ingestion of 
heroin and/or codeine, or some opiate containing material, or 
like-containing material was that the particular 
individuals involved had eaten poppy seed bagels for breakfast 
and that had resulted in their positive screening test. 

It is true that poppy seeds contain actually 

contain trace amounts of opiates, which are basically 
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indistinguishable from the opiates that are present in heroin; 
they're from the same family. However. in order to get a 
positive test result, the amount of poppy seed bagels that you 
would have to consume is prodigious. But having said that, 
there is such a thing that has cropped up which is called 
poppy seed cakes, which are consumed by people of Middle 
Eastern descent primarily. and it has been shown in laboratory 
settings that these poppy seed cakes have tremendous 
concentrations of poppy seeds in them, much larger than what 
you would find in a poppy seed bagel. It is possible by 
eating a few pieces of poppy seed cake that you can show 
positive on an opiate screen, and if you do the confirmatory 
testing, you are going to get a positive confirmation if you 
have levels high enough. 

What I want to reemphasize is this is not a false 
positive; these are real opiates that are present in the poppy 
seed cakes. The question that has been raised in response to 
that, therefore, is: "If I wanted to get high, how many of 
these cakes would I have to eat?" (laughter) That's a 
somewhat difficult question to answer. 

But, along those same lines, there are a number of 
critical issues. There are so-called herbal teas which have 
become popular not popular. but they've achieved widespread 

j 
media doverage throughout the United States, and that is, some 
teas -- so-called Health, Inc. Tea, which are imported into 
the United States -- actually contain residues from the cocoa 
leaf plants. These teas are supposed to be decocainized prior 
to arriving in the United States. Nevertheless. a number of 
researchers were able to purchase these teas and were able to 
show that, in point of fact, if you drank several cups of this 
so-called cocoa leaf containing herbal tea, you could also 
show positive on a cocaine screen. 
this is not a false positive. 

Again, 

There was actually-- There are 
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amounts of cocaine present in the tea leaves themselves. It 
may be worth noting that the teas quickly disappeared from the 
she 1 ves of the stores that carried them. Either they were 
snapped up by DEA officials, or they were snapped up by people 
who were energetic in wanting to buy as much as they could~ 

However. an example which has been referred to as a 
false positive is something like phenyipropanolamine. a common 
component of over-the-counter cough medications. which is 
widely present in most cough/cold medications that people 
buy. It is well known and well documented that if you take 
enough phenyipropanolamine, it 1 S possible to get a positive 
response in an amphetamine screen. Now the reason why this is 
true is because the structure of phenyipropanolamine the 
molecular structure is very closely related to amphetamine, 
so closely related in fact that the antibodies that have been 
designed to look at amphetamine cannot adequately distinguish 
between amphetamine and phenyipropanolamine. 
greater degree with amphetamine then 

They have a much 
they do with 

phenyipropanolamine; but, nevertheless. if you get enough 
phenyipropanolamine in there, you can get a positive screen. 

Now when you 1 re developing these particular 
diagnostic reagents, it 1 s always a compromise venture that one 
finds themselves in. For example, if you want to develop a 
diagnostic reagent for barbiturates we use that as an 
example -- barbiturates, as you know, is a term that covers a 
whole family of drugs. There 1 S a whole host of barbiturates: 
secobarbital, phenobarbital, butabarbital. If you want your 
initial screening test to be able to look at all these 
barbiturates, you need to make your antibody nonspecific 
enough so that it can see them all as a class of drugs. If 
you make them so specific that they 1 11 only look at one of the 
individual drugs, then you may have to build 20 different 
antibodies in order to cover a class of drugs that has 20 
representatives. 
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Therefore-- And in a case, for example. of 
barbiturates, there may be other barbiturates that you -- it's 
beneficial for you to look at. For example, methamphetamine, 
which is closely related to amphetamine, is also an abused 
drug; therefore. it's to your benefit to have a screening test 
which looks at both amphetamine and methamphetamine. However, 
what needs to be emphasized is that the confirmatory testing 
can easily distinguish between, for example, 
phenyipropanolamine and amphetamine. 

The confirmatory test, GCMS, can easily distinguish 
-- for example in a opiate screen between morphine and 
codeine. So that as long as people follow the recommended 
procedure of doing the confirmatory, secondary confirmation 
testing from initial screening results, things like 
phenyipropanolamine, which could give a positive reaction for 
amphetamine, would be flushed out, as it were. on the 
confirmatory testing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I was not going to get into a 
lot of testing, but because he's the expert on testing, I will 
give everybody a chance to ask questions. Go right ahead. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: I happen to be a-- There 
are other drugs that are on the market which take care of 
people with pain, for instance people who have sugar and they 
have a neuropathy of their legs, or something. or they are 
given drugs to maintain their sanity, sometimes. 
show up in a test? 

Would this 

DR. POWELL: Well, you've covered a number of 
different drugs in that question. One of the most celebrated 
examples of a certain type of immunoassay testing -- the EMIT 
test it has been documented that certain non-steroidal, 
anti-inflammatory agents, which are widely taken for pain --
for example, Motrin, Advil, Nuprin can give positive 
reactions in one of the EIA tests for marijuana. This is 
something that the company is currently actively working on 
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changing the enzymes involved to try and solve this 
particular problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: So this could be a problem? 
DR. POWELL: It can be a problem. The company is 

aware if it, however, and the company makes their clients 
aware of it also. It • s something that needs to be taken into 
consideration when interpreting initial toxicology test 
results. 

Again however, if one does the confirmatory testing--
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: The second test? 
DR. POWELL: The second testing, it will easily 

distinguish between a non-steroidal anti-inflammatory agent 
and marijuana because of structural differences. 

But it does point up the fact that to do the testing 
is not a simple rna t ter of obtaining the urine, running the 
screening test, and pumping out the answers. Okay? There • s 
more to it than that. There's expertise involved in 
interpreting the answers. There's expertise that's required 
on the part of medical directors which are administering the 
programs. We need to develop a medical background. What 
drugs, if any, was this patient taking? What drugs, if any, 
is this patient currently taking which could impact on the 
urinary testing results? 

We are also actively, of course, always interested in 
testing the potential, and we have an ongoing program, which 
is very active, to always test the potential of any drugs that 
are around, to give a possible false positive result of one of 
our diagnostic reagents. This is an ongoing program that we 
have. We have a great deal of information -- when I •m saying 
we, I'm talking about Roche now -- gathered already, but it•s 
an ongoing program, all the time, to test new drugs that come 
on the market to see if they can impact upon our diagnostic 
reagents. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I have just two questions. The 
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first question is. do you advocate that an appropriate 
protocol be developed for the administration of drug tests so 
as to minimize the opportunity for either false positives to 
occur. or positives that are unrelated to abusive substances? 

DR. POWELL: Well. we strongly recommend that certain 
procedures should be followed in developing drug testing 
programs. Towards that end. Mr. Dalton has outlined that we 
have an entire division which is charged with helping people 
develop policies and approaches to the drug testing program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That includes the secondary 
confirmatory testing. does it not? 

DR. POWELL: Absolutely. We strongly recommend to 
all of our clients that the testing procedures be a two-stage 
process: Initial screening. follow-up confirmatory tes~ing. 

use of chain of custody. And. also. we strongly recommend 
that the testing be only one part of an overall employee 
assistance program. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. That deals with 

rehabilitation? 
DR. POWELL: That deals with rehabilitation. 
ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: Similar to the situation that is 

fairly prevalent with regard to alcoholism in the workplace? 
DR. POWELL: Absolutely. We strongly recommend that 

the testing be an integral part of the overall rehabilitation 
program. However. it's been widely stated by a number of 
people that in the absence of testing. employee assistance 
programs may not be as effective as with testing. because that 
really gives the EPA program its bite. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Second question: Can these 
tests-- Or. do they account for. or are there individual 
variations that may occur as a resu 1 t of either gender. race. 
or nat iona 1 i ty? For example. would blacks test differently 
from whites? would women test differently from men? Would 
Armenians. who eat a lot of poppy seeds. test differently from 
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the Irish. who drink a lot of whiskey? (laughter) 
DR. POWELL: Okay. It's a multi-faceted question. 

I'll try and deal with the issues in point. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: With the whiskey. 
DR. POWELL: With the whiskey first? (laughter) 

I '11 begin with your first question. which refers to race. 
And I think probably what you • re driving at is a celebrated 
toxicologist in the Southeastern region of the United States 
who made a ·statement at a meeting some time back that people 
of dark skin who have greater proportions of melanin in their 
urine. wi 11 have a higher incidence of positive results on a 
marijuana screen than white skinned people. 

Okay. let me go on record right now. although others 
have gone on record before me. and say that this is 
categorically untrue. At the time that this particular 
information was released. it needs to be emphasized there was 
no scientific information presented along with it. These 
results have never been published to date in any scientific 
journal. and in point of fact a number of researchers. 
including groups at the university of -- down in Mississippi 
-- have. in fact. investigated this in a laboratory setting 
and have found a number of things in a controlled laboratory 
setting: 

One. that they have taken urine specimens and have 
spiked them with melanin. In other words. they have added 
melanin into controlled urine in amounts great enough to turn 
the urine black. and there are no recorded incidents of 
positives using either RIA or EIA technology. 

secondly. they've done the confirmatory testing by 
GCMS. There are no molecular similarities 
and melanin which are sufficient to give 
equivalent by GCMS. 

between marijuana 
results which are 

And. thirdly. there were a couple of studies done 
which were fairly large in nature. looking at population 
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screening -- where they compared groups of blacks to groups of 
whites and there were no 
incidents of positive results 
Nevertheless. this has achieved 
because of the particular nature 

statistical differences in 
on the marijuana screen. 
widespread media coverage 
of the question. Now you 

asked me. secondly. about--
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Gender and nationality. 
DR. POWELL: Gender and nationality there is 

nothing to distinguish. to my knowledge. between gender and/or 
nationality whatsoever. 

You mentioned eating poppy seed cakes. It 
that some people eat more poppy seed cakes than others. 
however. is probably a habit rather than a nationality. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. Thank you. Doctor. 
DR. POWELL: Any further questions. gentlemen? 

may be 
That. 

ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: Are there any questions? (no 
questions) 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: You snowed me with some of 
those terms. 

DR. POWELL: Oh. by the way. I apologize for not 
having prepared written comments. I had brought a slide 
presentation with me. but because of the constricted space we 
elected not to do that. I will prepare written comments and 
have them forwarded to the Committee Chairperson to pass out. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Well. we're getting it on tape, 
I hope. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Just one brief point. In fact. 
I'd like to thank the Doctor for his testimony. It was well 
prepared and I'm sure you couldn't have done a better job with 
your notes. 

I'd just like to ask you about pre-employment for 
cause. and random-type sampling. Do you have any 
recommendations as far as frequency of testing to make it more 
effective in the workplace? 
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DR. POWELL: Well. of course, in pre-employment 
screening you would not be concerned with frequency of testing 
because these people would not be in your employ. 

I think it's fairly well documented that some of the 
EPA programs, or a number of EPA programs, currently have drug 
testing as part of their rehabilitative process, in other 
words, the monitoring part of their EPA Program and it's 
not uncommon to have urine tests submitted every two to four 
weeks. And, in point of fact, that's probably relatively 
common for those companies which do have testing as part of 
the EPA, or part of their rehabilitative programs. 

Generally speaking, however, things like for-cause 
testing and random testing are usually one-shot deals. This 
is generally what we see. Okay? In other words, if there's 
been an accident of some kind, or if there's been in incident, 
they take a urine specimen and they don't routinely then take 
them every two weeks for the next year. However, if someone 
is in a rehab program, it • s not uncommon for them to submit 
urine specimens every two to four weeks for some period which 
is specified in the program and is part of the policy. In 
other words, you have to stay clean for some 'x' period of 

time. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: What will it cost to test? I 

guess the greater the number, the cheaper it is. But--
DR. POWELL: Generally speaking, screening test 

results will run in the order of anywhere from $10 to $15 per 
specimen. and the figures I'm giving you are pretty much 
general no matter which company is doing the testing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well, yeah. How do you--
DR. POWELL: And the confirmatory--
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How do you go about getting 

the urine? Who's going to watch that it's your urine or 
somebody else's? Then, do you ship it out for the $10 or $15 

DR. POWELL: Okay. Generally speaking, the companies 
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that use the services their own medical director is 
responsible for the urine collections. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Okay. So, you have to have a 
number in order to qet that $10 or $15 cost. You can • t have 
10 people in somethinq like that? 

DR. POWELL: The $10 or $15 cost is it doesn't 
matter about the number. I'm not real--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well--
DR. POWELL: I'm not really involved with volume 

discounts particularly: that • s another part of the company. 
I'm sure they exist. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Do they come to your place? 
Do you send somebody to a lab? 

DR. POWELL: Our particular company, Roche 
Pharmedical Laboratories, has a nationwide currier network 
whereby we qo to sites all across the country and pick up the 
specimens on a daily basis and brinq them to the 
laboratories. Other companies may have different 

methodoloqies for qetting the specimens into the laboratory. 
We use our own currier system and we pick up specimens all 
over the United States. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: You don't send a person out to 
do it, do you? 

DR. POWELL: We sent a currier out to pick up the 
specimens themselves. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Yeah. Okay. 
DR. POWELL: But they have collected the specimens. 

For example, their medical director has been responsible for 
overseeing the collection of specimens. 

We do have drawing stations, where if a company does 
not have their own medical director, etc., they send them to a 
medical group which will be responsible for collectinq them --
and this is somethinq that we've seeing more and more all the 
time: Medical groups, or groups of physicians which are 
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servicing a great number of industries. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Yes. I've heard where it 

costs $100, $200, $150. I've heard all those kinds of figures. 
DR. POWELL: Well, there's a lot of different figures 

that get tossed around. The initial screening figures cost 
anywhere from. roughly, $10 to $15 per sample. 

Confirmatory GCMS testing, which is more expensive, 
costs anywhere from $40 to about $75 per specimen. That • s 
only the positives. I don't know of any laboratories that 
charge much more than that. If they do. you probably may not 
want to be associated with them. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Very good. Thank you, Doctor. 
DR. POWELL: You're welcome. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I want to thank you very much, 

and the same to you, Mr. Dalton. We appreciate your 
contribution to the very important hearing. and we'll send you 
a copy of your report so you can have it for your file. Thank 
you. 

DR. POWELL: Thank you very much. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Next we have Mr. Jeffrey Fogel, 

the Executive Director of the ACLU of New Jersey. 
J E F F R E Y E. F 0 G E L: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and 
members of the Committee for the opportunity to testify before 
the Committee. our office of the American Civil Liberties 
Union in New Jersey receives multiple complaints from workers 
regarding urine testing programs every week, and has done so 
-- I think we've received them for about the past year. 

We have about six cases in litigation. primarily 
involving public employees -- fire fighters, police officers, 
transit workers, and so on. 

The urine testing programs that are in place today in 
America. and those that are being proposed. are certainly the 
most widespread invasion of privacy rights of American 
citizens that has ever occurred in the history of this 
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nation. More people's privacy is being invaded as a result of 
urine testing than any other procedure employed in the private 
or the public sector in the history of this country. 

Make no mistake about it. urine testing is not-- We 
can use euphemistic words like screening: it is a search. It 
is a search of the bodily fluid of a person. It can be 
perhaps suggested that it's less intrusive than sticking a 
needle in their arm and extracting their blood. but it is 
certainly more intrusive than asking them blow their breath 
into a Breathalyzer machine. which most people are fami 1 iar 
with or at least familiar with the general notion of. 

We do not suggest in our society that anybody who 
operates a motor vehicle -- which I think we all recognize is 
a lethal weapon in the hands of millions of Americans each day 
-- that they take a Breathalyzer test before they get in their 
car to go to the corner candy store or supermarket. We do 
suggest. and we do insist that our law enforcement agencies 
observe people as they drive on the highways. and when and if 
there is evidence of motor function or impairment. then. and 
only then -- when there are grounds to believe that the person 
is intoxicated -- do we allow them to use the device called 
the Breathalyzer. one of the least intrusive devices in this 
area. 

Every court that has considered any question 
involving urine testing has started from the proposition that 
it involves a search of the citizen involved. You must think 
about this issue· when you think about workers being searched 
in this regard -- as if the employer had the right to require 
his or her employees to take off all of their clothes before 
they entered the workplace and before they left the workplace. 
in order to observe whether there was anything improper. in 
their possession as a result of bringing into the workplace or 
taking out of the workplace. 

In my view urine testing--· And I think one of the 
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facts that was left out by Dr. Powell, who otherwise gave an 
excellent presentation, is the limitation of urine testing and 
urine screening, which is: You cannot, through the use of 
screening -- through urine testing determine the content of 
an active intoxicant in the body at that time. You can only 
test for inactive metabolites of a substance -- that is, the 
evidence that's left from past usage of a substance, in 
contradistinction to the Breathalyzer, which tests the amount 
of alcohol in the bloodstream at that very time, and from 
which you can draw inferences as to the impact on the motor 
functioning and other abilities of the person who has that in 
their bloodstream at that time. 

When you look at urine, you • ve looking at inactive 
metabolites being discharged by the body after some period of 
usage has passed. And there is evidence, for example, that an 
employee can come to work, can go into the bathroom and use a 
drug, give a urine test at the same time, and they'll test 
negative. They will test negative because that urine test is 
not testing for the current, active ingredient in the body 
but, rather, evidence of past usage. 

What we have here is employers looking to see what 
workers are doing off the job, with no ability in the 
scientific community yet to use urine to test whether or not 
any of these workers and functions are impaired on the job 
which, it seems to me, is the critical question that most 
employers should be involved with. Then, it seems to me, that 
it's no different than allowing employers to go to the homes 
of his or her employee and riffle about their belongings to 
see whether there's any evidence of past drug usage. Why 
not? If we presume to allow them to search their bodies to 
look for evidence of past drug usage, why not let them go into 
their homes and look for evidence of that past drug usage, 
whether it be via 1 s of cocaine that are empty, or whether 
there are small substances involved -- whether they be the 
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leftover remains of marijuana cigarettes or paraphernalia 
associated with heroin use, there is no distinction. The body 
should be, in my view, as sacrosanct as the castle, which we 
all consider to be our home, and if we legitimize this process 
in American industry, we will legiti~ize the process by which 
the body is no longer the possession of each individual 
citizen in our country but, rather, belongs to he or she who 
we are employed by. 

It is for that reason that we believe the Legislature 
ought to prohibit urine testing in much the same way that 20 
years ago it prohibited the use of lie detector tests in the 
employment sector. Many, many employers would like to use lie 
detector tests. We see those cases as well. We have a good 
relationship with the Department of labor, and we refer them 
to them for prosecution. One of the problems with the lie 
detector test too in genera 1 terms is, one, they are 
intrusive. They, in fact, constitute some form of a search of 
the mental processes of the individual. Secondly, there is no 
scientific evidence of their reliability. 

There is some scientific evidence, as Dr. Powell has 
indicated, as to the reliability of urine testing -- again, 
only for the question of. "Can we determine if there • s 
evidence that you did something on your own time, off the job, 
which we don't like for some reason?" And I'd like to get to 
that in a second. But as he indicated, in every instance 
there is expertise involved. There are questions of change of 
custody involved,· and there are a variety of different testing 
procedures on the marketplace. I don•t think he, as a 
scientist, would ever suggest that the tests are 100% 
accurate. even if they do a screening test, followed by a 
confirmatory test, as is suggested by Hoffman LaRoche. 

If you had a 1% error rate, 99% degree of accuracy 
and if, as the President's Commission on Organized Crime 
suggested. that a 11 American workers be tested in the 
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workplace 
would be 

if we tested a million workers. 10.000 of them 
sacrificed who had no involvement with drugs 

whatsoever. 
As Dr. 

other concerns 
substances which 
positive. There 

Powell 
are 

might 
is no 

indicated. Hoffman LaRoche among 
still testing for those kinds of 
cross-react. that might show false 
indication yet that the scientific 

community has come to a point where this is error free, and we 
will find ourselves. as we do today. sacrificing workers 
because of a program which attempts to deal with drug usage in 
America. but. rather. invo 1 ves the most widespread violation 
of privacy rights possible. 

So then. we believe that the Legislature should ban 
the use of urine tests and should have employers rely on the 
time-tested methods that employers have always relied on to 
determine questions of work productivity and work safety, 
which is evaluation of their employees. And any major 
corporation will tell you that it is the responsibility of 
management to provide good personnel evaluation. for 
supervisors to be observing employees and. if there is a 
problem. to be identifying that problem as the result of the 
outward manifestations of the inability to work. or of the 
creation of a safety problem much in the same way as we 
require our police officers to observe the impairment of motor 
functioning before we allow them to stop a motor vehicle in 
this State and require something like a Breathalyzer test. 

Why is it that we have such widespread use of urine 
testing. and proposed urine testing. in America? WelL I 

assume there are a variety of reasons. There 1 s no question 
that a number of employers are rightly and justifiably 
concerned about drug usage and the impact of drug usage on the 
job. in terms of both the productivity and in terms of the 
safety of other workers. There 1 s no doubt the workers are 
concerned about their own safety with regard to the 
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possibility that other workers as well may be using drugs. 
So, there • s no question of management versus labor in that 
regard, but workers are also concerned about other workers who 
have an impact on their safety. 

Nonetheless, there has to be limits on whatyou allow 
to be done, and on the net that you allow to be spread out in 
order to catch the few that are involved, and it is 
interesting to me, as we look out at the number of cases that 
we see come across our desk -- as has been pointed out in a 
number of publications the problem with alcohol abuse in 
America still makes the problem of drug abuse pale. 

The problem of alcohol abuse, in terms of loss of 
productivity, in terms of danger and safety on the job to 
other workers and to the public, in terms of increased health 
cost to the employer -- drug usage is pale in comparison to 
the problems presented by alcohol use. And yet, we find very, 
very few employers either utilizing or suggesting that they 
utilize a device which is minimally intrusive, highly 
accurate, and tests for the very question that•s at issue, the 
impairment of the employee -- that is the Breathalyzer test. 

And one has to wonder, why is there such great 
concern over drug usage on the job -- in the work force, which 
is a legitimate concern when there doesn•t seem to be 
anything that compares to that concern for alcohol use on the 
job, which is a much more significant problem? And I would 
suggest that there are many employers who would be afraid of 
that proposition because alcohol is their drug of choice and 
they wouldn•t want to set a hypocritical standard. Although 
many of them may take three-martini lunches and come back to 
work impaired, they•re not about to impose that requirement on 
themselves as well. and I ask that you consider that as you 
look over the land-work of this whole issue. 

Nonetheless, we think the Committee, and particularly 
Assemblymen Littell and Foy, are making some positive effort 
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here, and I say that because we are seeing so many cases 
across our desk of people -- either job applicants or people 
who are employed in occupations -- being fired as a result of 
tests that are very limited in their utility, failure to use 
confirmatory testing, failure to give the worker any 
opportunity to challenge -- even whether or not it • s his or 
her urine that's being utilized and, certainly, the other 
factor that I think is cr it ica 1 to consider is, "Should the 
work force be treated in a punitive fashion when it is found 
that they may be using drugs off the job wi tb no evidence of 

. impairment on the job?" And, of course, that is a critical 
question to be addressed. 

From society• s point of view, if a person is a drug 
user, do we want them to be without a job? What is the impact 
on society if the employer uses that opportunity to punish the 
worker? We as a society have looked at these questions of 
drug usage, and this Legislature, for example, bas come up 
with a number of responses in terms of the criminal law. 
treat offenders who are only users in particular ways. 

We 
If a 

person is an occasional user, a recreational user, we treat 
them as first off enders and give them sever a 1 opportunities 
because of a recognition that these people are not really 
criminals and that putting them in jail is not going to serve 
any societal purpose. 

With respect to those who are victims of drug use --
that is, those who are dependent on drugs -- we look at the 
question, and increasingly have, of the necessity to help 
those people to he 1 p themse 1 ves in terms of rehabi 1 i tat ion, 
and to protect us as well, because drug users who have no 
money have to rob us in order to get that money. If we throw 
them out of work, we • re going to have them on the street, 
perhaps even robbing us 1 and we will create yet a greater 
problem for society in terms of drug usage in general, and the 
impact of those drug users on the rest of us as well. 
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But most people in the private sector today are 
totally unprotected in any manner whatsoever. and we also have 
problems with the public sector as well. 

I'd like to give you a couple of examples. Dr. 
Powell told you that his clients -- he recommends that they 
not just use the abuscreen test that Hoffman LaRoche has 
developed. but that no personnel action be taken without using 
confirmatory testing. Now I can tell you of a number of 
cases. say with New Jersey Transit who seems to unwilling to 
pay the cost of the confirmatory test. where people have been 
fired as a result of a positive result on a drug screen ~- no 
confirmatory testing ever done. 

The same thing is true in the pre-employment area. 
where New Jersey Transit employs Hoffman LaRoche. and they 
utilize the abuscreen. radio immunoassay test and they never 
use confirmatory tests. and deny people employment on the 
basis of that test. And in one case. we had a worker who had 
applied for a job with New Jersey Transit and carne to us and 
said. "It showed up marijuana but I don•t use marijuana. can't 
we do something about it? 11 New Jersey Transit wasn•t 
interested. There's no right to a hearing. There's no right 
for that applicant the job applicant to challenge 
whether the chain of custody was maintained accurately over 
the urine. whether there was any cross-referencing by another 
drug. whether or not the employer -- in this case the public 
employer -- even used confirmatory testing. 

So we -see those problems and. obviously. any 
legislation that sets standards requiring the best available 
test would be of assistance to that group of people. But 
realize that there are people in this country who are seeking 
to enforce the criminal law through the work force. which is 
to say they•re seeking to employ private industry to enforce 
the criminal law. And I ask when you look in history. when 
government has called upon private industry to enforce the 
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criminal law, we have had authoritarian and totalitarian 
societies, and that is the direction in which this issue is 
going. 

The question is, does the employer rightfully have an 
interest in securing productivity and safety? Yes. Do they 
have an interest or a responsibility to enforce the criminal 
law and to provide even greater penalties than we as a society 
have decided should be the penalties for simple drug use? The 
loss of a job is a 
marijuana than what 
of our State, and 

much more significant penalty for smoking 
will happen to you in the criminal courts 
if the choice were there everybody would 

choose the criminal courts rather than the work force. So we 
are encouraging people to impose greater penalties than we as 
a society have determined are appropriate under these 
circumstances, and I think part of the danger lies there among 
those in government and the President 1 S Organized Crime 
Commission, who are the cheerleaders for utilizing the private 
sector to enforce the criminal law. And I think it 1 s a very 
dangerous effort because I think of what it leads to, and the 
people who are being abused in the process of that effort. 

But again, I come back to the fact that the workers 
in the private sector are unprotected in any regard at all 
right now, and that is why we have indicated in the letter 
that I sent to Assemblyman LITTELL -- and I think I shared 
copies of it with the members of the Committee what I think 
are the minimal requirements in any bill like this, which 
would provide some minimal measure of protection to workers in 
that sector, even if the Committee shouldn 1 t consider the 
possibility of outlawing the use of urine tests in this 
society. 

Now you have to recognize as you listen to Hoffman 
LaRoche, they 1 re making a lot of money in the urine testing 
business. I don 1 t want to suggest how much -- or how much 
they were hurt by the loss of their patent on Valium, and have 

29 



II" II 

replaced that with urine screening. but you have to recall 
that people who are testifying before you have an interest. I 
have an interest. We are an organization. primarily 
interested in civil liberties. I don • t want to suggest that 
Dr. Powell in any way hid anything from you. but I want you to 
recognize that the drug companies in our State the 
pharmaceutical industry -- has an interest in urine screening. 
and it•s a financial interest. 

What are our most serious concerns here? The 
definition. as I indicated. of reasonable suspicion I think is 
far too broad. I bring you one example of a young man who was 
a computer operator for Public Service Electric and Gas. He 
had an argument with another worker. He was black; the other 
worker was white. He was 25 years old. He grew up in 
Newark. He went to Essex County College. He took himself out 
of the ghetto and he got himself training as a computer 
operator and a job at PSE&G. He had an argument with another 
worker. The argument had some rae ia 1 over tones to it and. 
indeed. the argument continued after work. and there were. in 
fact, fisticuffs exchanged between these two workers at a bar 
in downtown Newark. The next day this gentleman received a 
letter from his manager saying. 11 Your erratic behavior. your 
racially insulting remarks. and language that was entirely 
inappropriate to the workplace. and your threat of bodily 
harm. leads us to two conclusions: Number one. we're 
disciplining you. We're suspending you for ten days. Number 
two. anybody with such erratic behavior is a likely suspect 
for being a drug abuser and you must now take a urine test 
once every three weeks for the continuation of your employment 
for the next three years. If you fail. you will be fired. If 
you refuse. you will be fired. 11 

Now. this is a case that we wanted to take. The 
gentleman-- and I'm happy to report for him -- got a job with 
a company where he could be a computer operator. that had some 
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element of humanity to it, and some sanity to it. But I tell 
you that the definition that you have for reasonable suspicion 
would have justified the requirement that was imposed in that 
case, and would have been irrational. 

I had the flu this month for about three weeks. 
During that period of time, whether or not I was taking 
antihistamines or antibiotics, my motor functions were 
impaired somewhat. Much of the definition that is in this 
bill right now, under "reasonable suspicion," would have 
allowed my boss, if I had a boss, to have required me to take 
a urine test, and you • ve got to recognize that not only is 
that a problem in definition, but the employer or supervisor 
who wishes to abuse a worker can utilize the most minimal kind 
of evidence that is set forth in your definition of reasonable 
suspicion to justify the demand that the worker take a urine 
test, and to have the worker disciplined if they don't, for 
insubordination. 

We have had others who have been fired for refusing 
to take tests. We've had others, as I said, in the 
pre-employment area as well. 

I suggested another definition to you, one that stays 
away from legal terminology because legal terminology gets 
difficult when it gets applicable in the lay area. suspicion, 
in many people • s minds, means a hunch. They don • t recognize 
that reasonable suspicion means that you must be able to 
articulate objective facts that would lead a reasonable person 
to that conclusion. I suggest you stay away from it, just as 
I would suggest you stay away from probable cause. Very few 
peep le, including lawyers and judges know what those words 
mean. 

I have suggested some terminology which is not 
perfect, but at least suggests to the person there be 
trustworthy basis, not because they received an anonymous tip 
from another person who hated that worker, not because the 
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supervisor is angry at the worker. but that there be a 
trustworthy basis for believing that the worker • s abilities 
are impaired by the use of drugs before it be allowed. 

Thirdly, we don•t think that the bill has been strong 
enough in requiring the Commissioner of Labor if you go 
that route to identify the most reliable methodology 
available in the urine testing area, and to prohibit any job 
action unless that methodology is utilized. Third, the bill 
must provide for confidentiality regarding the records of 
employees• drug testing. 

Fourth, employees should have the right -- which is 
not in this bill -- to challenge the results of any abuse test 
this is not in compliance with the statute or regulations 
promulgated thereunder. Right now, all that happens is a 
possible $500 civil penalty to an employer and, note, the 
worker who•s been fired has no rights under this statute -- no 
right to get their job back, no right to back pay even if the 
screening was wrong. so that you haven•t really given any 
protection to workers if you don • t give them the right to 
challenge the results, to challenge the methodology, to 
challenge the chain of custody, before they • re booted out on 
their rear end with a family that has no money. And now 
you•re talking about people without any money, and destroying 
families when you take people out of jobs. 

As I said in my letter. we are opposed to urine 
testing, but as I • ve said to you today we recognize that much 
that•s in this bill. particularly if some other provisions 
were added. would be an advance over what currently exists, 
particularly in the private workplace. 

While we believe that we will do okay in the courts 
as we•re litigating in the public sector, it•s much more 
difficult since, for example, the Fourth Amendment to the 
Constitution. while it provides some protection to pubic 
workers against unreasonable searches and seizures -- which is 
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what I consider these to be it does not apply in the 
private sector. So, if I were to suggest that if there's any 
import here it's the import to that question of the private 
sector. Not only address the methodology of urine testing. 
address the question of whether or not an employer should be 
allowed to take action based on what an employee may do on 
their vacation. If an employer runs into an employee in 
Jamaica and that person is standing on the street corner with 
a bunch of Rastafarians. smoking a marijuana cigarette. should 
that be a basis for firing the worker thereafter? And you 
must remember that marijuana is the drug that stays in the 
system -- or the evidence of marijuana stays in the system for 
the longest period of time. Your heroin user, apparently one 
or two days maximum; cocaine user. one or two days. maximum. 
The largest group of people who are going to be swept into 
this hysteria are people who use marijuana. which I think as a 
society we've recognized is one of the least dangerous of the 
drugs which we have prohibited, and certainly less of a 
problem to industry than the problem of alcoholism. 

So, I would commend the Committee for looking at this 
problem. which is a very serious one; for at tempting to set 
some standards; and for attempting to provide some protection 
to workers, but not nearly going far enough, even in the 
spirit that the Commit tee seeks to achieve, no less what we 
believe -- which is that it should be prohibited. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Jeff, you surely provided a 
great balance on.this program here today. I want you folks to 
know that I had the pleasure of doing a T.V. program with Jeff 
Fogel and with Doctor Mark Powell, and you can imagine I 
didn't have to talk too much. (laughter) 

MR. FOGEL: 
about that. 

My mother and father used to complain 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Have you got a copy of that 
letter for me? (affirmative response from unknown speaker) 
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MR. FOGEL: 
ASSEMBLYMAN 

If there are no questions--
LITTELL: Well, let me just ask. Does 

anyone have any questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Just-- I want to point out one 

thing. As a result of your letter, I think a number of the 
amendments that we've already prepared address, to some 
degree, the issues that you raised in your letter. I think we 
may need to go into them further. I thought your presentation 
was excellent in terms of giving us a perspective in terms of 
individual rights and liberties regarding it. 

I just really have one question for you. Do you want 
to see us move forward in this area, or do you think we ought 
to let eight men and one woman on the New Jersey Supreme Court 
ultimately decide this issue? 

MR. FOGEL: Only six men and one woman. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Oh. 
MR. FOGEL: It's eight men and one woman on the 

United States Supreme Court. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yes, six men and one woman on the 

New Jersey Supreme Court. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: He's a lawyer. 
MR. FOGEL: No, that was unfair on my part. I 

apologize. But, you know, as somebody litigating civil 
liberties issues, I 'rn always thinking --
be going State courts or Federal courts? 
sort of get used to knowing the numbers. 

you know, should we 
And, you know, you 

ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: My question is, do you think the 
Legislature ought to move to f i 11 the gap in this area, in 
relationship to the private sector, or ought we to wait out 
that laborious process of having the Supreme Court decide? I 
don't want judges to decide this issue, to be honest with you. 

MR. FOGEL: Well--
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I think it's incumbent upon us to 

do it. 
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MR. FOGEL: Certainly, in the public sector you can't 
avoid having judges decide the definition of the Fourth 
Amendment with respect to public employees. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right. Cases are there and apply 
to them. 

MR. FOGEL: I can tell you my real concern is for 
workers in the private sector, unrepresented by labor 
organizations, because in your typical labor contract, for 
example, nobody-- Or, first off, you have the problem that 
employers should be obligated to bargain over this change in 
the conditions in employment -- a new requirement that workers 
subject themselves to urine tests. I think the courts will 
find that. 

Secondly, in most union contracts you will find what 
we think is the appropriate standard to be determined -- used 
in determining discipline, which is "just cause." And nearly 
all arbitrators, as you probably know, who use just cause 
define it as "that which can be proven to impact on job 
performance." Most arbitrators will find that the urine 
tests, since they measure evidence of past usage they don't 
measure how much was used, nor even whether or not you were 
intoxicated -- certainly don't demonstrate intoxication on the 
job, and don't prove just cause. 

So, my concern is primarily for the people who have 
contacted us, which are people in the private sector, 
unrepresented by labor organizations, who right now have no 
protection whatso~ver and who are the most subject to abuse. 

I feel bad for the New Jersey Transit worker who's 
been fired on the bad test. I feel bad for the postal 
worker. We're litigating those cases. I have some confidence 
that we '11 win them. I •m most concerned about the private 
sector employees, unrepresented by labor unions. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Assemblyman Azzolina? 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How about the great number of 
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people that are abusing themselves, abusing the employers, and 
abusing other employees? I • ve gone though this in business. 
I think people are very abusive, and we need to do this to 
protect not only them, but to protect other employees. And 
I'm for rehabilitation if they want to rehabilitate first, but 
most of them don • t want to rehabilitate. They just want to 
keep abusing, and we•re going to take that-- Well, right now, 
it•s out there so much that, yes, maybe somebody will -- such 
as the transit worker and so forth -- have to litigate it. 
But you can•t let this just keep going on, and on, and on. 
It's crazy what•s happening out there. It's all over the 
United States now. It • s too prevalent, and we • ve got to stop 
it somehow. 

MR. FOGEL: You see. I don • t think anybody questions 
the right and responsibility of the employer in the public or 
private sector to be looking at employees for questions of 
productivity and safety, but the question is what methodology 
do you allow? Do you assume everybody is guilty and require 
them to prove they're innocent? And observe then -- recall --
what's going to have to happen then is you go into a room, you 
have to urinate, and somebody has to observe your genitals as 
you urinate in order to make sure that you • re not slipping 
some other urine into that bottle. All right? 

Now the question is, why not go into their homes and 
look for evidence of drug usage? There is a limit to--
There's a question here of human dignity, and there•s a limit 
to which I think ·you can allow people • s bodies to be invaded 
without cause, and that's what's going on today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well, I resent being stopped 
also on the highways, in mass, but, yet, they have to do it to 
catch the drunken drivers. I resent having to wear a seat 
belt. I don•t wear a seat belt okay? (reaction from 
audience) We 11, 1 is ten, if you • re going to regulate--
(laughter) Well, I don't mind saying it. 
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MR. FOGEL: Assemblyman l''oy is a lawyer, he might 
tell you -- advise you otherwise. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: We resent a lot of things in 
life. We resent an awful lot of things. But this is the most 
damaging to the human body and to other individuals, drugs 
the use of drugs -- and we have to do whatever we have to do 
to stop it. 

If one individual is going to be wrongly accused, 
then defend it in court. I feel sorry for that individual. 
But if we can stop 100 people, or 1000 people, and somehow one 
gets caught in the web, it 1 S going to happen. Then we have to 
defend that individual some other way, but let 1 S stop it. 

MR. FOGEL: You see, the question that comes up in my 
mind--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: I can 1 t tell when somebody is 
taking drugs most of the time. They 1 re pathological liars. 
I 1 Ve gone through this, plenty of it. They 1 re pathological 
liars, and you just can 1 t tell. And you 1 ve got to find it. 
Like the military said, it was 27%; it 1 s down to 9%. Boy, if 

we can get that down to 9% in society 
to do it, no matter what. 

or less we ought 

MR. FOGEL: But, wait. Nobody told me when I was 
born that I was enlisting in the United States Army. That 1 s a 
choice you make to enlist in the Army, with a recognition of 
all of the rights of an individual citizen that you lose in 
that regard. We should not be treating our entire citizenry 
as if they were ~rivates in the United States Army. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Then let 1 S not stop people at 
the bridges, like they 1 re going to do on what? -- the 
George Washington Bridge. 

MR. FOGEL: I couldn 1 t be more in agreement with you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Let 1 S not stop all these 

people. 
MR. FOGEL: No, we should observe people, and when we 
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can observe the malfunctioning of people in their car--
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well, you know, out of 1000 

people stopped at random checks, I think it was like 30, 
maybe, arrested for drunk driving. 

MR. FOGEL: Correct. So, 9700 (sic) were 
inconvenienced in order to identify 30. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well, that's going to happen 
here too. 

MR. FOGEL: But every time we have a social problem, 
are we going to throw out the values of this society? 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: I've got 1300 employees. I'd 
venture to say if you tested every one of them-- I haven't 
tested anybody yet, but I'd venture to say you're going to 
find so that are on drugs, maybe more -- maybe more -- and 
those people are very damaging to the business, to the assets, 
and to the other employees, and they're even pushey to other 
employees. 

MR. FOGEL: If you had an employee who was very 
trusted and reliable--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: I can't catch him. I'm trying. 
MR. l''OGEL: If you had an employee in a high level 

position who was a very trusted and worthy employee, and you 
found out from a urine screen that he or she used marijuana, 
would you fire him? 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: No, I would take another test, 
and I would try to rehabi 1 i tate them. 
do. 

That's what I want to 

MR. FOGEL: Okay, but right now those workers are 
being fired, not based on their work performance. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well, I'd try to rehabilitate. 
MR. FOGEL: This law doesn't protect them from being 

fired. It says there will be a penalty against the employee. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: It will. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Yeah, but you don't want any 
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testing at all. 
MR. FOGEL: No. this law doesn't protect them. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Not in its present form. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: But you don't want to test 

them at all. 
MR. FOGEL: I don't believe they should be tested 

because it doesn't prove anything that you can take cognizance 
of. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Then let's not test anybody. 
MR. FOGEL: But on the other hand. I can tell you I 

have appeared in courts where we've had trials of people 
charged with being under the inf 1 uence of drugs. which is a 
crime in New Jersey. and doctors have testified. and courts 
have found people guilty beyond a reasonable doubt of being 
under the influence of a drug without using urine tests. as 
extraordinary as that may seem. And we've been doing it for 
decades. So that the scientific nature of these tests. which 
has only come into force recently in a cheap method. is not 
~=;ine gua non of making of determining drug usage on the 
job. or dealing with it. WE: can observe people. and you can 
observe people's motor functions are impaired and. for 
whatever reason. you deal with it as an employer. 

If they're taking antibiotics, which is legal. 
they're still impaired and you may want to do something about 
it. I'm just as concerned about the pilot who's taking 
antibiotics or antihistamines as I am about the pilot who's 
using cocaine because they're both impaired. One of them is 
using an illegal substance. and one of them is using a legal 
substance. but they're both a danger to me. 

so. the question is: Are we on a moral campaign or 
are we on a legitimate campaign to identify a problem that we 
have a right to look at without violating individual rights 
and liberties? We can't throw out the values that make 
America great by saying we '11 solve a social problem. You 
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don't have a major social problem in much of the totalitarian 
societies of the world with drugs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well, under your theory we • d 
better get rid of a lot of laws we now have. 

MR. FOGEL: Well, I've been here arguing that an 
awful lot. (laughter} 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Assemblyman Genova? 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Are you against all methods of 

drug testing -- your organization? 
MR. FOGEL: Well, it's strange. The most accurate 

form of drug testing would be the blood test. If you were to 
test a worker that you had reason to believe was under the 
influence of a drug, if you used a blood test, that would give 
you an indication of whether or not the drug was in their 
bloodstream at the time and, therefore, acting on their brain. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Would you support that method? 
MR. FOGEL: Well see, now your balancing. Obviously, 

as Doctor Powell pointed out, there's a reluctance to use 
blood tests because of how intrusive it is sticking a 
needle in somebody's arm and extracting blood. Now there the 
problem isn't with the test; it's with the intrusive nature of 
the test. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: If it was socially accepted, 
would you accept it -- your organization? 

MR. r'OG~L: No. I think we would accept a test that 
wasn't that intrusive that could give the same results as to 
current impairment on.the job, based on reasonable cause. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Give me an example. 
MR. FOGEL: Well, I don't think that the scientific 

community has given us that test yet, unfortunately. 
MR. FOY: Brain waves. In Joe's report, there's one 

way. They plug your head into a thing and if you have a dippy 
brain wave, like probably at least 120 members of the 
Legislature-- (laughter) 
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MR. FOGEL: For example, we don • t have any problem 
with the use of the Breathalyzer which measures that very 
question in an inobtrusive way. And we don't have any problem 
with it on the highways. We think it should be used. It's a 
good device. It's a reliable device. And, you know. it•s 
accurate as to the current question, which is: •• Is this 
driver under the influence?" -- not did they drink three days 
ago. Are they drinking now and, therefore, a danger to us? 
So, the Breathalyzer works well. If we had a device like 
that, I think we would feel differently. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: How would you protect the 
confidentiality of it? 

MR. FOGEL: In the work force? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: Yes. 
MR. FOGEL: Well. you've got two factors. On the one 

hand, many employers. if well advised by a lawyer, will keep 
it confidential because if they make a mistake and the 
employees dec ide to sue. they may have some 1 iabi 1 i ty there. 
But I think what you've got to do is make some penalties for 
the disc lo·sure of this information. I think that's going to 
be the only way that you're going to protect, because some of 
the employers-- I can tell you this from working in the lie 
detector area. The lie detector. where an employer has 
viola ted our law. they get fined $50. There are many 
employers who are willing to spend $50 for the right to use a 
lie detector. and there may be employers willing to get rid of 
an employee for the cost of the $500 that's in this bill 
because the employee is a troublemaker -- a union organizer or 
some other kind of troublemaker. Five hundred dollars is 
cheap to get rid of them. And they can rest on this 
proposition of the urine testing. and it's not going to be 
assailable before the Nat iona 1 Labor Relations Board because. 
really, what they are firing the person for is union activity 
in a non-union shop. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: could we permit the 

individual to go to a private physician after 
test? 

the original 

MR. FOGEL: To have another test done? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: Yes. 
MR. FOGEL: Well. I mean anything that you do adds on 

either another test confirmatory tests are obviously 
necessary -- or it gives the employee the right to have their 
own test do.ne to protect against some of the potential for 
abuse. It only adds to the protect ion of workers here. no 
doubt about it. No doubt about it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: In the City of Plainfield there 

was a recent case where they dismissed 16 firemen and four or 

five policemen. and the mayor of the town objected to not only 

urine involvement. but the involvement of several other 
organizations -- the FMBA. the PBA. of course -- because the 
mayor felt it certainly was not in the best interest of the 
community to have these people reinstated as quickly as you 
wanted them to. Do you feel that might be a case. especially 
with police and fire people who occupy extremely sensitive 
positions. that this type of testing should be in place? 

MR. FOGEL: Well. can I say -- because I shared this 
with Mayor Taylor -- we were -- have been on the same side of 
the fence many times as well. The first case I ever worked on 
when I was in law school was in 1967. You may recall that 
there were civil disturbances all over North Jersey. including 
Plainfield. Ther~ was a robbery at a gun factory in a nearby 
town to Plainfield. and it was thought that many of those guns 
might be in the black community and being used. You know. if 
you'll recall. the result of that was a wholesale search of 
100 homes in the black community by State Pol ice. Nationa 1 
Guard. and local police ransacking through homes looking 
for those guns. Not a single gun was found. And I try to 
remind Mayor Taylor. who had been an opponent of that. "Well. 
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if in fact the information was accurate. that was a very 
dangerous and explosive situation. and why didn•t that justify 
the random searching of homes?" He disagreed then. 

Now he • s the mayor. He thinks he should be able to 
search the urine of the fire fighters. Now you know what 
happened in that case. They came in. They didn't trust their 
own police department. They hired a team of private 
investigators. They locked all the doors to the fire house. 
The woke up a 11 the fire fighters. and while the private 
investigators observed. required them to urinate into a 
bottle. Now we still don•t know what test was used. how good 
the chain of custody was. and the nature of controls that 
existed at the laboratory as well. We know none of those 
things. But there was no proof that any one of these fire 
fighters or police officers who were discharged had ever had 
any problem on the job. 

Now, there•s something that distinguishes police 
officers, perhaps, from other workers, which is that since we 
employ them to enforce the law, we expect of them a higher 
standard of conduct off the job as well as on the job. That 
does 
that 

not. still. 
off-the-job 

justify searching their home for evidence of 
conduct. Still, you•ve got that Fourth 

Amendment there. 
It•s always interesting to me 

suggesting the judges be urine tested. 
that nobody is 
After all, the 

integrity of the law is more dependent on the conduct of 
judges than it is on police officers, and I haven•t even heard 
about anybody talking about legislators being given urine 
testing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: I•ll be glad to. 
MR. FOY: I•ll voluntarily test for drugs; I will not 

test for gin or beer. 
MR. FOGEL: Well, I •m not sure which may impair the 

legislative process more. (laughter) That may be a question 
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I 
I 

Ill 

of judgment. 

So 
standard of 

I would say 
conduct from 

that you could expect 
police officers off the 

a higher 
job. but 

still. the question is what methods to use to investigate it; 
and. to me. it's like requiring strip searches as they walk 
into the job. or looking into their homes for evidence of what 
they did off the job. 

If you observe 
officer is arrested for 

a police 
using drugs 

officer--
off the 

If 
job. 

a police 
you might 

expect him to be fired, as opposed to. let • s say. a clerical 
worker who might be arrested for possession of marijuana. You 
wouldn't expect that person to be fired very different 
standards. But the question involved in urine testing is. are 
you going to allow wholesale. random searches of their bodies 
without cause as a means to determine whether or not they • re 
violating the law outside of the job. and I say it's no 
different than going into their homes; it's only a little more 
efficient, but it still violates the sanctity that the Fourth 
Amendment protects. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Let's test judges. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Assemblyman Miller. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I can't say that I agree with 

you l00%but you certainly shed some light on the whole problem. 
MR. FOGEL: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I appreciate it. 
MR. FOGEL: That's the best I can hope for. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you. Next we have Bob 

Yackel. Legislative Liaison for the New Jersey AFL-CIO. 
B 0 B Y A c K E L: Good afternoon, gentlemen. I • s good to 
see you again after all day. 

The ind i sc r imina te and rand om use of dangerous drugs 
in our society has become the scourge of the 1980s. It • s 
creating havoc and untold suffering our homes. schools. and 
the workplace. It is no longer a question of whether tough 
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measures should be instituted to stern this creeping and 
prevading (sic) menace. but rather when and what form these 
measures will take. 

In the workplace, some of the largest public and 
private employers have already implemented various drug 
testing programs for their employees. and we believe it is 
safe to say drug testing will only increase and intensify in 
the years ahead. New Jersey 
regulations or standards for drug 
courts have been anything but 
constitutionality of testing. 

cur rent ly has no uniform 
testing of workers. and the 

consistent in ruling about 

Such an unstructured environment does not bode well 
for the continued maintenance of civil rights and liberties. 
With this in mind, the New Jersey State AFL-CIO supports, with 
reservations. enactment of legislation designed to establish 
uniform statewide drug testing standards and regulations. and 
stringently defined conditions and tests under which the tests 
may be conducted. 

Bas ica 11 y, the State AFL- c 10 supper ts the concept of 
drug testing and rehabilitation as a means of protecting those 
not on drugs from becoming the innocent victims of 
drug-related accidents or mistakes. and 
fulfilling society's obligation to those 
drugs in the workplace. 

as a means 
already relying 

of 
on 

Drug abuse by 
productivity. lessens the 
increases the risk to the 

employees reduces efficiency and 
qua 1 i ty of goods and services. and 
public and fellow employees through 

unsafe operating procedures and poor workmanship. However. 
organized labor can only support drug testing so long as it 
does not erode basic worker rights and becomes as much a 
threat to our society as that posed by drug abuse itself. We 
cannot overemphasize the need to enhance guidelines and 
testing procedures that promote rehabi 1 ita t ion. not 
discipline. and ensure that the tests are equitable and the 
results are valid. 

45 



II" II' 

You must guarantee as much as humanly possible that 
no careers or reputations will be jeopardized by false 
positive results. 

While we agree with the overall thrust of A-2850, the 
State AFL-CIO would urge this Committee to consider and adopt 
several amending provisions that further address legitimate 
rights and concerns of workers, specifically: 

1) The quality and type of permissible testing 
should be rigidly defined in this act to prevent the 
possibility of inaccurate tests being used. We have read 
reports that up to 66\ of the tests administered nationwide 
are returned with false positive results, a situation that it 
totally unacceptable. 

2) 

test 
If a first test on a worker shows positive, a 

administered for second should automatically be 
verification. If the second test is also positive, the 
employee should then be referred to rehabilitation without 
disciplinary action, unless he or she refused the treatment or 
fails to complete the assigned course of action. 

3) Section five of the bill should be amended and 
revised to read, 11 probable cause, 11 instead of 11 reasonable 
suspicion" in order to comply with Section 2C of the State • s 
criminal code. 

4) Any and all mandatory drug testing should be 
prohibited in New Jersey until minimum standards, as 
promulgated by this State, are firmly in place. 

5) Strict confidentiality must be maintained in all 
aspects of the drug testing process. 

6) We ask that the proposed advisory committee on 
employee drug testing be instructed to make a final report to 
the Commissioner of Labor within nine months instead of 15 
months, as presently suggested. We are facing a crisis 
situation both in New Jersey and throughout the entire nation, 
and action must be expedited concerning this matter. 
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New Jersey has the opportunity to take the lead. 
nationally. in establishing adequate and accurate standards 
for drug abuse testing in the workplace. We believe that 
these amendments, a long with existing provisions in the bi 11 
to allow employees and unions to establish collective 
bargaining 
prohibit 

agreements 
drug testing 

to either 
altogether. 

strengthen standards or 
will provide sufficient 

civil liberty protections while creating a viable anti-drug 
instrument to benefit society and the workplace. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you, Mr. Yackel. We're 
not going to get into any more questioning because we'll never 
get on with the testimony today, and I want to accommodate 
everybody who came here. 

MR. YACKEL: I think that's as concise and as 
informative as I can make it, as our position. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: We will consider every one of 
your points. Thank you for your support. 

Okay, next we have Pat Whitmer of the New Jersey 
State Chamber of Commerce. 

UNKNOWN SPEAKER: I think he's stepped out in the 
hall. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Oh, okay. Well, let's go to 
the next person on the list, Mike Nolan, New Jersey School 
Boards attorney. 
J. M I c H A E L N 0 L A N, J R. : Well, I'm not a New 
Jersey School Boards Attorney. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I'm sorry. 
MR. NOLAN: But that's okay, I like that idea. 
Thank you very much for having me here, and 

particularly Jim Harkness who supplied me with a lot of 
information regarding your deliberations on this bill. 

I'm hoping to give you a general overview of the 
legal parameters involving this. I'm in a unique position. .r 
don't come here to advocate anything. I don't represent 
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anybody. I was just asked by Jim, because I've had some 
experience in this field on both sides of the fence, to give 
the Committee some legal parameters that you could draft your 
bill with, and leave those decisions up to you. 

I think l' m going to echo some of the comments which 
have been made by some of the other individuals, and basically 
I think the purpose of my remarks is . to set forth a way so 
that you avoid potential lawsuits, so that this bill doesn• t 
create a l~t of useless and needless litigation. Being a 
litigator, I guess I just cut my fees for the next year, but 
so be it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I was just going to say how 
useless and needless C!in it be if it's profitable? 

MR. NOLAN: Right. I'll still go with my original 
remark. 

I think it • s clear to everyone that • s been reading 
the newspapers that the general law in this area is 
unsettled. I think you•ve heard from the ACLU regarding their 
lawsuits and the fact that they're still out there in the 
courts resolving these questions. 

I think the case 
Committee some guidelines. 
though there are decisions 

law, though, does give 
I think you can look to it, 

on both sides of the fence, 
assist yourselves in drafting this legislation. 

this 
even 

to 

First and foremost, I think the Committee has already 
recognized the fact that it • s not necessarily a question of 
public or private; it's really a question of what the person 
does in their job. It • s a question of whether a person is 
working in a safety-related field or a non-safety-related 
field. I think you can have different standards, and let me 
give you an example. 

You call for, in 
testing -- quite correctly, 

some of your 
I think, in 

amendments, random 
1 ight of the recent 

case law. You can have random testing if you're involved with 
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a person who's in a safety area. I think to the extent that 
you try to put random testing in other areas, I don't believe 
the courts are going to uphold that. 

Specifically, in reference to the bill as it's 
presently drafted -- and I appreciate the fact that this is 
going to be redrafted, and there's going to be significant 
modifications to it in the future I think you should 
consider several issues which are going to be important. 

One, in terms of your definition of employees, there 
are some interesting cases which deal with the question of 
whether or not subcontractors are employees. I think that's 
something you should look at. I think it's something you 
should consider. 

In terms of retesting, I quite frankly in any 
context, private or public think you'd have to have a 
retesting requirement. I think that second test, whether for 
the medical reasons that Doctor Powell puts forth or some of 
the private interests which have been put forth, is 
necessary. And, I think, in 1 ight of some of the dec is ions 
which are coming down -- not necessarily in New Jersey -- I 
took the time to look at the case law throughout the country 
on this, along with my poor associate sitting in the back of 
the room who had to do that. 
did it. 

I'm not going to pretend that I 

But in any event, in looking at cases throughout the 
country, retesting is something which other states are looking 
at very closely and I think that it's fair to say that it 1 s 
going to become a requirement, and it should be a requirement 
in this bill. 

In terms of it 1 s been mentioned -- the custody, 
I 1 Ve spent up to seven days proving chain of custody, as an 
assistant prosecutor in drug cases. It sounds easy. It 
sounds like just keeping track of the samples. I think this 
will have to be strengthened in that area. Chain of custody 

49 



I "II' 

is a very. very difficult thing to do. and if it isn't done 
properly all of your testing procedures are essentially 
worthless. 

Furthermore, in terms of chain of custody-- I know 
that Hoffman LaRoche was here but, at the same time, not every 
lab that's doing this testing -- and I've seen these cases --
is really well qualified. I'm not quite sure as to what the 
State standards are for the labs. and I'm not quite sure 
industry is going to reach out and always utilize the best 
procedures. So, consequently, I think you have to look at the 
question of the reliability of. not the testing because I'm 
not going to get into that -- but, rather. are the people who 
are doing it qualified to do what they're supposed to be doing? 

I think also. you mentioned in your amendments the 
confidentiality. I think that's absolutely critical. It 
would open up numerous-- If you do this. it would certainly 
open up-- If there's not a confidential requirement in there, 
you're going to certainly create numerous litigations. 

I also think it's important because it's been brought 
up in other cases that these tests can't be utilized for 
criminal prosecution. 
involving Plainfield. 

In the Federal District Court case 
I think that was part of the 

discussion. More importantly. in cases which have gone up to 
other Supreme Courts around the country. utilization by 
private employers of drug testing which then result in 
referrals to the local county prosecutor -- or something along 
those 1 ines have not been looked on with favor at all. 
Quite frankly. they've been knocked down for that reason. 

In conjunction with that. testing has been utilized 
to discover other possible medical problems an employee might 
have: They're subject to seizure. There's an AIDS case out 
in California; they were testing for drug usage and found out 
that the person had 
also. I think. would--

AIDS. and the person was fired. That 
I think you can guard against that at 
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this stage and avoid a lot of problems by addressing that 
issue. 

I just have a couple of quest ions about the bills, 
and I 1 m sure you can -- about the amendments -- address these 
at another time and place. 

But in terms of rehabilitation, who pays for it? 
Does the employee get paid during that point in time? I •ve 
set up some of these plans for companies that are doing drug 
testing, and these ~r,.. we 1 Ve addressed in the 
plans t' corporations within the 
State of ('i ~ c- nc.I<P' .. t.: . the Committee may want 
to addref .f/C· -- /\ ( ,- ' ~

I ~ ( ; I '-· 

/~(', (.~c-t ' ,, 
to consid 
any conte:ll 
this bill 
have been 
in New Jer 
backwards 
individuals. 
procedure in 
the courts. 

I think you might want 
' think the employee, in 

procedure in order for 
11ents which the courts 

h. it 1 s any secret here 
Js times, have bent over 

.entele on behalf of the 
to need some kind of appeal 

.-~u ~nis bill running into problems in 

lt 1 s also a very, very-- I think it 1 s a very common 
procedure that you 1 re seeing throughout the country that an 
employee who tests positive and has a second test there 1 S 

some kind of appeal procedure. The employee can have some 
kind of hearing.· Now, how you do it? There 1 s a whole bunch 
of different ways you can do it; but I think you have to 
consider that because it 1 S a very important issue. And I say 
these are important issues, not from my perspective 
necessarily but, rather, from the perspective of the various 
courts that have dealt with this issue in other jurisdictions. 

One simple thing which I think helps both the 
employer and the employee is to have a verification procedure. 
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I know that you have notice procedures. Like before 
you'd be subject to testing. you would have to have-- you'd 
have to be notified of that. That•s in the amendments. But 
to have a situation where the employee. in fact. is made aware 
of those procedures and signs something -- a statement to that 
effect eliminates potential questions about. "Well. I 
wasn•t sure that I was being tested. and I really didn't know 
what it was all about." 

And then. just a last question because it has come up 
in previous testimony -- or a last comment. really -- in terms 
of the race question. There • s some interesting case law in 
New York State where it has been brought up -- the fact that 
certain racial minorities tend to test higher than others for 
whatever reasons. In that particular case. involving a bus 
driver. the allegation was made that members of the black race 
are more likely to be heroin addicts and the testing wasn • t 
appropriate because it had discriminated somehow. Those kinds 
of challenges have been knocked down uniformly throughout the 
country. I just tell you that. I don•t know if it•s a real 
concern or not. I just heard it and I•m familiar with those 
cases because I had one. 

But in any event. I would hope that those comments 
are helpful to you. In terms of. I guess the last issue I 1 d 
like to address -- the type of testing that you may go with 
as I said before. if it•s an employee working in a 
safety- related area in a nuclear power plant. driving a 
bus. whether private or public -- I think you can have random 
testing. and I think random testing will meet the requirements 
of the law if it•s a safety related part of their work. 

However. if it•s a person who cleans the bus at 
night. I don•t believe there•s any way that you can have 
random testing. I think you•re going to have to have 
reasonable suspicion. I think reasonable suspicion and 
probable cause are terms which may -- while it may be correct 
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to say to the lay person, they may have different meanings 
within the context of the law, in this State at least. Under 
terms which have been commonly used, there are books and books 
with cases in them explaining what those terms mean, with 
hundreds of examples. And I think this Committee should stick 
with terminology which the courts in this State are familiar 
with and which have been interpreted, so that we don•t come up 
with some kind of new term, because a new term, I don•t think, 
isn't going to be very helpful if the courts, at some point in 
time, have to interpret what this Committee was talking about. 

Obviously, if there are any quest ions, r• d be happy 
to answer them or, if it's more convenient, if Jim wants to 
give me a call at some future time, I'd be more than happy to 
assist you, Mr. Chairman. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you very much, Mr. 
Nolan. You said that there was a situation where companies 
already have these plans in place and one of the problems that 
we've been trying to de a 1 with is, how can we deal with a 
company that already has a plan for testing in place that both 
the employees and the company find satisfactory -- whether it 
be negotiated or implemented? We normally do things like that 
with a grandfather clause right now. Do you think that 
becomes discriminatory to everybody else? 

MR. NOLAN: No, I don't believe so. I think that--
I heard some statistics before from Doctor Powell as to how 
many people have plans in existence. I think they're a little 
bit low but, in any event, I think you could do that. 

At the same time, Mr. Chairman, I would think that 
the present language here which talks about things at a 
minimum might be helpful. I mean, I think at a minimum you 
should have certain things, particularly when you talk about 
retesting. I think that's absolutely essential. I don • t know 
of any plans which have been worked out -- that I've worked on 
at least that don't call for a lot of the things that I 
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spoke about today and a lot of the things which you included 
within your amendments, because I think the amendments went a 
long way toward putting this bill in a situation where it 
could survive and would not be subject to a real challenge. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Great. And on reasonable 
suspicion or probable cause, do you think that we need to 
identify that further by saying that there'd be a 
preponderance of evidence, or some term 1 ike that, so that 
there isn't a case of somebody walking in one morning with a 
gruff attitude and upsetting their boss, who than says, "Well, 
he's an irrational person. I'm going to have him tested?" 

MR. NOLAN: Well, I would not think that example 
and I •ve heard that example -- would rise to the level of 
reasonable suspicion. In the criminal context, where these 
terms are normally utilized, there's a pretty clear definition 
which lawyers can argue about until they're all blue in the 
face but, at the same time, I think there are some definitions 
and examples that can be utilized. 

I think anything you can do to clarify it would be 
helpful; however, I think in the bill, already, there are some 
concrete examples of what reasonable suspicion is to this 
Committee. I think that's very helpful. 

I would be concerned about the hypothetical you put 
forth. I'm not so sure that is necessarily going to be 
reality though. You know, I'm sure that's going to happen. 
I'm absolutely sure it's going to happen. I'm sure it's going 
to be because there are grudges that people will be 
tested, or whatever. But I don't have the great fear about it 
which has been expressed before. 

I think most of the times in the situations I •ve 
seen, the testing has been done by responsible people who are 
concerned about other people. And I think that some of the--
I heard the horror stories about the bus driver, and I'm sure 
that's for real. At the same time, I think that in any 
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situation you • re going to have isolated instances where the 
wrong thing happens. as set forth in your hypothetical. But I 
don't think that this Committee has to do a lot more on that 
issue because I think you •ve already made efforts to define 
it. I think you might want to refine that a little. with some 
additional language. but I think you • re certainly moving in a 
direction which will meet the legal -- you know. fall within 
the legal parameter. and that's all I'm here for. I have a 
general idea where the legal parameters are. and whatever you 

do within those leg a 1 parameters. I think that • s. up to your 
legal discretion. That's why you're the Legislature. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you very much. 
MR. NOLAN: Thank you very much. It's a pleasure 

being here. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Pat Witmer? 

P A T R I C K W H I T M E R: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. and 
members of the Committee. My 
Director of Legislative Affairs 
Chamber of Commerce. 

name is Patrick Whitmer. 
for the New Jersey State 

The State Chamber appreciates the opportunity to work 
with the Chairman and Assemblyman Foy, prime sponsors of 
A-2 8 50, toward the goa 1 of developing a uniform standard for 
the use of drug abuse tests in New Jersey. If we had our will 
on this legislation, Mr. Chairman, based on the large amount 
of testimony which has already been presented from both sides. 
which was very strong, it would be our will that an advisory 
committee would be established that would study this issue for 
a year and recommend legislation to this Committee. and we 
would hope the Committee would then follow up on that 
recommendation with any proper legislation which would be 
recommended. 

However. in the absence of--
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Do you have to take a year? 
MR. WHITMER: Six months to a year. We think it 
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would take quite a while to adequately study the issue in the 
absence of such legislation. 

The State Chamber believes the abi 1 i ty of employers 
to effectively test workers for illicit drug use. and properly 
deal with the results of those tests. is of utmost importance 
to the State Chamber of Commerce. 

We believe when the Legislature is willing to provide 
immunity to employers for accidents at the workplace that 
produce liability law suits -- which may be directly related 
to illicit drug use by their employees -- then restrictions on 
the ability of employers to administer drug tests should be 
considered by this Legislature. 

The responsibility to provide a safe workplace and to 
produce safe products for public demand, in some instances. 
requires the screening of employees and potential employees at 
the workplace. 

The State Chamber supports the amendments proposed by 
Assemblyman Foy, which would establish an advisory committee 
on employee drug testing, with the exception of the proposed 
amendment to page 2, Section 8. We believe in order to give 
sufficient time to the Department of Labor and the proposed 
advisory committee to review their findings and proposed 
comprehensive regulations, the effective date of the act 
should be at least 90 days following the final report of the 
advisory committee to the Commissioner. 

If I •m not mistaken, at the present time the 
Commissioner of Labor would be required to develop and 
implement regulations prior to -- at least six months prior to 
receiving the final report by this advisory committee. we•d 
like to see that effective date amended. 

In the interest of public safety, the State Chamber 
believes certain employer/employee categories must be exempted 
from the proposed regulations. These should include public 
safety officers and all high-risk industries. The exempted 
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areas should be determined by statute and by the Commissioner 
upon the recommendations of the advisory committee, and I 
believe that proposal is addressed by the proposed amendments 
to the section 6(a), which were provided to us. 

The legislation proposes to regulate drug testing in 
the workplace. The long standing procedures of many companies 
for pre-employment screening. however, should not be 
interfered with. Page 2, sect ion 4, 1 ine 3, should therefore 
be amended by deleting the words. "or job applicants." 

The goal of A-2850 is to establish a uniform standard 
for drug testing in the workplace. Once established, the 
State Chamber believes that standard should not be altered by 
agreements between an employer or employees. We believe that 
standard should be the law of the land, and no exemption 
should be provided. In the interest of protecting worker 
safety. the law should be enforced uniformly in all areas of 
employment which are not specifically exempted by statute or 
regulation. Therefore. we be 1 ieve sect ion 7 of the proposed 
legislation should be deleted. 

Regarding the amendments on treatment and counseling. 
and on the leave of absence, we believe an individual who has 
broken the law. who has threatened the safety and very life of 
a fellow worker by his use of drugs. has violated the contract 
of his employment. Such a person needs help and assistance. 
but the provisions of this bill mandate counseling and 
treatment provided by the employer as a condition for random 
testing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Would you say that agqin? 
MR. WHITMER: Certainly. The provisions of this bill 

mandate-- r•m sorry. the amendments to the bill. the proposed 
amendments. would mandate counseling and treatment. provided 
by the employer, as a condition to random testing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Do you agree with that? 
MR. WHITMER: We would disagree with that, although 
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many members of the State Chamber right now -- in fact. the 
vast majority provide counseling and treatment programs. 
and provide a leave of absence. However. in the · interest of 
smaller employers who may not be able to afford that type of 
treatment. we believe the program should be voluntary -- as it 
is right now rather than mandatory. Some employers simply 
can't afford to provide an unlimited-time leave of absence for 
employees. It could be a year or more. under the proposed 
legislation. and then you're required to rehire that employee 
when he returns. supposedly free from drug use. We would 
oppose that provision of the bill. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Oppose the provision to give 
them a leave of absence? 

MR. WHITMER: Of giving an unlimited leave of 
absence. yes. If you-- You know. if you want to amend it to 
a shorter period of time--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: 
you agree to that? 

Six months or a year. would 

MR. WHITMER: 1 think the State Chamber would 
probably have to oppose a six-month leave of absence. If you 
could consider an employee with a company with 10 
employees. whose assets cannot afford more than 10 employees. 
if one person is granted a leave of absence for six months. 
another person would have to be hired to take that person • s 
place. I mean. it's only common sense that if your assets 
cannot afford 11 employees and, yet. this bill would require 
the rehiring of ·that employee who was granted the leave of 
absence after a six-month period. you would have to keep--
You would have to have 11 employees. With that small number 
of staff. or work force 
very much affected. 

you know. the bottom line would be 

You may want to consider an exemption for companies 
with SO or fewer employees as an example -- and that may be 
something the State Chamber might want to recommend. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Yes, but even with SO or more 
employees, he may have five in this category and five in that 
category. 

MR. WHITMER: You're absolutely right. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: And he can • t afford to. You 
know, I go through-- I give a lot of time for employees to 
rehabilitate, I do. But I have a lot of people. 

MR. WHITMER: Our preference would be for a voluntary 
program whi6h would allow for employers with many employees to 
allow an unlimited leave of absence. 

We believe the threat of a job loss--
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: When you say unlimited, you 

mean years -- two years, three years? 
MR. WHITMER: Well. as the bill is written-- as the 

proposed amendments are written right now, the leave of 
absence is unlimited, yes. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: That's pretty rough too. 
MR. WHITMER: As I read it. 
We believe the threat of job loss should be enough to 

convince any employee to kick the habit. And, therefore, drug 
tests would never have to be used if that threat is there --
if the employee knows that his job, which he holds near and 
dear, is threatened by his use of illicit drugs. 

I'll close my statement by stating that the National 
Institute of Drug Abuse has issued a study which says that 
employees with drugs in their systems 
productive and three times as likely to 
another employee on the job. And so, 

are one-third less 
injure themselves or 
therefore, we would 

commend, once again, the sponsors for addressing this issue. 
We think it's one that needs to be addressed. 

The State Chamber supports the establishment of a 
uniform standard for drug abuse tests in this State, and we 
would hope that the advisory committee would be given at least 
one year to study this issue and then recommend legislation to 
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this Committee to consider. and that legislation -- hopefully 
-- will be passed and implemented at its earliest possible 
date. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How large would you recommend 
the committee be. and what kinds of people? 

MR. WHITMER: Well the committee. as proposed by 
Assemblyman Foy in his amendments. would be adequate. and I 
think that's 13 members. including eight private members --
eight public members. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: And the Department of Labor 
also? 

MR. WHITMER: Yes. I believe it includes the 
Department of Labor. and the Department of Health. and several 
other public agencies. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I might add that I was contacted by 
two groups. one wanting in and one wanting out. PERG 
basically feels that since the Department of Labor is 
represented. and they • re in and of the Department of Labor. 
it•s unnecessary for them to be on the committee. and also the 
fact that they are in effect neutral in terms of public labor 
disputes. it would be inappropriate for them to be on the 
committee. 

Civil Service has asked to come in on it since 
they're the department that deals with personnel. and I told 
them I would consider it but that it would be up to the 
Committee regarding that. If Civil Service wants in. maybe we 
should have somebody from the public employee unions in with 
respect to that. 

points. 
As far as your statements 
particularly regarding the 

go. 
issue 

you 
of 

made 
small 

some good 
employers 

and how we deal with the rehabilitation issues. and that's 
something that obviously needs to be considered. 

You did reach back into the Stone Ages when you said 
that the threat of a loss of a job ought to be enough for 
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somebody to stop taking drugs. For some people. in terms of 
the way that addiction has translated into a disease -- the 
same way alcoholism is a disease that • s like saying to 
somebody. "Well. stop having cancer because you • re going to 
lose your job if you have cancer. 11 of "Don • t be diabetic any 
more because you may lose your job if we find out you • re a 
diabetic." That kind of thinking-- I know it was a momentary 
slip. One of your brain waves just took a dip. You didn't 
really mean it. I know that. 

I wouldn't want all of the good things you had to say 
in your statement to be overwhelmed by that lunacy 

MR. WHITMER: Well. if I could add something. 
Assemblyman. other amendments which have been proposed we also 
support. which would require confirmatory tests after one 
test. And I think we would have no problem with an employer 
providing a written policy statement to his employees or 
potential employees on the use of drug tests in his workplace. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: How about the confidentiality 
issue. the other problem regarding the sealing of the records 
and. you know. non-disclosure? Do you have difficulty with 
that? 

MR. WHITMER: No, but I would add that that written 
policy statement. once made available to all employees I 
hate to s 1 ip back into the dark ages. but I think in some 
instances that might make an employee think twice. at least we 
would like to think so. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: It might be a deterrent. In 
reference to the part you brought up on counseling. a lot of 
companies can't. For instance. you know I have a lot of 
employees. I just can't afford to have a full-time counselor 
there. But what we do when we find drugs and I think this 
may be an answer is that we seek and find the various types 
of counselors. you know. through government agencies. 
hospitals. and psychiatric centers. We find all these sources 
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and we recommend these sources. that they go. Some is covered 
by insurance. Some isn 1 t 
charge very nominal fees. 
of them get rehabilitated. 

covered by insurance. Some may 
And we recommend they go. and a lot 
If they get rehabilitated. we take 

them back and we let it go for a long time. 
Some health insurance programs do cover costs and 

some don 1 t. I have my own member of my family who 
through a very. very expensive program this summer. 
because it was covered by insurance. 

went 
and 

Is that covered? There 1 s other programs that cost a 
lot less and they 1 re very good programs. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Well. 
rehabilitation. we 1 11 have to examine 
alternatives are. 

as we 
what some 

look 
of 

into 
these 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: There are a lot groups out 
there. Believe me. we 1 ve learned a lot in the last couple of 
years. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: 
something on that. 

We 1 11 see if we can 1 t develop 

All right. thank you very much. 
Next we 1 ll have John Tomeo. Chemical Workers 

Association. 
J 0 H N T 0 M E 0: Good afternoon. Assemblyman. Thank you 
for the opportunity of being here. Assemblyman LITTELL. 
Committee. and colleagues. 

I want to thank you for the opportunity of presenting 
the Chemical Workers Association 1 s position on A-2850. 
authorizing the Department of Labor to establish uniform 
standards for the use of drug abuse tests in the workplace. 

For the record. a clear statement -- I believe -- is 
necessary. The Chemica 1 Workers As soc ia tion does not support 
nor condone the use or abuse of any controlled dangerous 
substances or alcohol in the workplace. 

Speaking for over 2400 union members. we were 
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saddened that there would be in your bill the right of an 
employer to require testing or drug screening of an employee 
who showed emotional unsteadiness. Corporate policies in New 
Jersey abound now with strangely worded phrases for cause 
testing such as: 

Friction in the work group; 
Motor skill malfunctions; 
Errors; 
Forgetfulness of details; 
Carelessness about personal appearance; or 
Mood swings, etc. 
Everybody in this room would have to go down to 

Medical for a drug screen using this criteria. 
Providing all employees with a fairness doctrine 

legislation stating that everyone from the plant manager on 
down wi 11 be treated equally is essential, with no double 
standards taking place. 

Indiscriminate testing of employees with the further 
stigma of being labeled as a drug suspect is not only 
counter-productive, it alienates the employee, which we 
vehemently oppose. 

What is needed is plain language in our laws that 
everyone can know and understand. We need to throw away the 
outdated hammer-and-discipline approach and address this 
critical issue by positive, meaningful solutions that we 
believe will reach our fellow workers. 

An independent employee awareness program -- an EPA, 
if you will could be implemented with the emphasis on 
rehabi 1 ita t ion. The concept of this approach is significant 
in that it recognizes the attendant problems with and the 
awareness of substance abuse, while providing meaningful 
supportive help to all our employees and their families. 

It has been documented by the National Institute of 
Drug Abuse -- NIDA -- whether you have 10 employees or 1300 
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employees, that every dollar spent in the public and private 
sector on substantive rehabilitation, there is a $10 return to 
the employer. 

As was stated on national T.V. •s "48 Hours on Crack 
Street," by Dan Rather: "We are in a war that we simply 
cannot afford to lose." 

Gentlemen. we believe that legislation is drastically 
needed now to protect our workers and their families. 

By the way, I forgot to introduce myself. I • m Joseph 
Tomeo, Chairman of the Safety and Health Committee for the 
DuPont Chemical Workers in Salem County, and I thank you again 
for the opportunity of being here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you, we appreciate it. 
Are there any questions? (no questions) Okay. Thank you. 

Next we • 11 have Mr. Rick Engler from the Industrial 
union council rue. 
R I c K E N G L E R: Thank you for the opportunity to 
testify. My name is Rick Engler, and I am Director of 
Occupational Safety and Health for The New Jersey Industrial 
Union Council, AFL-CIO. The rue represents over 200,000 
workers in the public and private sectors. 

We start from the premise that drug addiction and 
alcoholism, both, are illnesses, and those suffering from 
these diseases need treatment not punishment. 

Labor unions have long promoted prevention and 
rehabilitation programs in the workplace and community, and 
have sponsored institutes on alcoholism, have made referrals 
to drug and alcohol treatment programs, and have established 
on-the- job treatment programs through collective bargaining. 
So, unions have a long history in this area. 

We are deeply concerned about the stepped-up efforts 
of employers, public and private alike, to use drug tests to 
screen all job applicants and all employees, or to force 
applicants and employees to submit to such tests on a random 
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basis. The rue is absolutely opposed to such testing. which 
clearly violates human rights and dignity. 

We find it most curious that when we try to negotiate 
objective medical testing programs to determine how much 
harmful mercury. lead. asbestos. or other chemicals are in our 
bodies from employer-generated workplace exposure. employers 
frequently refuse to provide such tests. Yet. employers are 
now enthusiastically testing workers for drugs where there is 
no evidence of on-the-job impairment. 

We can only conclude form this experience that the 
current wave of employer drug testing is essentially a means 
to increase management control of the work force and to reduce 
union ability to represent its membership. lt 1 S become part 
of a new tool of personnel policy and management prerogatives. 

We have the following specific comments on Assembly 
Bill 2850. In the current form-- Let me make clear. in the 
current form we do not support the bi 11. With amendments. 
it 1 s possible that we would support the bill. 

First. fundamentally we are concerned that the bill 
sanctions employer drug testing that is entirely 
inappropriate. Therefore. section 7 should be amended to 
additionally require that no employer many utilize drug 
testing without prior agreement from the collective bargaining 
representative on the overall and specific nature of the drug 
testing program. 

This is an area where we have joint interest in. 
Management and labor both have a concern that drug use be 
minimized and eliminated. and that this terrible thing that 1 s 
happening to our society be eliminated. If that 1 S the case. 
the abi 1 i ty to implement such programs ought to be based on 
labor-management cooperation. and labor-management agreement. 
and not a unilateral imposition of standards. even if based on 
minimum state standards by management. 

Not doing it this way. essentially allowing 
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management to bargain -- perhaps bargain to impasse and 
then to say later, "Well, we bargained; we informed you of the 
program: we discussed it: 11 and then to come in and essentially 
unilaterally impose some type of a drug testing program would 
not work. It would lead to decreased morale. It would lead 
to new techniques for those who are on drugs to figure out how 
to avoid tests. It would lead to friction in labor-management 
relations. There's just no point to it. So what we•re 
suggesting is, with a program that affects our families, that 
affects the community, that affects our very jobs as well as 
our health, that the requirement before there be any employer 
drug testing, is that there be a written drug testing program 
as suggested in the amendment, but, additionally, that there 
ought to be a labor-management agreement to the terms of that 
written program. 

Now it's been raised: 11 What do we do about the fact 
that most people are not represented by labor unions? 11 We 
think the Committee ought to explore at least two areas: 

One, the poss i bi 1 i ty of elected representatives from 
the non--union workers to participate in the formulation of 
that drug testing policy. 

Another idea that has been suggested is that there be 
Department of Health representatives actually present in the 
workplace to 
workplaces. 

But 
much because 

eva 1 ua te, or review drug testing in unorganized 

essentially --
I think this 

and I can't emphasize this too 
is where the most notable thing 

about the testimony that we present is that in order for 
employers to do drug testing, management and labor must first 
agree in writing on the basis for testing, test methodology, 
privacy concerns, job and income protections, and 
rehabilitation responsibilities, and that those protections 
would apply to all employees, not simply to the hourly wage 
roll -- but to be applied to management on a consistent basis. 
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Two, the definition of 11 reasonable suspicion.. in 
section 5 is far too broad. The comments from the Chamber 
about high-risk industries were quite interesting, given that 
according to employer-supplied statistics given to the u.s. 
Department of Labor, job site and injury illnesses are soaring 
in every sector of the economy. And according to the 
definition in the bill, as it stands now, that would mean that 
virtually the entire American work force could be tested 
simply because the accident rate is going up across-the-board 
in the United States under the Reagan administration's 
policies related to OSHA, and under increased changed policies 
of the American employers. 

Under the bill's definition of reasonable suspicion 
as I said, higher than average accident rates would lead 

everyone to be tested. 
Sensory or motor ski 11 rna 1 functions could mean 

anything from dropping a pencil to having a cold. Decline in 
employee productivity could easily result from management 
failure to invest in new machinery. So that if an employer 
decides to phase out a plant -- to close a plant -- which is 
an issue which the IUC has long been concerned about, and 
decides not to invest in new machinery and put capital 
investment into that facility, employee productivity does go 
down when there's not adequate investment. That would be a 
basis for testing. 

We believe in -- and share with the New Jersey Civil 
Liberties Union -~ the criteria. We support the criteria that 
there should be only trustworthy grounds to believe that the 
employee is under the influence of a controlled dangerous 
substance. And, again, we ernphas i ze that testing should only 
be permitted where there is a mutually agreed upon drug 
testing program that meets the state minimum standards. 

Three, the bill should be amended to require the 
Commissioner of Labor and the Commissioner of Health to 
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identify the most reliable testing methodology and to issue 
regulations to prohibit other methods from being used. 

Four, employee rights should be established by the 
statute, and clearly protect confident ia 1 i ty of test results 
and the right to privacy regarding tests, the right to 
challenge the test results and the methodology of the tests, 
the right not to be fired or otherwise punished for having a 
disease. 

And again. I have to comment. I mean, if certain 
employers can't afford to rehabilitate, I think we should base 
it on the same criteria that certain-- We should survey those 
employees that can't afford to get fired, and that would be a 
useful parallel. They should be the ones that clearly would 
be able to go into a rehabilitation program. 

Again. the emphasis should not be punitive but 
rehabi 1 ita t i ve. and some companies have made provisions for 
that. as the attorney who testified earlier indicated. 

We have one other area of emphasis that we really 
haven't addressed to a great degree in this hearing. and that 
is: What are the causes of drug abuse? We didn't start from 
that discussion. One of them is clearly related to the 
workplace. and workplace related stress. and studies have 
shown that workplace stress causes abuse. It's one of the 
indications of that stress. Stress includes excessive 
workload and hours of work, rotating shift work, arbitrary 
supervision, lack of possibility for career advancement. fear 
of plant closure. and unsafe working conditions. In other 
words, the nature of work itself is one of the contributors to 
drug abuse. 

This 
they look at 
look at their 
how much of 
contribute to 

being the case, the employers should, before 
their employees to blame the victim, they should 
own practices, and what they should consider is 
their own policies and personnel practices 

drug abuse. And one thing they might consider 
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in humanizing the workplace and working conditions is making 
sure the workload is not too high. 

For instance. the one example in the supermarket 
industry is carpaltunnel {phonetic spelling) syndrome. That•s 
a repetitive motion injury that comes from people on checkout 
lines who are forced to stand up all day. When I asked 
workers in Sweden about why they were sitting down. they 
couldn 1 t believe people in the United States were forced by 
employers to stand up all day to check out groceries. They 
thought it was absurd because they all sat down. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: What do they do in a 
manufacturing facility? They stand up. don 1 t they? 

MR. ENGLER: That 1 s not necessarily the case. 
There 1 s a lot of ergonomically designed industry in Europe. 
where people are not subjected to the type of working 
conditions they are here. 

My point is that many of the problems of drug abuse 
are caused by things like having to work on a monotonous 
assembly 1 ine. or processing paper a 11 day. or working before 
a video dis play terminal that leaves one with headaches and 
worries and fears at the end of the day. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: You know, you 1 re so wrong--
MR. ENGLER: So the victim--
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: You know. you 1 re getting 

involved in areas you don 1 t know anything about. In fact. it 
happens to be the checkers are the least of our problems with 
drugs. It's the others. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Okay. Now go on. 
MR. ENGLER: Let me. in conclusion. point out that 

the IUC supports broad educational efforts in our schools and 
universities, to alert youth to the danger of drugs. We 
support law enforcement efforts to curtail drug 
distributions. And we support national priorities that could 
go far toward reducing drug abuse by redirecting funds from 
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fraudulent military defenses, like Star Wars, to the 
elimination of poverty. 

The IUC strongly supports the call by the AFL-CIO for 
a moratorium on drug testing until any regulations are issued, 
and we encourage this Committee to hold public hearings, not 
in an effort to delay action on the bill, but you can see from 
the interest and concerns today -- including from some of the 
people who had to leave earlier that there • s tremendous 
public interest, and we stand ready to move and support 
rational efforts on a prompt basis. But we think a full range 
of testimony also should be heard. 

The IUC stands ready to work with the Committee to 
produce a bill that appropriately addresses this serious 
national problem. Thank you very much. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you, Mr. Engler. 
certainly take all of your thoughts into consideration. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Just a comment. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Assemblyman Miller? 

We'll 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: It's the first comment I've made 
since the people have testified. I read this paragraph: 
.. Instead of using drug tests to blame the victim, management 
should examine how much of their own investment po 1 i c ies and 
personnel practices in their quest for productivity and 
profits, contribute to drug abuse, 11 and, 11 Scientific studies 
have shown ... work related stresses ... 

You know, it seems to me, way back when, there were 
10 hour days, seven days six days a week, and I don • t 
recall any drug abuse problems at that particular time. You 
talk about stresses, we had plenty of stresses then. 

MR. ENGLER: I'm sure one could look at alcohol rates 
for that period and find something. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Same thing. Absolutely. I 
don•t disagree with you, but I think your statement in here--
! think you•re-- Well, I know from whence you come, so I can 
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relate to that. But it just seems to me you've gone overboard 
with what you--

MR. ENGLER: Well, I think to the extent that I've 
tried to bend the stick in the other direction, because the 
victims to date have been the workers, not management, and all 
I'm trying to encourage here in perhaps a slight 
overstatement is for management to examine their own 
practices and evaluate to what extent the conditions of work 
led people io this substance abuse. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: Rick, you did a fine job. 
MEMBER OF COMMITTEE: Right. And without management 

you wouldn't have anything to complain about, so consider 
yourself lucky. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me bring this back to the 
center. How do you feel about the idea of the advisory 
commission developing, essentially, the program that would be 
translated into a bill? Are you just opposed to the concept 
of drug testing at all? 

Now, you've indicated several times in here about the 
random drug testing, but what about drug testing based upon a 
definition that's tighter than "reasonable suspicion?" 

I kind of like your definition. The only thing is, 
I've had a number of police groups tell me that the better one 
for the workers is the "probable cause" definition because 
it's tougher to prove. So, I'm not sure what your definition 
-- where that would fall between "reasonable suspicion" and 
"probable cause .... 

Are you saying that you could live with drug testing 
that's done on a basis in which there is some form of -- for 
lack of a better term probable cause, provided these 
additional safeguards you're talking about were built into it? 

MR. ENGLER: Well, I think the additional safeguards 
are very, very significant -- meaning that if a union was able 
to negotiate the program with the employer and agree with the 
employer, we would assume that the union would represent its 
membership on both civil liberties issues and the genuine 
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concern the workers have for being free of drugs in the 
workplace. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The problem that I have is not for 
the 750.000 workers in this State that are represented. 
Realistically. if their unions are strong enough and are able 
to do it. they can do right now what you're proposing. Okay? 

The problem that I have is for those several hundred 
thousand unrepresented workers in New Jersey who are being 
victimized. ·as Jeff Fogel says. right now. That's the ones 
that I'm concerned about. If we simply leave it to the unions 
to deal with. it's a great organizing tool. but it may be a 
long time before everybody gets organized to have the benefit 
of your collective bargaining agreements. 

And I have a concern. and I think that Jeff made a 
very telling point, that in the private sector this is 
important legislation, to establish an appropriate balance and 
safeguard to those workers • rights, and if we just-- I •m a 
little concerned that if we're too tight to what you propose 
here, and that's involving the collective bargaining process 
as kind of the final arbitrator, that we will then defeat the 
purpose of protecting the people who don't have the benefit of 
collective bargaining. 

MR. ENGLER: I think more attention has to be devoted 
to that, and I have to be honest, I don't think we have all 
the answers on how to provide protections there. We discussed 
some possibilities. We'd be happy to work on that further. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Okay. One more comment. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Yeah, I would like to-- As 

far as I • m concerned, we • re here today to represent all the 
workers. not union, not non-union, but everybody; And I think 
we need a uniform program to get collective bargaining. This 
is such a serious issue that we really need a program that • s 
going to benefit everyone, and take care of the problem for 
all the workers in the State, not just think in one direction. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I agree with you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Am I right? It's getting so 

far that it's going to be all collective bargaining, you know. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I agree. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: He's making a point. He's 

using that to make a point He wasn't--
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: No, we agree with each other. 

Maybe I didn't make it as clear, but that was the point I was 
trying to make. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Oh, okay. I thought so, but I 
wanted to clarify it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I'm just trying to get to the 
center. I don't want to move over to the--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Oh, okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Is Mayor Richard Taylor of 

Plainfield here? (no response) 
Next I'd 1 ike to have Dennis Crowley, representative 

of the Attorney General's office, please. 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: You have three minutes. 

DENlliS C R 0 W L E Y: Three minutes? I have three 
minutes? That's all I'm going to take. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Well, we thought the Attorney 
General was going to be here, and he was going to get six 
minutes. 

MR. CROWLEY: Well, I'll take his three on account. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: 

anything else to say? 
On account of you don't have 

MR. CROWLEY: I may need it for a later meeting. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Can we bring him down at a 

later date when we finalize this thing? 
MR. CROWLEY: Sure. He'd be more than happy to meet 

with you. 
We've been listening to the testimony and, first of 

all, I want to commend the Committee for providing the 
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opportunity for such a wide range in dialogue and discussion 
on an issue that is really almost convoluted in its impact. 
And we don't want to speak to that broad impact today, 
however. We only want to raise one concern to you -- as you 
consider possible amendments to this piece of legislation in 
the future -- on behalf of the Department of Law and Public 
Safety. 

We would urge you to think seriously about removing 
law enforcement personnel from the terms of this legislation, 
and to place that law enforcement personnel under guidelines, 
regulations, promulgated through the office of the Attorney 
General who is, in fact as you know the chief law 
enforcement officer of the State. 

We make this suggestion to you because of the unique 
nature of law enforcement personnel in this State. They are 
both a role mode 1 in a soc ieta 1 sense, and are a 1 so the ones 
who we charge with enforcing the laws, including the drug laws. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Would you put the National 
Guard under that too then? 

MR . CROWLEY : There is an amendment on the table 
today, I believe, which does that. We're not prepared to 
comment on including the National Guard in that on a regular 
basis. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: They go under Army regulations 
anyway. 

MR. CROWLEY: That 1 s one of the reasons we wouldn 1 t 
be prepared to talk about it now. 

We 1 re looking, at this particular moment, at a study 
that 1 s going on inside of our Department for quite some time 
on this very issue. What should be the standards which 
regulate 
should 

the drug testing of law enforcement personnel? 
control those standards? How should they 

Who 
be 

promulgated and implemented? And the very issues raised 
today, in terms of pr otoco 1 and evidence -- both the ini t ia 1 
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and follow-up testing/screening procedures 
issues that we • re looking at also in the 
narrower context of how it affects 
personnel. 

these are all 
narrower much 

law enforcement 

As you deliberate on the issue here. please keep in 
mind that we would urge you very strongly to remove those law 
enforcement personnel from the legislation and require that 
the Attorney General. as chief law enforcement officer. 
develop those regulations and. in fact. function as the chief 
law enforcement officer that he is. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Where do you draw the line? 
You•re talking about full time. paid police officers and 
full-time. paid firemen? 

MR. CROWLEY: We would probably draw the line-- And 
the line is not firm yet. and that•s why the study hasn•t been 
completed. But we would most definitely be looking toward 
those individuals who are authorized to carry weapons and who 
are required to enforce the law. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Our police? Local police? 
MR. CROWLEY: Yes. 

State Police. 

Police? 
COMMITTEE MJ::::MBEH : 

MR. CROWLEY: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: 

Local police. municipal police. 

Special police? Bi-State Agency 

possibly. 
Well. anybody with 2-C powers is 

regulated by 2-C. Federal 2-C is the law enforcement statute 
that New Jersey which regulates all those types of 
personne 1: Marine Police. ABC Inspectors. State Pol ice. 
municipal police. county and part-time police. All those 
people are covered by 2-C. The only one in the list in terms 
of your amendment. Mr. Chairman. that there•s a question in my 
mind about is the fire fighters because they• re really not 
regulated under 2-C. and we have representatives of one of the 
fire fighter organizations here. I saw some others. I don•t 
know what their position is about whether they want to be 
covered by the Department of Labor or covered by the A.G. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: You • re talking about paid and 

unpaid volunteers? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Paid. Not volunteers. Paid. 
MR. CROWLEY: There are two other groups that we have 

not addressed in our deliberations. In the amendment they are 

corrections officers and National Guard. 
MR. FOGEL: We 11 now, you say here, 11 Guards employed 

in the service of any county or municipal penal institution, 
guards and law enforcement personnel in the Department of 

Corrections ... That•s in the amendment. 
MR. CROWLEY: I know. They•re two groups that we had 

not considered including. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Isn•t National Guard under 

Federal law? 
MR. CROWLEY: Yes, that•s one of the--
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: They go under whatever they do 

for the military. 
MR. CROWLEY: They•re members of the military. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How about civil threats? 

That•s an important responsibility. 
MR. CROWLI':Y: Certainly, we could consider that type 

of employee in the procedures, but at this time we wouldn•t be 

prepared to say yes or no. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: The county coordinator would be 

the person would be directly in charge of any disaster, 
whether it be natural or man-made. You know that•s the 
problem we have. 

MR. CROWLEY: Sure. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: 

how far you want to go. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: 
MR. CROWLEY: We plan 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: 

We need some clarification on 

He•ll give it to you, 
on giving it to you. 
Okay, sir. 
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MR. CROWLEY: I understand that you•11 be meeting 
again later this month. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Okay. Anybody else have any 
questions? (no response) 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Let•s go home. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Go home? 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: He was the easiest. 
MR. CROWLEY: we•re easy to get along with. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: What the hell. you 

everything out. (laughter) 
took 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Next we•11 have Jeff Monahan, 
Department of Health. 
J E F F M 0 N A H A N: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman. My 
name is Jeff Monahan. I am the Legislative Liaison from the 
Department of Hea 1 th. Unfortunately, our Assistant 
Commissioner for Alcohol, Narcotic, and Drug Abuse -- who you 
asked to be here today -- could not be here. 

The Department is in support of the overall concept 
of developing a procedure on drug testing in the workplace. 
We do think the legislation that ultimately emerges should 
contain several specific provisions. 

Number one, we think that careful consideration 
should be given to the issue of random or unannounced testing 
for certain individuals who are in high-risk or safety 
sensitive occupations, where there•s a great deal of public 
safety involved. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Can you speak up just a little bit 
for the people who are in the back straining to hear you. 

MR. MONAHAN: Sure. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Those mikes are just for the tape. 

They•re not for--
MR. MONAHAN: We also think 

should address the issue of quality 

concerning the laboratories which 
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similarly. we think that there should be 

confirmatory testing in any instances where the 
proves positive. 

mandatory. 

initial test 

It • s our understanding that two of the most common 
occurrences are false positives for situations where improper 
procedures were followed by the laboratory. and where 
confirmatory testing wasn't done after an initial positive 
test came through. 

We ·also would like to see the legislation, in some 
form. deal with some type of employee assistance, or some type 
of training for individuals who do test positive, and we would 
also like to see the confidentiality issue assured in the 
legislation which eventually emerges. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Does anyone have any questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: Just one question. How do 

you feel about the third layer. the individual who wanted to 
go to a private doctor after the first two tests have been 
given? 

MR. MONAHAN: I don't think we would have any 
objection to that. We haven't carefully considered it, but I 
don't think it--

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: Would you object to him 
using that as evidence against the two tests that were given? 

MR. MONAHAN: With what now? 
ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: Would you object to having 

him use whatever the results of his test are, against the two 
tests that were taken? 

MR. MONAHAN: I don't know that we would. I think 
probably the law enforcement departments could better address 
that question than the Department of Health. 

ASSEMBLYMAN PELLECCHIA: Okay. Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Okay? Thank you very much. 
Bill Flynn. fire fighters. 

B I L L F L Y N N: Thank you, gentlemen. I am Bill Flynn 
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from the New Jersey State FMBA. Firemens • Mutual Benevolent 
Association. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: I thought you were Assemblyman 
Flynn. (laughter) 

MR. FLYNN: He left; I'm still here. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: 

the victim; he's the cause. 
He's the reason he left. He's 

MR. FLYNN: Dennis Crowley was up here from the 
Attorney General's office. He did not mention fire fighters, 
and a reference was made to the paid firemen in the State of 
New Jersey. We do feel that we should come under the Attorney 
General. the same as police officers. We are part of public 
safety and law enforcement. and we would wish the Committee 
would consider that at this period of time. 

We feel that the bill-- The idea of the bill, we are 
100% in support of. We do feel that any individual that is on 
drugs. or has a tendency for drugs. is a safety hazard to 
every fire fighter in the State of New Jersey. So. the 
concept of the bill is good. 

We came here originally to support the bill after 
talking to the Attorney General's office, and their feelings 
of having their own study and including us under the Attorney 
General -- we would rather support that and be excluded from 
this bill. But the concept of the bill we support. and we 
appreciate Assemblyman Littell's foresightedness in having the 
bill. But if you would just exclude us to fall under the 
Attorney General's office. we would appreciate it. 

I R E N 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you very much. 
Irene Von Dohlen, Department of Labor. 

E v 0 N D 0 H L E N: Thank you on behalf of the 
Department of Labor for allowing me to speak on this bill. 
We've seen several amendments to this bill in the last few 
days. but I'm just going to address the basic bill. 

As it stands. the Department feels the bill is very 
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restrictive regarding the drug testing. First of all, we feel 
it's an intrusion on the collective bargaining process. Under 
current--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Do you feel it's an intrusion 
on the collective bargaining process? 

MS. VON DOHLEN: Yes. Currently, only tighter 
restrictions on drug testing or no drug testing at all can be 
negotiated. If an employer wanted to have mandatory drug 
testing and the employees agreed to it, that couldn't result; 
it would be prohibited. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Yeah, but you're talking about 
mandatory now. Let's see, you've got me confused here. 

MR. DEVANEY: Random or routine testing is prohibited 
under a collective bargaining agreement. Under the law, it 
would be prohibited. 

MS. VON DOHLEN: Yes, some unions where members 
depend on their colleagues for safety may want--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Oh, you're opposed to that 
portion you mean? 

MS. VON DOHLEN: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Okay, then I misunderstood 

that. 
MS . VON DOHLEN : They may want to enact tougher drug 

testing policies. and this would be prohibited under the bill. 
Another difficulty we have with the bill is that in 

certain instances we fee 1 drug testing is necessary. This 
would be in the ·area of air traffic controllers, health care 
practitioners, law enforcement personnel. These employees 
cannot be tested under this legislation prior to the employer 
discovering a reasonable suspicion to administer a drug test. 

Often the public, the employer, and fellow employees 
feel that -- particularly in dangerous occupations -- waiting 
for a reasonable suspicion may endanger the health and 
well-being of anyone corning into contact with such a person 
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who would be under the influence of drugs. 

The Department also feels that this is restrictive in 
that the bill would not permit voluntary testing. Some 
employer, some employees, may be in favor of it. The 
President of the United States is in favor of voluntary drug 
testing. This would be prohibited under the bill. 

Finally, the legislation calls for the bill to take 
effect 90-days after enactment. Given the highly technical 
procedures which will have to be regulated, as well as the 
large number of agencies, both public and private, who will 
have input into the regulations, it is anticipated that a more 
rea 1 is tic effective date would be one year from enactment. 
This will enable time for regulations to be promulgated since, 
as written, the legislation calls for no drug testing until 
these regulations are put into effect, and would terminate all 
drug testing in New Jersey from the effective date until the 
regulations were issued. 

Because of all the controversy surrounding this issue 
-- as can be seen by the testimony here today -- and the vast 
impact a drug testing policy would have in the State, the 
Department feels that an advisory commission should be 
established to study the whole issue of drug testing, and 
there should be no change in the status quo until the 
commission issues its report to the governor. 

We feel that only in this case can a drug testing 
policy, with a broad enough consensus to be effective, be 
established. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Would you be kind enough to 
send us that? 

MS. VON DOHLEN: 
letter I had sent you. 

This is basically a summary of a 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Okay. Thank you very much. 

Dr. Toni Mullins, New Jersey School Boards 

Association? 
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T 0 N I M U L L I N S: Mr. Chairman, gentlemen, thank you 
very much for a !lowing me to testify today. As you know, I'm 
Tony Mullins from the New Jersey School Boards, and I qive you 
a lot of credit. It's been an exhausting day, but certainly a 
very informative one. 

First of all, the New Jersey School Boards supports 
A-2850, with amendments. We support State standards for the 
administration and screening of drug abuse tests, especially 
after hearing the very excellent and diverse testimony today. 
There's definitely a need for a standard. 

These standards would provide useful guidance for 
Boards of Education and would eliminate the risks of improper 
screening and inva 1 id resu 1 ts. In addition, standards would 
reduce the likelihood of multiple suits on issues of drug 
testing that could occur if boards administer their own 
tests. In fact. we would seek assurances that employers who 
would follow standards would not be liable to employees in any 
court action. 

Second, we support the standard of reasonable 
suspicion, as has already been indicated by one of the 
attorneys. We feel that the definition is general enough and 
has been in use enough, and we are comfortable with it. 

Third, we approve the es tabl i shmen t of the advisory 
commit tee on employee drug testing, but we would 1 ike to be 
part of that advisory committee. We would request that we 
could be on that committee. 

Most important, NJSPA does seek an amendment that 
would eliminate the provision in the bill that allows 
employers to agree with employees not to administer drug 
tests. This provision would restrict existing board rights, 
based on case law. and such a provision would tie boards • 
hands with respect to teachers exhibiting signs of drug 
abuse. This specific legislation could possibly supersede 
existing legislation that currently allows boards to require 
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employees to submit to physical examination when there is 
evidence of physical of psychiatric abnormality. 

So, in conclusion, we believe that it's essential for 
boards to continue their responsibility to protect the 
children and to retain their right to test employees when they 
reasonably suspect drug abuse. 

School boards should 
possibility of being pressured 

not 
into 

be subjected to the 
agreeing to a contract 

provision prohibiting 
urge you to support 
would like to see an 

such res pons ibi 1 i ty. So, we certainly 
the base provisions of A-2850, but we 
amendment to the bill to exclude that 

provision that would tie our hands in dealing with drug tests. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank. you. Do you have copies 

of that for everybody? 
MS. MULLINS: Yes, I do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Just quickly. Do you think. 

the use of drugs by teachers throughout the State is prevalent 
a lot, a little? You know, without putting you on the 

spot--
MS. MULLINS: I don't have any indication. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: So you think maybe it's 5%, 

10%, 15%, 20%, 25%? 1 don't know. 
MS. MULLINS: I really cannot say, Assemblyman. I 

don't know. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: But it's out there? 
MS. MULLINS: As in all other testimonies that you•ve 

heard, we realize that this is a prevalent problem nationwide 
for all people, and teachers are people like everybody else. 
The problem could be there as well as anywhere else. So, we'd 
just like to see something standard so that we could perform 
our responsibilities. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Doctor, you mentioned excluding 
the portion that would allow somebody to negotiate not to have 
any testing. You know, I really don't see why you'd want to 
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take that out. because all these people would say no. You 
know. if you•re going to negotiate with somebody and they want 
something. you say. "No, we•re not going to negotiate that." 

MS. MULLINS: Well. I understand what you•re saying. 
but our concern is that we already have there • s already 
legislation out there. We • re concerned this would supersede 
our ability to do. as we have been able to do in testing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me tell you precisely why 
that's in the bill. from my perspective. I didn't want this 
issue to become imbued with the issue that seems to be the 
crux of relations between public employers and public 
employees in New Jersey. and that • s the issue of whether or 
not something is an illegal or a mandatory subject of 
negotiations. 

Rather than deal with that in the context of there 
being a scope of negotiation petitions filed by an employer 
any time the union saw fit to de a 1 with the issue of drug 
testing policy, I felt it important to put the issue to rest 
at the outset by saying that it is, in fact, a subject of 
negotiation. that if the union can negotiate not to have a 
drug policy they are free to do so at the bargaining table. 

I want the drug policy in this State to be uniform to 
that extent, rather than have a situation in which, if we 
didn't speak to the issue, you would then be going before PERG 
-- you being an employer, or a representative of an employer 
group, going before PERG and having PERG make a determination 
abut something that ought to be an overall_ policy decision of 
the Legislature and the Governor. That's why it's in there, 
for no other reason than to have no other agencies involved. 
That's one of the reason why PERG wants off of the 
commission. I assume you want in, and Civil Service wants in, 
and there are two union groups in there. 

One of the things that I'm becoming concerned about 
in hearing the testimony and I want to offer it as a 
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general comment, not relating specifically to yours -- is that 
there 
bill. 

is, in my mind, a limitation to what we can do with a 
And I think we are, in a sense, overstepping our 

authority if we think that we can cross every "t" and dot 
every "i" in this piece of legislation to deal with all of the 
plethora of issues that have been discussed today regarding 
drug testing in the workplace. 

I think what we've got to do is create the skeleton. 
and allow that commission the representatives of the 
public, of the administrative branch of government, of the 
various agencies and interest groups involved to put the 
flesh on those bones that we create. 

So, maybe my role was different in terms of 
perceiving what my role is from what I'm hearing from 
different groups, but I don • t think we want to go so far and 
come up with a 90-page bi 11 that really does the job of what 
the Department of Labor and that advisory council are supposed 
to do in terms of putting flesh on the skeleton that we devise 
for them legislatively. 

We can, I guess, debate that, but just say that where 
I'm corning from, up front, I don't want to put a bill in there 
that does everything everyone wants to do, or accommodates 
every interest. I want to put something together that puts 
you all together in a room and has you fight out that 
particular thing. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How about testing school board 
members also? Would you go along with that? 

MS. MULLINS: We're talking about all people. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Okay. 
MS. MULLINS: That's not a problem, and in fact if we 

could participate -- if we could have a representative on the 
advisory committee, it would help out very much in ironing out 
some of the concerns that you may have and that we may have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: I don't mind being tested, 
right from the top. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: You know, in line with your 
thinking, Tom, basically what are trying to accomplish here--
Basically? I think what we're trying to accomplish is the 
welfare of the individual, the welfare of society in general, 
the welfare of the employer, and if we're going to allow this 
to be negotiated then we're really not interested in the 
welfare of the individuals, society, or the employer. If 
we're going to negotiate this thing and say "You can't do 
this," we've wiped out what we're trying to accomplish. 

I kind of hedge on putting this in as a negotiable 
item. I kind of hedge on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOL INA: If we're going to be testing, 
we've got to do it like seat belts, even through I don't like 
them. Everybody is supposed to wear them. If we're all going 
to have to wear seat belts, at least we should--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You'd better because when it hits 
the papers (indiscernible) will have something to write 
about. (laughter) I can see the headline: Strap Azzolina In. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: That might be the headline 
today. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you. 
Next we will hear from Lester Kertz, Business and 

Industry Association. 
L E S T E R K E R T Z: Mr. Chairman, members of the 
Committee, you have in form of a letter our overall statement, 
but l'm going to sort of paraphrase it, and add to it -- add 
to some of the things that I said to you in the letter that we 
sent to all the members of the Committee. 

NJBIA supports the creation of a uniform standard, 
which are rules and regulations relating to the administration 
of employee drug abuse tests, and by that I mean that we favor 
uniform guidelines for the taking of blood or urine samples 
and a methodology and procedure used to evaluate the contents 
of the samples. 
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At the same time. our members are opposed to any law 
which in any way restricts an employer's right to determine 
when he can request a employee. or a job applicant. to submit 
to a drug abuse test. 

Some of the testimony I •ve heard here this morning--
It seems to me that the problem that this country faces. and 
this State in particular. is it just hasn't reached down to 
the bottom. Several years ago and some of the members of 
the Committee will remember this country committed several 
million of our young men to a war in Vietnam but. at the same 
time. we tied one of their hands behind their back. 

The President just recently committed the private 
sector to a war against drug abuse because the government has 
been unable to interdict drugs coming into the country. and 
he ' s co mm i t ted the p r iva t e s e c tor to the f r on t . But • from 
some of the things that I've been hearing from the Legislature 

before this Committee there is an attempt to tie the 
hands of the private sector in this war in the workplace. 

We've heard testimony this morning about protecting 
the rank and file. but tell that to the families of the people 
who were killed in the airplane accident in California. where 
there is some -- and it hasn't come out yet. but there's been 
some connection between the use of drugs and the accident. If 
you recall. there were 30 people in the flight control room 
31 people -- and drug tests found 15 of them had been positive 
on the first try -- three of the 15 or 16. Three of them have 
initially been found to be drug users. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I've got to interrupt you. I 
don't believe that the individual who was involved with 
charting that plane had anything to do with that at all. 

MR. KERTZ: I'm not saying that. I'm just saying 
that there is--

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Let's not accuse somebody. 
MR. KERTZ: No. I didn't say that. but what must the 
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Legislature do, wait until there is a meltdown at one of our 
atomic generating stations before we try to untie the hands of 
the employer, or that we have a Bho Pal incident at a--

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: That.• s why we 1 re here today, to 
find out. Tell us. 

MR. KERTZ: But I'm just saying that there are some--
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Tell us what you want. 
MR. KERTZ: As I said, we do support uniform 

guidelines on how the tests should be taken, the methodology 
in taking the tests. But I think because of the nature of our 
industry in this State, the wide diversity of businesses, it's 
very difficult to put in a strait-jacket and put every company 
in the same -- to follow the same rules and regulations with 
respect to drug testing. 

I might point out, who would have thought that a 
computer operator at a airlines reservation desk who had been 
using marijuana would forget to put a computer tape into a 
machine and, as a result, the company lost $19 million on 
reservations? Who would have ever thought? The company does 
test their pilots, now they're doing the testing of their 
clerical people because of an incident like this. 

You have to leave flexibility in the hands of 
employers. They have been charged to fight a battle against 
drugs and they are doing, very carefully -- they're going very 
slowly in implementing policies with respect to testing for 
drug abuse. We should not tie their hands in any way because 
this is a war, and there have been a number of companies that 
have instituted drug testing procedures in the hope of 
eliminating drug abusers in the workplace. 

At this time, it's too early to measure the success 
of the corporate war against drugs. Some companies already 
cite impressive results. So far, their hands have not been 
tied, and I just implore the Committee not to tie the hands of 
the employer. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Are you saying we shouldn't 
have a law then? 

MR. KERTZ: I didn't say-- No, I'm saying that we 
shouldn't have a narrow law because we have so many different 
industries. What might apply to a manufacturing operation 
does not apply to a service company. So, we've got to be 
careful in developing a law which would not restrict the 
employer's f lexibi 1 i ty in determining when he should provide 
drug testing for his employees, and not wait until -- not tie 
his hands and then have some incident come up where we say, 
"Gee, we tied your hands." 

There are people who are getting hurt today on 
loading docks, forklift operators who-- It's an accident, but 
there's some suspicion that it might be drug related. Many 
employers today have found that if there is a work related 
injury, automatically they test that employee for drugs. How 
they handle it afterwards, if it is a positive or a false 
positive, I don't know. 

So, I'm just 
Every company operates differently. 
suggesting that this Committee be 

careful in how they structure a piece of legislation so that 
it doesn't tie an employer's hands, because there's a war out 
there and I'm hoping that this Committee would accept that and 
deal with it accordingly. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: We're trying. That's what 
we're here for today, and we're going to be at this for a 
while, Mr. Kurtz. 

ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: Les, let me ask you a question. 
Right now, as you understand the law, doesn't a union have the 
right to negotiate away any drug testing in 
they can get it at the bargaining table? 

MR. KERTZ: Oh, yes. No question. 
But where their contract is silent, there 
for-- If an employer an justify it, 
unilaterally, as is being done. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That issue has not really ever been 
resolved yet in the private sector. 

MR. KERTZ: No, it's in the court. Well, it's in 
arbitration. The question in one case I know is in 
arbitration right now, whether the employer has that right. 
But he's doing it. He's attempting to justify it for the 
sense of safety. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. One of the things that we're 
aiming at is to try to take out of -- to take away the mystery 
and the possibility for a whole series of diverse decisions. 
For example, you get one arbitrator that says, "I think that 
the company's unilateral decision to 
really violates the spirit of the 
unilaterally have that right, so you 

test regarding drugs 
contract. They don't 
can't do it. company." 

So, there's an arbitration that says they can't. 
A week later, you can get a different arbitrator who 

says, "Well I don't think that this--" "The way I look at the 
contract, I think that's something that's an inherent 
management prerogative and they ought to be able to do it." 
Then he renders a decision that says they can do it. And, 
well, he's writing this. 

What we need to do is bring some uniformity to the 
whole issue, and I think you agree on one portion of it at 
least, and that is the administration of the tests. 

MR. KERTZ: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: But you also feel that you should 

have the unfettered right to administer random and routine 
tests. 

MR. KERTZ: Subject to-- If it's abused, subject to 
an individual suit against the employer. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Arbitration as well as--
MR. KERTZ: Well, not arbitration. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Well--
MR. KERTZ: I'm saying that if the employee feels 
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that an employer acted 
So, 

unreasonably or 
those employers 

incorrectly, he is 
that have presently subject to suit. 

instituted testing 
They're protecting 
That • s-- And only a 

programs are doing it very carefully. 
themselves in every way possible. 
small number of employers in the State 

are doing testing right now, but it's growing and it's going 
to continue to grow. And to that extent, if we can provide 
guidelines which permits them to do it within certain 
guidelines, our Association would support that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Based on that movie, "On Crack 
Street," more people have watched that, and I think you • re 
going to have a lot of testing going on all over the place. 
They said in that program that there are 5000 new crack users 
in this country every week. And that's an alarming number. 

Okay, Lester. Thank you very much. 
May I have Don Phillippe, please, from the IFPPE? 

You represent-- Some of your people work for the Department 
of Transportation? 
D 0 N P H I L L I P P E: State highway workers. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Okay. How many employees do 
you have? 

MR. PHILLIPPE: We represent 7500. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Just the Department of 

Transportation? 
MR. PHILLIPPE: No, in all State departments. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: In all State department, okay. 
MR. PHILLIPPE: Thank you for the opportunity of 

appearing before the Committee on Assembly 2850. We 
considered this whole issue at our international convention, 
and we've come up with the following resolution concerning 
drug testing in the workplace: 

Drug addiction and alcoholism are illnesses, and 
those suffering from these diseases need treatment, not 
punishment. The problem of substance abuse ought to be 
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addressed squarely and cooperatively by employers and unions. 
our international union has promoted prevention and 

rehabi 1 i tat ion programs in the workplace and the community, 
and local unions have sponsored institutes on alcoholism and 
drug abuse with trained union counselors to offer guidance and 
referrals to those with drug and alcohol-related problems, 
supported community facilities for treating victims of drug 
and alcohol addiction, and established on-the-job treatment 
programs. 

In recent years it has become increasingly 
fashionable for employers, Federal, public, and private, to 
use drug tests to screen applicants and all employees, and to 
force applicants and employees to submit to such tests on a 
random basis. 

Many of these tests companies use to screen workers 
for drugs and alcohol are very inaccurate especially the 
ones the companies use in volume with the results of these 
tests, which purportedly screen for illegal drugs, affected by 
the use of such common substances as cough syrup, caffeine, 
asthma medicine, and other common chemicals. 

The laboratories which perform drug and alcohol 
screening 
rates and, 

tests often have very high false positive error 
as a result, workers or job applicants may lose a 

job either because accurate tests are not available or because 
companies prefer to use less accurate, inexpensive tests in 
mass screening programs. 

Few testing programs include procedures for workers 
to challenge inaccurate findings or secure re 1 i ef from the 
result of error. The administration of these tests on a 
random or across-the-board basis is degrading. 

Mandatory drug and alcohol testing programs raise 
serious legal and constitutional questions. 

We believe the collective bargaining process should 
be used as a vehicle through which unions and employers can 
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develop carefully tailored and balanced programs which stress 
education and prevention of addiction. 

We propose, through the collective bargaining 
process, certain appr opr ia te 1 imi ts, or conditions, for the 
use of tests for alcohol and drugs, including focusing only on 
workers who exhibit symptoms of job-related impairments. I 
think that was discussed regarding the section of the bill 
where you used the term "reasonable suspicion, .. or as proposed 
today, "reasonable cause." It's our posit ion that unless 
there's some reasonable cause for testing, that it should not 
be used. 

We also propose to establish safeguards for those who 
test positive, including guarantees of workers' rights of 
privacy and confidentiality. I think a number of people have 
also proposed that as an amendment to the bill. 

Fully inform workers and their representatives of the 
testing methodology an employer administers, and I think some 
of that is in a section of the bill -- regarding how the tests 
would be performed. 
be licensed to give 

Only certain people might be required to 
these tests, and I think we heard 

testimony from one of the representatives of Hoffman LaRoche 
that only trained people and trained technicians should be the 
ones to administer these tests because they have the expertise 
and it lessens the amount of error. 

We think that any legislation should provide 
non-punitive, on-the-job responses and helpful treatment, for 
those who are, in fact, unable to perform their jobs because 
of drug addiction and alcoholism, and where contractually 
possible, submit any adverse actions resulting from positive 
tests to binding arbitration. 

Our international union and its affiliates continue 
to develop constructive solutions to the addiction problem, 
responsive to the legitimate needs of all parties, with no 
random screening or imposition of punitive programs which ride 
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roughshod over the rights and dignity of workers and are 
unnecessary to secure a safe and efficient workplace. 

Now, we reviewed the bill. We think the areas that 
need strengthening are especially in the language regarding 
any rehabilitation programs. It is our position that drug 
addiction and alcoholism are both illnesses and should be 
treated that way, with rehabilitation programs. 

I see from one of the amendments that I saw 
recently that some of that was added into the bill. That's 
an integral part of what we consider necessary to any 
rehabilitation program. 

Right now in the State service, we do have some drug 
programs through the Employee Advisory Service, or as other 
people call them, "employee assistance programs," where people 
are given a leave of absence -- all right? -- they are sent to 
clinics, and they don't lose their jobs. There's no punitive 
measure, nor are the people being dismissed. As long as they 
complete the rehabilitation program they can return to their 
job. That's what we think the whole idea of rehabilitation 
program in this legislation should mean. 

Now there's other areas of amendment that we do not 
agree with, and that is the random testing for what you 
consider certain public workers, or public safety workers. We 
still think the real criteria is how the man is performing, or 
how the woman is performing on the job, not what job he has. 

I think that we've found out from recent tests which 
involved the State Police I think they tested some 2400 
troopers and they found six people on drugs. Now, if that 
test costs, as was said initially, $15 a piece, they spent up 
to thousands of dollars and this whole area of cost would 
be-- You know, if you're talking about the number of State 
workers, there's some 70,000 people. The immunoassay test 
alone would be some $15, and everybody seems to agree that you 
have to have the second test for a confirmation -- I mean, 

94 



that would run somewhere from -- from the estimates qiven by 
the people that do it -- $40 to $75. I don't know where the 
money is coming from. How much is it qoing to benefit the 
interest of the State? How much are you going to qet out of 
it for this amount of money? 

Really, are the taxpayers going to support proposals 
to spend this amount of money to do this type of testinq? We 
don't think that, really, they're qoing to support that amount 
of money to do this type of testing. We feel there has been 
very little evidence, at least from disciplinary cases that we 
have with people in our unit, regarding people being removed 
for any drug abuse. I think we could probably count on our 
hands the people who've been removed for any charges aqainst 
druqs. 

For those reasons, you know, we think that those 
amendments should be included in the legislation, especially 
areas regarding the rehabilitation section. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Don, do you have a copy of your 
written comments? It would make it easier for us. 

MR. PHILLIPPE: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you very much. 
Next we will hear from Bob Purcell and Virginia 

Loolfe, C.W.A. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Bob, while these people are 

coming up, just an observation here. I •ve heard nothing today 
about education, an educa tiona 1 program of any kind, getting 
into this. Nobody's testified in that area. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Yes. We had somebody here from 
the Department of Education, but they had to leave, I guess. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: I've heard nobody say we need an 
educational program like the alcohol program. 

And, a 1 so, the pol ice test. They have a Breathalyzer 
test that they use for the alcohol program. Maybe something 
should be done in that area too, about training police to --
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or hospitals to work with the police departments in doing this 
kind of testing when they pick someone up on the road. 
drug-related. because we're talking about drunk driving. 
OWl's. but the drug part never gets involved because we don't 
have any program. Again. this is another part of this. and I 
just happened to pick this up. 

Then you say. "How's he performing on the job?" 
Well. we have a roadblock today for OWl. We catch them before 
they have the accident. yet you don't with performance on the 
job. You have to see them weaving down the road in an 
irrational manner. then you stop them. I'm trying to tie 
these two together. I don't think you can wait until you see 
what happens before you take action. I think you have to try 
to prevent it. And maybe we only got six to eight troopers 
out of the 2000 tested, but it is a preventive maintenance 
type situation: You are preventing other people from getting 
involved because they know they're going to lose their job if 
they do use it. 

These are just a few of the points I happened to 
notice here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Purcell? 
R 0 B E R T P U R C E L L: 
of the Committee. I think our 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members 
position generally follows that 

of Jeff Fogel, in that I see this as an extreme invasion of 
privacy and that drug testing should be banned rather than 
legitimized. The issue, especially for public sector workers 
who have constitutional guarantees. will eventually end up 
being favorably addressed through the courts. 

In 1972, the State of California passed an amendment 
to their Constitution, guaranteeing the right of privacy as 
inalienable right. We would prefer to see you going that way 
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rather than establishing drug testing standards that will 
enable the invasion of privacy. 

For that reason, we oppose the bill 
form. We would encourage a moratorium on 
established pending the resolution of this, 
this will proceed despite our opposition. 
workers who aren't covered by contracts 

in its present 
drug testing be 
recognizing that 

And for those 
or don't have 

representation, eventually your standards will be a vast 
improvement over what's happening in many sectors of the 
economy. 

Rather than be repetitive over what's happened, I '11 
just make a few points that haven't been made, or that I'd 
like to have emphasized. 

It was interesting that Hoffman LaRoche was the first 
to testify today. It sort of like rang a bell inside my head 
that about 15 years ago I applied for a job at their Vitamin C 
plant in Belvidere, and I went through a urine test and a 
blood test and a very thorough physical and interview. And I 
was told after the interview that pending the outcome of the 
physical exam I had the job, and two weeks later. I got a 
letter back from Hoffman LaRoche saying that they had decided 
not to employ me. Well, there's no reason why they didn't 
employ me. Now I'm beginning to wonder whether there was a 
false positive because I had poppy seed cakes or maybe some 
herbal tea earlier in the day. 

So as we're talking about different categories, we're 
obviously more concerned with the employees that we currently 
represent and the right of an applicant to at least have some 
kind of knowledge that he's being tested for drugs, if that's 
indeed the case -- and I don't know if LaRoche was testing for 
drugs 15 years ago. 1 assume they were and some kind of 
right of appeal, if there is a screening test that determines 
that there may be drugs. and a confirmatory test -- as they 
recommended. 
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As Don Phillippe indicated, the cost of this has been 
largely overlooked, not only in the amount of money that it's 
going to cost to test workers to determine whether or not 
there is drug abuse going on, but especially now the 
litigation and the challenges to its unconstitutionality. The 
East Rutherford High School ended up paying $23,000 in legal 
fees to the ACLU, coupled with $50,000 of legal fees, battling 
the case in the Superior Court 
wasted, in retrospect. 

money that clearly was 

Again, recognizing the danger to society of drug 
problems, our union represents 60,000 workers in the private 
sector. and local and state government. I can't recall more 
than five cases where workers have been brought up on charges 
because of drug-related incidents. And, as Don Phillippe 
pointed out, when they are brought up they're fired under 
Title 2C. When they're convicted in Municipal Court for 
possession of the drugs, there's no indication as to how 
rehabilitation will play into some kind of situation such as 
that. 

The dangers in alcoholism and tobacco to society 
vastly outweigh the problems of drug abuse: Tobacco claims, 
according to Doctor David Musto {phonetic spelling) who wrote 
the "American Disease" back in 1973, 350,000 lives a year; 
a lcoho 1. 100. 000 deaths a year. 
statistics 3. 500 deaths are related 
and other CDS's. 

and according to 
to cocaine, heroin, 

his 
PCP, 

Clearly, the proportion of interest generated here 
may be warranted, but in perspective to the tobacco and 
alcohol problems it seems to be out of proportion. 

I also thought it was interesting that Chief Justice 
Rehnquist, in his confirmation proceedings -- it was disclosed 
that he was addicted to placidyl for five years, which is a 
prescription drug. It slurs speech. It causes distorted 
perceptions as a side effect. I mean. there's some kind of 
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message there, that a Chief Justice on the Supreme Court -- a 
Justice on the Supreme court can, for five years, be 
addicted to a drug and get away with it, and we're not talking 
about testing those kinds of officials. There has to be some 
kind of balance in this process. 

Then you hear, in the paper, statements by 
municipalities implementing, or considering implementing, drug 
testing. In Flemington, Councilman George Schorisos (phonetic 
spelling) said he favored tests for police and heavy equipment 
opera tors, but opposed drug tests for elected officials 
quote: "I think it's an invasion of my civil liberties." 
Well. why is it an invasion of his civil liberties and not 
someone else's? 

Granted, the right of the public to the services is 
great, but it doesn't warrant the overriding of constitutional 
rights in the process. 

Related to the bill, we also basically encourage 
paragraph 5 of section S, to be amended to either include 
"probable cause," 
stricter standard 
to interpretation. 

or "trustworthy grounds," whichever is a 
and, again, it's another thing that's open 

We would recommend deletion of lines 5 through 10 of 
section 5, where it gives indication as to evidence of erratic 
job behavior, or declines in productivity as very vague and 
subjective, and open to interpretation. 

We-- Again as Assemblyman Miller pointed out, no one 
has mentioned education. The thrust should be not only 
rehabi 1 ita t ion but education. We think that the money spent 
testing workers could be much better spent educating the 
workers to the dangers of drugs, and we would support more of 
an education thrust than a testing thrust. 

And, assuming tests are eventually implemented, 
obviously the concern is over the quality of the tests. As 
the men from Hoffman LaRoche indicated, there are various 
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tests that can be given. We would. obviously. prefer the most 
reliable. the GCMS -- the mass spectrophotometry -- and would 
encourage that confirmatory tests be mandatory in cases where 
workers are screened initially. 

And in the event that this becomes law and workers 
are identified as offenders. we obviously would feel that 
first offenders. if not second offenders. should be given some 
kind of right to leave of absence for rehabi 1 ita t ion. and a 
right to return to their job should they succeed in their 
rehabilitation program. 

On~ thing that may or may not be implied in this: A 
worker who is asked to take a drug test should be able to 
invoke his Winegarten rights {phonetic spelling). the right to 
union representation during the request that he submit to a 
drug test and while the actual test is being conducted. as 
part of the chain of custody concept. 

We believe that the collective bargaining process 
does provide a great value to this society and that it can. in 
this situation. aid in assisting the employer and the 
employees in ridding the workplace of drug abuse. and we would 
support mandatory collective bargaining over this. rather than 
permissive. or as a second thought. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you. Mr. Purcell. 
Vi r g i n i a L o o 1 f e i s a l s o f r om the CWU • and she jus t 

asked for--
V I R G I N I A L 0 0 L F E: I'll try to be brief because 
much has been said already. 

I'm the Vice President of the Administrative-Clerical 
Bargaining Unit of Local 1038. I've bargained two state 
contracts with the State of New Jersey. and I'm very concerned 
also with the impact on collective bargaining. 

Just so that Mr. Azzolina knows where I'm coming 
from. I have another interest here also. My 19-year-old son 
died of a drug overdose in December. so that I'm not 
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completely adverse to some kind of protection for workers. but 
I don't really feel that random drug testing is a protection 
for workers. I really feel that--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well. let me tell you 
something. I don't mind because it's been public knowledge. 
I have a son. and I've just spent $50 thousand --we're lucky 
we have insurance. 

MS. LOOLFE: Is he alive? 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: He's alive. 
MS. LOOLFE: God bless you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOL INA: And it a 11 was because of a 

lot of it that happened recently. It's been going on over 
years, but we discovered it only recently -- which is about 
year ago, 1 should add-- so he's, hopefully, almost drug-free 
at the moment. 

However, where he started getting his overdoses. and 
really heavy, was right in one of our own supermarkets. from 
an employee that was a pusher in there and there were 
others getting it from her also. And if we had a drug testing 
program, believe me-- 1 don't know whether 1 want to have one 
or not but 1' m leaning in that direction. If I had a drug 
testing program at the time, I probably would have discovered 
it a lot sooner. We couldn't figure out who the hell had it. 
and who was pushing it, and who was using it; we just couldn't 
figure it out. They're pathological liars. all of them. They 
use it, and you can't find out. who. They don't tell you the 
truth. They lie like hell and, you know, luckily we 
discovered it when we did. He almost could have got-- He 
almost could have died, that's how bad it was. So, I know 
where I'm coming from. I was lucky. I was very lucky. 

MS. LOOLFE: Yes, you are very lucky that your son is 
alive; however, if you could look through the grievance files 
that we have in our office. you will see that many times a 

supervisor will zero in on an employee, and it would seem to 
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me that with this kind of a background to rely on, that that 

kind of supervisor, zeroing in on an employee, could employ 
spurious charges. 

I don't really want to belabor the point. What I'm 
more interested in is seeing that if this bi 11 does, in fact, 
come to fruition, that before that happens we exhaust every 
avenue of testimony -- listen to what people have to say. I 
certainly hope it doesn't take a year. I would like to see it 
happen sooner than that. I would hope that there would be 
some kind of a committee formed, where the input from all the 
segments of society that are going to be affected by this, and 
that's just about everybody we know, will -- that input will 
be sifted and we can fashion a bill that will be as fair as 
could possibly be to the worker. 

The collective bargaining issue bothers me a lot. 
We're very limited in the State of New Jersey, as State 
employees, at the bargaining table. We sometimes feel as if 
we're constricted by two contracts rather than one, since we 
have to de a 1 with Ci vi 1 Service a 1 so. So, I would hope that 

it does not impact too adversely on collective bargaining. 
I compliment you for bringing a bill like this to the 

Legislature. I, unfortunately, feel that perhaps it's a 
reaction to the panic that is now upon us. 

I did not watch that show last night. I 
bring myself to do it, but I know that there is a 
problem out there. But we have to go very, very 
this because there's a question of rehabilitation, 

couldn't 
terrible 

slowly on 
there's a 

question of education. Who's going to pay for the 
rehabilitation? Is the worker going to be allowed to take the 

leave of absence? Who's going to support his family in the 
meantime? There are so many, many questions, and I don't 

think just any of them have been answered; I think you've only 
scratched the surface by bringing the bill to this point, but 
I would just ask you, and caution you, to go slowly and get as 
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much information as you possibly can. 

Being an employee representative. sitting on my side 
of the table I fear for the safety of the employee: I also 
fear for their health. But I don• t want to see a thing like 
this used to adversely impact on their career possibilities. 

That being said, I '11 thank you very much for 
allowing me to appear here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Better we find out who are the 
abusers. 

MS. LOOLFE: You have to go to Washington for that. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Go to Washington? 
MS. LOOLFE: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Well--
MS. LOOLFE: That's a whole other subject. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you. 
MS. LOOLFE: You're welcome. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Ray Peterson. Federation of 

Teachers. 
R A Y PETERS 0 N: Thank you. Mr. Chairman. 

UNKNOWN SPEAKER: If I had been taking drugs at the 
beginning of the hearing and was tested now. it would be out 
of my system. Excuse me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Some of us have been here since 

10:00. Jim. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: What are you a wise guy or 

something? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Jim. I just called you. 
UNKNOWN SPEAKER: 

for my comments. 
Thank you very much. I apologize 

MR. PETERSON: Mr. Chairman. we • ve been here since 
10:00 this morning. and I want to commend you for your 
patience in your handling of this. I believe you•ve extended 
yourself to get as much input as possible. I'll be brief. I 
know you have a letter from me. 
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Most of what I•ll say will be a reaction to the 
things I•ve heard today. I only have one small page of notes. 

In its original form. of course. we have a lot of 
problems with this bill because it would tend to legitimize a 
practice that may very well be unconstitutional. So we 
believe it would require major amendments. along the lines 
that have been mentioned: Probable cause to go after people 
who are obviously guilty. and not to harass the innocent. 

A means should be found to deal with the 
unre 1 iabi 1 i ty of the test. The confirming tests and so forth 
should be dealt with. 

Confident ia 1 i ty is an important is sue. You need to 
strike a balance. obviously. between the interests of the 
employers. the interests of the employees. and the public 
interest. and I endorse the idea of having a public hearing to 
get further input. I think a 1 ot of 1 igh t has been shed 
today. and I would hope that we can get further light shed on 
this. 

The thing that troubled me about the bill was to find 
out what the purpose of the bill was. That wasn•t stated. 
Now. I didn• t know whether it was designed to fire people or 
to get them into rehabilitation programs. And. obviously. 
where we•re coming from. we see it as an illness that needs to 
be treated. 

The war on drugs has been mentioned. and this. of 
course. is a very narrow front -- the war on drugs. The major 
emphasis really should be on public education. a program 
perhaps even bigger than the anti-smoking campaign that•s 
having some results now; the campaign against drunk driving. 
which is having some results now. and so forth or vigorous 
law enforcement. with long prison terms for people who traffic 
in drugs. Those are where I think we can do more good. 

And I•ve seen shows. I•ve listened to the interview 
shows as attentively as you have. I hope to all the 
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things that have been happening here, because this is the 
number one national problem and it deserves more than just 
this sort of approach. It needs an expansive approach. 

So I believe the bill needs extensive amendments that 
are in line-- The amendments that were supported or proposed 
by the AFL-CIO are certainly in line with our national 
position. I would like to share with you -- and if I had the 
opportunity earlier I would have read into the record-- the 
National AFL-CIO's position on this, which we approve of 
wholeheartedly. I • ve shared this with you in a letter. and 
I'd like to make sure the other members of the Committee get 
it. I won't trouble you with reading it right now, although 
it's well thought out. 

Does anyone have any questions? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: We appreciate your patience in 

staying here too. It's certainly not easy for you to sit here 
and have to listen to everybody else. It's not easy for me to 
decide who ought to go first, and I really didn't have any 
particular scheme here. I've kind of been jumping around from 
place to place to satisfy everybody here, and try to get 
business and labor, and a little bit of everybody. 

MR. PETERSON: It's an important issue, and it 
deserves a lot of attention. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you, Mr. Peterson. 
Doctor Freedman, the Committee of Interns and Residents. 
D 0 C T 0 R J A N E T F R E E D M A N: Thank you for the 
opportunity to testify on Assembly Bill 2850. My name is 
Doctor Janet Freedman. I'm the President of the Committee of 
Interns and Residents, a union of s, ooo resident physicians 
and dentists who work in New Jersey 

Substance abuse is a major 
the United States today. Without 

and the surrounding area. 
legal and medical issue in 
a doubt, abuse of alcohol 

and other dangerous substances is a leading cause of morbidity 
and mortality, as well as being a contributing factor to 
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social and family problems. The human consequences of 
substance abuse are seen daily on the nation's highways and in 
our hospitals. Now forms of drugs available, as we now see on 
T.V., are on the streets and are cheaper, more readily 
available, and more highly addictive. 

It's understandable, therefore, that the public is 
searching for solutions to this problem. The CIR applauds the 
New Jersey Assembly and this group for tackling this 
complicated area and attempting to devise a rational, fair 
approach to the volatile issue of drug testing. 

I have tremendous concern, however, that the 
discussion of drug testing going on in legislative bodies and 
the sensationalism of the issue by the media will mislead the 
public and the citizens of New Jersey to believe that drug 
screening will somehow provide the solution to our substance 
abuse problems. But, as I wi 11 address in my testimony, drug 
screening tests will not identify all abusers, will not 
exonerate all non-users, will not led to prevention of drug 
abuse, and will not le~d to stopping present drug abusers. 

What is required is public education and 
rehabilitation programs. Alcohol abuse has been recognized by 
the public as an illness that responds to certain 
rehabilitation techniques. Similarly, substance abuse must 
also be recognized as such and treated accordingly. 

In add it i on , 1 egis 1 at ion which acts to r e gu 1 ate drug 
testing, as this Act rightly does, needs to include detailed 
requirements of the state of the art of technical aspects of 
testing, as well as strong language regarding confidentiality 
of results, highly specific and restrictive criteria for the 
cause for testing, and penalty of misuse of the sample items. 

As a representative of the pharmaceutical industry 
has explained already the technica 1 aspects. I would just like 
to emphasize a few points on that matter. 

There's a difference in the purpose and the 
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reliability of the screening test and the confirmatory test. 
We've already heard this. Screening tests are prone to false 
positives and are only designed to screen a large population 
quickly and inexpensively. It is not a diagnostic test. 
Positives are not treated as true positives in the medical 
community; they must receive a confirmatory test such as the 
GCMS that you've heard about. 

A .major concern of the CAR with this proposed 
legislation is that it does not require this confirmatory 
testing. Section 3 does state that the commissioner may adopt 
rules and regulations to "establish standards for acquisition 
of samples," etc., "and methodology used to evaluate the 
contents of samples." I believe much more specific language 
is needed, namely that any positive screening test should be 
followed by a second professionally recognized confirmatory 
test. In addition, the bill should clearly prohibit adverse 
employer action on the basis of one unconfirmed screening test. 

I'd like to illustrate a few more of the problems 
with the currently used screening test, the immunoassay and 
the thin layer chromatography. 

As you've heard, many false positives occur from 
commonly used legal substances; these test as if they were 
controlled substances. Sud a fed wi 11 test as an amphetamine. 
Topical ointment containing lidocaine -- such as commonly used 
for hemorrhoids -- will test positive for cocaine. And any 
prescribed anti-convulsive medications may test as a 
barbiturate. 

There was a question earlier about a 
neuropathy and the medications used for diabetic 
are the same as those used for anti-convulsives, 
would test as a barbiturate. 

diabetic 
neuropathy 

and they 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: So, we'd better not test Ozzie 
because he's going to test positive. 

DR. FREEDMAN: He will be positive on the screening 
test. Okay. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How about insulin? 
DR. FREEDMAN: Pardon? 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How about insulin? 
DR. FREEDMAN: To my knowledge, I don't believe 

insulin will mimic one of the controlled substances. I may be 
wrong on that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 
those out? 

DR. FREEDMAN: Yes. 

Will confirmatory tests screen 

Confirmatory tests give what • s 
called the fingerprint, and every molecule has its own 
fingerprint, even one atom difference will show -- will do 
that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: So all those substances you raised, 
if you gave them that second test, would--

OR. FREEDMAN: Right. But as we've even heard today, 
to the best of my knowledge, the air traffic controllers have 
only had screening tests, and guilt is presumed just by having 
been given the tests, not even by knowing the results of the 
tests. 

ASSEMBLY~~N AZZOLINA: That's by Federal law, the air 
traffic controllers. We don't control that. 

DR. FREEDMAN: Pardon? 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: That's only by Federal law. 
DR. FREEDMAN : Right, but it's a good example of how 

the public can misconstrue these tests. 
In addition, employers may be quite reluctant to 

undertake the second test. As we've heard, it may be five to 
seven times more expensive than the screening test. 

I'd like to take a little aside also, and talk about 
the Breathalyzer, which has been discussed a lot here. The 
Breathalyzer test for alcohol is very different than the urine 
screening tests for other drugs. A Breathalyzer tests the 
active a lcoho 1 in the body at that time, and gives you a 
quantitative amount. 
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In driving. you're allowed to have a certain amount 
of alcohol in your blood and still be legal to drive. The 
Breathalyzer tells you if you're over that limit. Drug 
screening tests do not tell you the quantity of drug in the 
body: they just show you inactive met abo 1 i tes. They do not 

tell you when the drug was taken. how much was taken, and they 
do not tell you if the person is a regular user or an 
infrequent user. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: 
your system? 

DR. FREEDMAN: Which? 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: 

last time a~month ago. 

How long does that stay in 

Let's say I took drugs the 

DR . 'fREEDMAN: 
speaking about. 

It depends on the drug that you're 

DR . FREEDMAN : I have a better question. How long 
does it take to drain it out? 

DR. FREEDMAN: Okay. This depends on the drug you're 
speaking of. and it depends on the individual. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Cocaine, that's the biggest 
one. I guess. 

DR. FREEDMAN: Cocaine. to my understanding. takes 
several days to be clear. However. the metabolism of an 
individual and other medications they may be taking. legal or 
illegal. can alter how quickly a body clears it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: How about marijuana, and 
what's that other-- Marijuana. does that take long to get--

DR. FREEDMAN: Marijuana takes long because marijuana 
is stored in the fat cells. An overweight person will keep 
marijuana in their body, although not being impaired by it. 
for a longer length of time. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: The other more severe than 
cocaine. what's that? 

DR. FREEDMAN: Heroin. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: 
stay in the system? 

Heroin, how long does that 

DR. FREEDMAN: To my understanding, metabolites of 

heroin will be clear in about three to four days. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Okay. 
DR. FREEDMAN: But again, these have very variable 

rates, depending upon the person. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: So you can assume in most 

cases that they probably had drugs within a month or so? 
DR. FREEDMAN: I • m not a toxicologist, but I would 

say that•s a safe assumption, within a month, but not, 
currently -- at the time how much, not how frequent. A 
person who has taken marijuana--

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: And can you tell which drug 
they•d been on? 

DR. FREEDMAN: A confirmatory test will tell you 
which drug. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: A confirmatory test? 
DR. FREEDMAN: The second test, the GCMS. 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: The urine? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The spectrophotometry. 
ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: What•s that? 
DR. FREEDMAN: 

specific test. 
It is done on the urine, but it is a 

ASSEMBLYMAN AZZOLINA: Okay. 
DR. FREEDMAN: In addition, if a person has used 

marijuana for 30 days, every day, and a person has used 
marijuana once. 30 days ago. both these people may be 
positive, and the test doesn•t tell you if one person has more 
or less. It•s the same. 

In addition the language calling for a confirmatory 
test, the CIR supports proposals by others to amend the bill 
to require the formation of an advisory panel consisting of 
labor, management, technical and medical experts. to make 
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recommendations to the commissioner regarding the development 
of regulations authorized by this bill, including which tests 
might be used. 

I would also like to comment on issues raised in 
section 5. Again, I commend the sponsors for seeking to 
prohibit random and mass screening, and for developing a 
definition of reasonable suspicion. However, I question the 
entire issue of an employer needing to determine if a worker 
is an occasional drug user. Employers already have methods of 
discipline, or even dismissal if needed, to deal with the 
stated erratic behavior, decline in productivity, lateness, 
violence, and motor impairment. 

I also don't know the definition of the term 
11 emotional unsteadiness,., and I believe its inclusion leaves 
this bill open for unscrupulous behavior. Keeping in mind, as 
I said, that the testing cannot determine the amount of drug 
ingested, when the substance was used, how often it is used, 
or how impaired the individual is at the time of drug use or 
even at the time of testing, the term .,emotional unsteadiness., 
may be a method to corner a lot of people. This can 
circumvent the intended limitation of drug screening, and 
allow employers to test workers with very questionable cause. 

Also, once the sample is collected, there's little to 
prevent an unscrupulous employer from testing for other 
prescription medications to identify workers with a variety of 
medical problems, or even from running pregnancy tests on 
female workers, which only requires two to three drops of 
urine. 

Is it the right of an employer to know which worker 
has a treated seizure disorder or, for that matter, is it the 
right of an employer to police what employees do off the job? 
We believe a legitimate concern is the employee's safety and 
ability to do work, but neither of these are determined by 
drug screening tests. 
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The bill also does not address the issue of 
confidential handling of test results. These should be 
considered medical tests, with results treated as such. No 
provision is made for reporting of results. Should the 
results of testing be reported to the future employers. to the 
police. or to an employee's personal or family physician? 

And, most importantly. what is an employer to do with 
a positive drug screening result? A testing program that is 
not a part of substance abuse rehabilitation is more than 
useless. 

·Existing rehabilitation programs do utilize testing 
as part of their programs, but only when integrated into 
extensive counseling and treatment. 

In summary, the CIR recognizes that substance abuse 
is a serious disorder and the public is eager for a solution 
to this complex problem, but drug screening is not such a 
solution. Even with carefully used tests and an understanding 
of the meaning of the results, drug testing represents a 
potential invasion for privacy and violation of medical 
confidentiality. Drug testing cannot distinguish the casual 
user from the abuser, and it cannot distinguish the user from 
the pus~er. 

Assembly Bill number 2850 begins to address the 
complex issue of regulation of drug testing, but the CIR 
opposes this bill in its current form. 

We encourage the commit tee to include, 1) a 
mandatory, confirmatory, second test: 2) an advisory committee 
to participate in development of regulations, and keep the 
commissioner informed of new technical and legal developments: 
3) stronger pena 1 ties from misuse of the test by unscrupulous 
employers, and the right of workers to challenge test results; 
4) confidentiality of test results with no release of results 
unless authorized by the ind i vidua 1 concerned: and, s} drug 
rehabilitation programs available to all workers of this 
State. Thahk you. 
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ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you very much. That was 
excellent testimony and over soon. So. your suggestions. I 
think, are well taken as far as making improvements on the 
bill or, if they're not ultimately in the bill. the material 
that the advisory committee needs to examine if they're going 
to come up with a viable testing program that's acceptable in 
part, if not totally. to all of the interests concerned. 

Please give my regards to John Ranches. He· used to 
be one of my bosses many years ago, so say hello to him. 

Hey. John! I didn • t see you back there. John used 
to be Vice President of the AFL-CIO. I mean, we've gone to a 
more affluent profession now. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: What's he doing with the interns? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Well, he negotiates contracts 

for doctors. That • s a lot better than negotiating contracts 
for laborers, you know. 

DR. FREEDMAN: I don't know if it's any easier though. 
ASSr:MBLYMAN L ITTr:LL: Thank you, Doc tor. 
DR. FREEDMAN: Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Now we have two left, as I see 

it, Mike Roche, of GPU Nuclear Corp., and Bill l'~enimore of 
PSE&G. 

Don Bates? 
MR. BATES: I'm with Mike. 
MR. ROCHE: Don can lead off and then I'll follow up. 

G. D 0 N A L D B A T E S: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and 
members of the Committee. I know it's late and I'll be brief, 
but my name is Don Bates and I •m Assistant Manager of Public 
Affairs for Jersey Central. 

of a 
Jersey Central generally supports 
standard rule and regulation 

the establishment 
relating to the 

administration of drug abuse tests. However, we strongly feel 
that any guidelines. rules, regulations, that are adopted are 
not adopted without the detailed input of the business 
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community. and I think that•s the way you•re heading. 
But. with respect to the bi 11. we take exception to 

section 5 which states. 11 lt shall be unlawful for an employer 
to administer any drug tests to any employer without first 
having reasonable suspicion ... Jersey Central feels that it•s 
our obligation to do everything that we can to ensure that the 
employees are of sound mind when they • re on the job. whether 
it be a meter reader going house to house. or a lineman or 
linewoman whose negligence would severely injury themselves. 
other workers. or cut service to our customers. 

Presently Jersey Central does not have a random drug 
screening program. but we would like that option available to 
us if we determine it would be in the best interest of our 
employees and our customers. 

Now at our Oyster Creek Nuclear Station, the 
implementation of a random drug screening program is being 
considered. so with me today is Mike Roche from our GPU 
Nuclear Corporation, who's the operations chief of our nuclear 
plant, who will discuss the reasons and methods of such a 
program. 
M I K E R 0 C H E: Thank you. I'm Mike Roche. I • m the 
Safety and Environmental Controls Director for GPU Nuclear. 

In the amendments to your bill. I notice that there • s 
a potential for an advisory commit tee. I kind of empathize 
with both you and the advisory committee. since I just spent a 
year on such an advisory committee. setting up the policy and 
procedure for what we call 11 fitness for duty. 11 That's kind of 
a nuclear term that covers both drug abuse and alcohol abuse. 
We now have -- the company has had since its inception -- a 
policy on fitness for duty. We now have a new policy and a 
new procedure which deals with fitness for duty. It went into 
effect in June of this year. 

I have prepared written comments. and I distributed 
them. I • m just going to try to hit the highlights to save 
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time. We believe there should be no unnecessary doubt about 
worker fitness in any endeavor with the potential to 
significantly affect public health and safety. That's been 
said before by others. 

In the nuclear industry there's a particular 
sensitivity to both drug and alcohol abuse. The U.S. Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission. on August 4th. issued a policy 
statement in which there are minimum standards that they have 
established for fitness for duty procedures and programs. 

One of the those standards requires that there be an 
effective monitoring and testing procedure to provide 
reasonable assurance that the people working at the station. 
or that are involved with the nuclear industry, are fit for 
duty. In fact. just recently, the u.s. NRC has decided to 
randomly test their own employees who go to the sites. 

A program which only tests people suspected of being 
under the influence does not provide sufficient incentive for 
people to refrain from using illegal substances, and we 
believe that one portion of the proposed statute which would 
essentially prevent 
broadened to allow 
p r o c e d u r e a t Oy s t e r 
random, routine, 
rehabilitation, and 
abhorrent behavior. 

random or routine testing should be 
both type of testing. In fact the 

Creek. really has five types of testing, 
pre-employment, a follow-up to 

"for cause" if there is observation of 

By the way, the company does have an -- has embarked 
on an education program to train supervisors and employees to 
the dangers of both drug and alcohol abuse. The industry in 
general the electric utility industry has produced a 
booklet which provides guidelines to the utilities for such 
programs. 

Finally, the company applauds the efforts of the 
Committee to adopt uniform standards. Much of the work. that I 
did in the past year on the advisory committee was to deal 
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with that very question, and it's a thorny issue. However, we 
believe that the legislation should be broadened to allow 
random and routine testing in any endeavor which involves or 
has the potential to involve and impact on the public health 
and safety. 

Additionally, we don't believe that there should be a 
link to the collective bargaining agreement, as in the latter 
part of the bill. Thank you. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Mr. Roche, is the Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission going to move into this area as the 
Federal Railroad Regulatory Commission has? 

MR. ROCHE: The Nuclear Regulatory Commission's 
policy recognizes that the electric utility industry has 
adopted a kind of self-policeing approach. They referenced 
the NRC's policy-- The Nuclear Regulatory Commission's 
policies directs the uti 1 it ies to adopt the guidelines 
developed by the industry in a booklet, which is about 40 or 
50 pages. It says that if the utilities don't do that, they 
will take enforcement action against them. So, in an indirect 
way the NRC has said that. 

We believe from feedback that we've gotten from 
inspectors from the NRC, that they wi 11 -- that the programs 
that, for example, we have will be sufficient to satisfy their 
criteria. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 
involved--

MR. ROCHE: TPU? 

Mr. Roche, the CPU Nuclear was 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: TPU. It says CPU here. TPU 
Nuclear was involved with litigation before Judge Hyatt, isn't 
that correct? Is it the same company? I have a note here: 
"U.S. District Court Judge Daniel Hyatt issued an injunction 
against testing" it says "CPU Nuclear Corporation. 1986. 

Judge Block random tested 3200 employees at nuclear plants in 
New Jersey and Pennsylvania until an arbitrator determines 
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whether the tests are legal under a union contract." 
your company? 

Is that 

MR. ROCHE: That is our company. That case is in 
Pennsylvania only. It's not in New Jersey. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Oh, okay. 
MR. ROCHE: It's at our Three Mile Island Plant. 

There is a pending arbitration which will be heard next week 
on that particular-- It's the same policy. however. that 
we're applying at Oyster Creek. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: And there the issue is basically 
whether the company had the unilateral right to impose the 
policy? 

MR. ROCHE: There's two issues. One is that-- The 
second issue is whether there is rand om and routine testing, 
or an abrogation of the constitutional rights of the 
individuals. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Do you see why we need a uniform 
policy? There's a judge everywhere in this State and in the 
country making decisions about this. 

MR. ROCHE: I'd like to point out that if you look 
over the utilities in the country and you see the cases, 
particularly related to nuclear utilities but not 
exclusively you'll find the arbitrators and judges are 
ruling in favor of the utilities. 

There's a PEPCO case in Virginia that was-- Judge 
Harold Green enjoined the company from applying a policy 
identical essentially identical to the EEl or our 
policy. In that case the arbitrator has ruled that PEPCO does 
have the right to randomly and routinely drug test. 

In Florida just recently I haven't seen the 
decision yet -- there's a Federal or a state court in Florida 
that says Florida Power and Light has the duty to test their 
employees on drug screening. So you--

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: You basically view those types of 
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employees as being almost quasi public safety, and being in 
the form of an exempt category from a 
tests. You feel you should be able 
because of their employment situation. 

prohibition on random 
to do them basically 

MR. ROCHE: Yes. The potential for impact on public 
health and safety warrants the extra caution. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 
a dealer at the casino? 

Greater with a nuclear worker than 

MR. ROCHE: Okay. 
MR. BATES: Tom, 

I'll accept that. 
not only or, Assemblyman, not 

only with nuclear workers, but also with our linemen, who 
handle very high voltages and could not only injure themselves 
but other individuals as well -- co-workers and the public. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: So then, where do you draw the 
line? What do you do about trainmen who operate trains, or 
people who ,4rive buses, or -- you know -- lift operators at a 
construction site? I mean, everybody could make a pitch for 
having an exempt category. But a bill that allows you to do 
tests based upon probable cause or a reasonable suspicion 
enables it places a burden on your supervisors, does it 
not? They've got to know their work crews if they want to 
administer one of these tests, or require one of these tests. 

MR. BATES: It may be too late once they determine 
that there's abnormal behavior. It may be too late. 

MR. ROCHE: Toward the influence of drugs, the NRC 
has a study conducted of what is known as the impact of 
various substances drugs and alcohol -- various types of 
drugs, and cognitive skills, vigilance. There are a lot of 
characteristics that are affected by drugs, and those are the 
things that if you can relate those impacts to the potential 
for public safety and health--

ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: What about the argument that the 
ACLU makes, or that some of the other people make, that "I •m 
an occasional recreational user of marijuana. Saturday night 
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it's a party. I'm out with my girlfriend or boyfriend. or 
what have you. and I smoke a few joints and I come and you 
decide for some reason you want to test me on a Tuesday and I 
come up with those traces? 

MR. ROCHE: In our--
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: Fire them. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That's what they're going to do. 
ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: There are company--
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: But it hasn't impaired my work or 

anything like that. It just-- They just decided to do it to 
me. 

ASSEMBLYMAN MILLER: They could become a heavy user 
-- go to cocaine or something else later on. 

You know, let me say it just gets to me that nobody 
wants to accept the responsibility for their actions. 
Everybody else has to accept my responsibility for my 
actions. We have a social welfare program going -- everything 
it surrounds, including this. This is social welfare. We 
have to take care of these people. We have to rehabilitate 
them. We can't get at the bottom of it because it's such a 
complex situation. 

But, "Okay, you go ahead and use it, and maybe we' 11 
test you; maybe we won't be allowed to test you. But you go 
ahead and use it and if you really get in trouble, we'll take 
care of you." Come on, it's got to stop someplace, and we've 
got to do something to try to prevent it, Torn, and to prevent 
it is this taking a test taking a shot when they least 
expect it to keep them on their toes. It's part of the 
program. 

MR. ROCHE: Could I just respond to Assemblyman Foy? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Go ahead. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: What do you do in those 

circumstances? 
MR. ROCHE: We have, in both nuclear and non-nuclear 
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uti 1 i ty business, emergencies. They may be created by 
weather. They may be created by equipment failures. In our 
plant we have people who are on emergency duty. They are on 
emergency call. Our policy says that we expect the people who 
work for our company to not indulge in that kind of activity, 
and, admittedly -- as we've heard -- that is an infringement 
for off-the- job work: however, there are special 
responsibilities and duties that these I and all my 
co-workers have, that we have to deal with. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: So, to your job applicants it•s a 
condition of employment? 

MR. ROCHE: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: That they have to have a more 

circumspect personal life to work for GPU Nuclear because of 
the nature of the job? 

MR. ROCHE: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: And what • s the compensating balance 

for that fact? They are paid well? They have a chance to 
call in the guards, or-- (laughs) 

MR. BATES: Satisfaction. They have a safe job. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Mr. Roche? 

-
MR. ROCHE: Yes? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I don• t know which employees --

whether you would just want the nuclear and the guys that 
handle 440 or 220 -- you know, where you would draw the line. 

But if we did come to some sort of agreement for at 
least people that work in the nuclear phase, would you be 
satisfied if they were put in the public service section which 
deals with policemen and firemen, and would be under the 
control of the Attorney General? 

MR. ROCHE: The proposed amendment that I saw, that 
has that, I think is a good start: that would help. If we 
could broaden that to the public health and safety, that would 
be fine. 
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As I say, I applaud the effort to standardize the 
administrative aspects. We deal in Pennsylvania, and 
Pennsylvania has a licensing procedure for laboratories the 
labs that we use are licensed. That rigorous approach to the 
laboratory control is mandatory, and when we started the 
testing that we•ve done, we•ve done our own blind testing of 
the lab. So, I think that is a good start. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I don't know. That's something 
we have to-- I just wanted to know how you would feel. 
Rather than exempt them, I would think what we have to do is 
find a way to maybe focus some special attention on somebody 
that's handling a nuclear reactor. We don't want a Chernobyl 
here. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: 
workers? 

MR. ROCHE: 
Federal preemption. 

There 
The NRC 

Can the State regulate nuclear 

is a substantial question about 
is establishing policy that has 

implications on what we do, 
policy issued on August 4th, 

and we haven't having the 
we're not exactly sure of that 

Federal preemption. 
JIM HARKNESS: 

(indiscernible). 
It may be that we don't have the 

MR. ROCHE: It could be there'd be no jurisdiction. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: I don 1 t think we have jurisdiction 

to regulate that. In so many different areas-- I mean, I 
represent workers in the nuclear industry in my capacity as an 
attorney, and in so many areas where we try to deal through 
the State court system on issues that affect them, the 
preemption issue comes up and prevails. And I think that in 
this instance you may be preempted out of this bi 11 as a 
result of the operation of Federal law. 

We don't know yet, because we don•t--
MR. ROCHE: I would encourage the concept of public 

health and safety, but that may be true. We'll provide 
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specific recommendations and comments on the amendments which 

we looked at the first time this morning. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Is the A.G. 's office going to 

make recommendations as to which public employees. and 
critical employees be exempted? 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Yes, they are. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Not just concerning his realm of 

responsibility? 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Right. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Overall? 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Overall. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yeah, I think so. That may include 

people beyond just the 2C. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: The scope of law enforcement and 

public safety? 
DR . FREEDMAN : Well, they will be related in some 

fashion the public safety as opposed to just law 
enforcement. Public safety may involve other things besides. 

For example, bridge tenders may be people who apply 

in circumstances involving public safety -- bridges that cross 
over to the beach. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: We may have to specifically ask 
him if he has any jurisdiction or interest in this matter. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Yeah. I would say that the 
Attorney General should be open to suggestions from interested 
parties, people who feel that they have employees, or people 
who are involved in their work force who should be exempt, and 
of course, present this to him, and as the chief law 
enforcement in the State we should take these recommendations 
and (indiscernible). 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: What will happen is that the people 
who when they say exempt from this bill, that means exempt 
from the prohibition against random and routine. The Attorney 
General is basically going to promulgate regulations that are 

122 

•• 



going to authorize random and routine testing. So anybody who 
is exempted from this bill is going to be somebody who wants 
their employees to be tested for a peculiar nexus to law 
enforcement or public safety. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Sure, and that would be 
certainly in line with their business. I think it's good. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Is there anybody else in the 
audience to speak? 
last one. 

PSE&G? Is there anyone else? He's the 

B I L L G. F E N I M o R E: Just a few comments. First 
of all, I'm Bill Fenimore, the Manager of State Governmental 
Affairs for PSE&G, and I won't belabor some of the issue that 
you've heard several times, if not 10 or 12 times today. But 
I did want to add some comments. 

Number one, I think some of you may be aware that 
Public Service has had a drug screening plan now since 1983. 
We do not do random testing, but we do testing when we feel 
there's a reason, based on an employee's behavior. 

You heard one of the horror stories today; I can give 
you four or five in the opposite direction, but that's not 
necessary. Those things happen when people are involved, 
people administering the program and people being subject to 
the program, and you're never going to eliminate that in its 
entirety. 

I would also suspect that perhaps a couple of 
comments may have been left out of that story that may have 
given a little better light. I don't know. I'm not that 
familiar with the story. 

But we've had the program now since 1983. In 
addition to that program, back in the early '70s we introduced 
what we ca 11 our persona 1 guidance program which allows for 
rehabilitation, or assistance. We don't pay for it. We would 
object to being required to pay for a drug abuser's 
rehabilitation, since we do not feel we should be responsible 
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for it. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Let me just stop you for a second. 

Does you medical plan call for it, like your Blue Cross and 
Blue Shield? 

MR. FENIMORE: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay, so when you say you don't--
MR. FENIMORE: Well, wait. I don't know that it 

covers drugs. I think there's some legislation flowing 
through now trying to get that incorporated into group 
insurance plans. It does include alcoholism. That is covered. 

policy. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: So, you do pay for it indirectly? 
MR. FENIMORE: Indirectly. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: By paying the premium for the 

MR. FEN I MORE: Yeah. We pay part of the premium and 
the employee pays part. That's a negotiated figure, so that's 
reasonable. But to be mandated, we'd object to that, 
obviously. 

But the program itself gives the employee the 
opportunity to go to a persona 1 guidance person who does not 
work for us. Their concern is hired by us. It's purely 
confidential. Only when the medical director determines that 
the supervisor should know -- for example, if he's going to be 
absent, if he's going to be institutionalized, then the 
supervisor is made aware. If he's of the condition that he 
can work -- do some work, but perhaps not hazardous work 
then the supervisor would be made aware. But we try to keep 
the confidentiality to the extent that we can, within the 
obvious limits that you have to work with. 

We do have some concerns with a couple of sections of 
the bill. One of the sections that I haven't heard anyone 
comment on today, unless I missed it somewhere along the way 
-- in section 4, the way that I read that, until such time as 
either the commission comes up with its ideas or the 
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commissioner determines his regulations, we would be forbidden 
to do any further testing until that point, and we are very 
concerned to try to keep the workplace drug-free as much as 
possible. A very significant part of that is to make sure we 
don•t enter into the work force, drug addicts or abusers 
and we would want the right to continue testing applicants, 
regardless of what•s finally developed here, during that 
period. We would not want to just open the doors and allow 
anybody to come in without the test, and find out later that 
we•ve got a problem. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: How about-- Would you be 
willing to submit records of any tests that you conducted 
during that period of time to the commissioner? 

MR. FENIMORE: Sure. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: So that we can at least monitor 

what•s going on? 
MR. FENIMORE: No problem. Those of us that have 

programs now, this bill looks like it would stop them in that 
interim period, and we would rather not do that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN l''OY: Yeah, the way the bill• s written in 
section 4, you•re quite correct. It would indicate that there 
would be a moratorium on these until the regulations were 
promulgated. 

When the bill was originally drafted, you have to 
understand, the bill was drafted as a skeleton to pass the 
ba 11 to the Commissioner of Labor. Quite obviously, in the 
time the bill was originally drafted until now, the dimensions 
of the issue have been brought to the attention of everyone 
involved, and it•s obviously not something that•s going to 
happen overnight. So, that--

MR. FENIMORE: I realize that, but I just wanted to 
point it out because I hadn•t heard that. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yeah, I think we need to address 
that issue, and I appreciate your raising it. No question 
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about that. 
MR. FENIMORE: It's a question that we have. You've 

heard the nuclear side of the story. We. obviously. concur 
with them. I' rn not so sure that we would be exempted under 
the existing regulations. 

The reason I say that is. NRC policy doesn't require 
drug testing. but it does say what will happen if you're found 
to have drug abusers working in the areas unescorted. I'm not 
sure. Torn. but this is what I'm told. In reading the 
regulations. they don't dictate drug tests. but they dictate 
fitness for duty. They don't say you must test for drugs to 
make sure that they are; they say you must be sure they're fit 
for duty, the way I understand it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN r'OY: Right. The way I interpret it is: 
You have a Federal authorization to conduct drug tests in your 
judgment. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: No. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Now? 
ASSEMBLYMAN F'OY: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: PSE&G? 
ASSEMBLYMAN r'OY: Yes. 
MR. FENIMORE: I think he's talking about nuclear. 
ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: Oh, I'm sorry. Okay. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: The NRC's policy is that it is 

within their discretion and authority to conduct drug tests. 
And that may be the preemptive mechanism. 

MR. FENIMORE: Okay. But it's within our discretion 
is what I mean. They don't mandate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Yes. They don't mandate that you 

conduct them. but they authorize you to do it if you so choose. 
MR. FENIMORE: Yes. And they do rnanda te an annua 1 

physical. which is the time we do it -- unless there • s some 
unusual circumstance where we feel an employee is. you know. 
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doing something that there's obviously something wrong with. 
and then we may require the test. That's the gist of the 
program now. You have an option. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Excuse me. You do it when 
they're getting their physical. Do they know they're having a 
test taken? 

MR. FENIMORE: 
a public policy. The 
employee that comes in. 

Oh. yes. Every employee knows. It • s 
whole program is issued to any new 
and all the employees that were there 

when the program came into existence. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: But do you see the wide divergence 

in policies now? Some places I think Bob mentioned it --
never even told you. They may we 11 have done it. and that 
could have been the reason he had a false positive. Again. it 
brings to the fore the need for some uniformity as far as this 
goes. 

You know, the rudiments of due process in anything 
under the Constitution are noticed. and the opportunity to be 
heard. and there's a lot of that due process missing in what 
we've heard today about the administration of drug tests. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: I have to sympathize with your 
concerns about section 4 of this bill. It will no longer 
allow you people to conduct it. How long have you been 
conducting this test? 

MR. FENIMORE: We've had a drug test since 1983 
drug screening. We've done the physicals on all new 
applicants. I know I had mine back in -- 30 years ago. But 
the drug part has been introduced as of 1983. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: So it's section 4 in this bill. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: We made a note of that. If we 

have a grandfather clause which says a company that has a 
policy may continue to implement that policy. and we'll put a 
section in there that says that during the interim period. 

when it's signed into law and before it's implemented. that 
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once a month they would send a report on all tests that they 
do to the commissioner so that he at least is aware of what's 
going on. 

MR. FENIMORE: The nature of the program that we have 
is. if the supervisor -- and we have to trust in his judgment 
to some extent -- determines that an employee has exhibited 
some form of behavioral problem. that he should be tested. the 
employee is told that the supervisor has come to that 
conclusion and that he 1 s ordering him to go with him to the 
medical -- wherever it may be in that particular location --
and have the test administered. The employee is also told 
that if he refuses the test. he will be suspended until 
further discuss ion. If he accepts the test and he • s found 
positive. no disciplinary action will be taken; he 1 ll be then 
referred to some form of a rehabilitative program. That's the 
purpose of it. not to discipline. 

If he turns us down, and refuses to go. you • re left 
with no option except an insubordinate employee. in a sense. 
who may or may not be a drug abuser. 

ASSEMBLYMAN r'OY: Is that suspension and discipline 
grievable under your contract? 

MR. FENIMORE: Yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay. so. they have the protection 

of the collective bargaining agreement regarding potential 
abuse by supervisors with respect to that? 

MR. FENIMORE: Yes. Oh. yes. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: An employee can say. 11 I don 1 t want 

to take the test because he or she doesn 1 t think that I 1 m on 
drugs; he 1 S mad because he saw me in the bar with his wife one 
Saturday ... 

MR. FENIMORE: Could be. 
ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Okay? But the collective 

bargaining agreement protects him. that 1 s the important thing. 
MR. FENIMORE: He would be suspended and then the 
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grievance would be instituted by the union. and that would be 
carried forth on that point as to whether or not the 
suspension was or was not appropriate. 

ASSEMBLYMAN GENOVA: With or without pay? 
MR. FENIMORE: With pay suspension. Now that doesn•t 

mean that at the end of the grievance procedure he may not be 
reinstated with pay; that frequently happens. Sometimes we 
think they're mediators instead of arbitrators. At times they 
give both of us a little bit. and sometimes we give a guy 10 
days. and he gets five days with pay and five days without 
you know? 

But. basically, the purpose of it is not for 
discipline, and none of the PGB programs are for discipline. 
The alcoholic program, which has been in effect for quite a 
few years, PGB was brought into effect in the early '70s just 
for alcoholism at that time. and any other emotional problems 
you may have. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: Would it be possible for you to 
disclose to us a copy of your policy what that program is 
so we can see what an existing program is? 

MR. FENIMORE: sure, it's public knowledge. Sure. I 
can get you a copy of it. 

ASSEMBLYMAN FOY: IT you could, make those copies 
available to the Committee because I'd like to see just how 
yours works, because I'm sure it involves a lot of the aspects 
that we've heard about today from both sides of the issue. 

MR. FENIMORE: But we still have some problems in the 
sense that we don't feel that we should have to have any 
definition of what is reasonable cause because of the nature 
of our business, as you've heard talk. 

And I recognize that you have concern: Where do you 
draw the line? But if you think about 24 million visits to 
customer's homes. just by meter readers alone. I think the 
public has some right to know that an individual who they 
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I, 

1. 

1. 

must, in some sense, give access to -- because if the meter is 
inside, sooner or later we've got to get in; if we don't we've 
got to do something that • s unhappy for both of us -- should 
have the ability to have the ease of mind that these employees 
corning in and out of their homes, which is all of our 
business, are free of drugs and not in any sense going to 
endanger them as a result of us permitting these people on the 
street. 

That's why we talk about, and we've had some comments 
about why we feel utilities, period, should be exempted for at 
least those who have any contact with customers. They have 
the right to deserve that. And we've heard some comments 
today -- Newt's made quite a few-- and aside from the general 
company posit ion, I think we have to give some thought to the 
rest of the public and the protection that they deserve to 
have from drug abusers. Whatever that situation may be, we've 
got to take some action; there's no question about that. 

them. 
I'd be glad to answer any other questions if you have 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: We have a question from staff. 
MR. FENIMORE: Sure. 
MR. DEVANEY: On the interim period, could you tell 

us a little bit about what kind of safeguards there would be 
available for PSE&G employees, such as, would there be a 
second test if a positive comes up? 

MR. FENIMORE: That's the normal. 
MR. DEVANEY: That's normal? 
MR. FENIMORE: 
MR. DEVANEY: 
MR. FENIMORE: 

I can verify that for you. 
So you would have no objection to--

But as I understand it, 
positives that come up, there is an attempt to be sure. 

those 

MR. DEVANEY: Okay, then you would have no objection 
to certain safeguards in the amendment for the interim period 
that would allow you to continue testing with perhaps 
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confirmation, written policy statements, and confidentiality? 
MR. FENIMORE: No. We, in essence, support that part 

of the bi 11. We don • t see any problem in regulations and 
safeguards in how the tests are administered in the form of 
medical, etc. It's just that who gets tested is where we have 
a concern, not so much how. We support that part of the bill, 
no question about that. We've been doing it for years, and 
we've been doing it with the advice of medical professionals, 
etc., to try to do it the right way. But we haven • t gone to 
random testing at this point, and we have no intention to at 
this stage. But that may change, depending on what we find 
under normal circumstances. 

ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: Thank you very much. 
MR. FENIMORE: Okay. Thank you. 
ASSEMBLYMAN LITTELL: I want to say thank you to 

everybody. I think it's been an excellent hearing today. 
We're going to take all these ideas and put them together and 
we'll have a bill tomorrow morning. (laughter) 

(HEARING CONCLUDED) 
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l-ll~R SI~~R\~ICE CORPOR~~TION 
A Subs1d1ary of Hoffmann-La Roche Inc Nutley. New Jersey 07110 

Mr. James Harkness 
Deputy Counsel 

August 19, 1986 

Republican General Assembly Majority Office 
State House Annex 
CN 001 
Trenton, New Jersey 08625 

Dear Jim: 

This is to confirm that Dr. ~lark Po we 11, Director of the Department of 
Pharmaceutical and Toxicological Testing for Roche Biomedical Laboratories in 
Raritan, New Jersey, will accompany me for the hearing on Assembly Bill 2850, 
a bill which would authorize the Department of Labor to establish uniform 
standards for the use of drug abuse tests in the workplace. I have attached 
some biographical information about Dr. Powell. 

As I mentioned in our phone conversation last week, I am attaching a copy of 
a letter which I wrote to Assemblyman Willie Brovm addressing his concerns 
about drug abuse testing in the workplace as a result of various reports that 
blacks may shov; grec:tEY sensitivity to the drug abuse test for marijuana 
because they have circulating blood levels of the skin pigment melanin in 
their blood. The attachments tc the letter to Mr. Brown are also enclosed for 
your information. 

We are looking forward to participating in your hearing on September 4 at 1:00 
p.m. Please don 1 t hesitate to contact me in advance if we can be of further 
assistance with your planning for the hearing. 

JBD/sf 

Enclosures 

cc: Or. Mark Powell 

hn 8. Dalton 
egional Manager 

State Government Affairs 



Roche Biomedical Laboratories, Inc. 
1 Roche Drive • P.O. Box 500 • Raritan, New Jersey 08869 
(20'1) 52&-2400 (N.J.) (100) 631·~ 
(100) 35245J (N.J. onty) 

-··-.• --.. :"';.:-:-;;-
.:...;, .. ·.-: 

Roche Biomedical Laboratories recently announced the appoinc-
ment of Dr. Mark L. Powell to Director of the Departmenc of 
Phar:aceutical and Toxicological Testing in Raritan, Nev Jersey. 
:he new de?art~ent will be involved in bioanalytical testing for 
therapeutic drugs under development, as well as the expanding 
area of toxicology testing for drugs of abuse. 

Dr. Powell received his Ph.D. in Medicinal Chemistry from the 
University of Washington in Seattle. He joins Roche from 

c. 
~~ering Cor?oration where he worked for five years as a Principal 
Scientist in the Drug Metabolism depart:ent. He has published 
numerous articles in various scientific journals and books. "lt 
is a reunion of sorts, since Dr. Powell worked at Hoff:ann-La 
Roche in 1980 where he coc?leteci his Post-Doctoral Fellow in the 
depart:e=t of Bioche:i~try a~d Drug Metabolism. 

For the pas: two years, Dr. Powell has served on the steering 
committee of the North Jersey Drug Metabolism Discussion Group, 
American Chemical Society. !~ addition, he is a member of the 
American Society for Mass Spectrometry, American A~sociation for 
the Aciva~ce:e~: o: Scie~ce, Acer~can Chemical Society, and was 
recently appointed to the board of directors of !he Epilepsy 

Institute. 

Mark and his wi!e, Hariann, reside in Upper Montclair, New Jersey 

!hey have three children. 



HLR SER\7ICE CORPORATION 
A SuOS>C>ary of Hoffmann-La Roc~e Inc Nutley, New Jersey 07110 

The Honorable Willie B. Brown 
375 Wainwright Street 
Newark, New Jersey 07112 

Dear Mr. Brown: 

July 31, 1925 

~hen we ~e: rece~:.y in 7rent:n a: a le:is~ative sessicn, ycJ inticatej that 
one of your concerns a~o~t drus a:~se t~s:ing in tne work;lace resulted from 
various reports that blac~s ~ay shew greater sensitivity to the drug abuse 
test for marijuana beca:.:se they, like his;:?anics, have higher circulating 
bleod levels of the skin pig~en: melanin in their bleed. I have learned that 
this is not the case ant have a::a:het articles which discuss this matter. 

In an artic~e wh~cn ap:eare: in Che~~ca1 and Enc~nee~in: ~ews en June 2, 1926, 
on pa;e 11, Richarc L. Hawks c~ tne Research Je:nnoJcgy 2rancn of the National 
Institt,;te en Cr.;s ;..::Jse, s:a:es "7r,e"'e is nc substance t: the meia:;in issue." 
~ir. Ha·t~<s refers tc resear:;-, c:r.e a: t~.e Gniversity of ~1~ssissippi which 
ccnc~~cet there is nc in:e,..fe"'e~:e frc~ ~e1anin in tne ~arij~ana drJg atuse 
t:s~. : h2.\'E c.~s: c::a,:~e: c c:'C~/ c.-~ c ~e::::: t.: the e:4tcr cf the Covrr:cl cf 
Analvtica~ ,:x"c:lc~y of ~~·y:~~;~s: ,o:: i~ w~~c~ the Cnive~s~:; cf 
~~ss1ssi~:~ res2arc~e~s c:~c~~ce: :~a: :~e c:rce"'~ a:cJ: me1a~in in~erfe~in; 
in the sc~E~"".·;;;: cr cc:.-:-~r'7.:.:~c;, c~ tr:e ~..-.=::: .. f:r rr.c:~j:...·:.:.e is t~::.~i~; 
~~jus:~fie:. ! ;c~ 1 t ~c:e :~a: t~~s i~~:r~e:~c~ ~ea~s y:~ :c c:nc1u~e t~a: 
t~ac<s s~:-1c nc: have a :~::·e~ ~i:~ f~1se ~:s•:i;es tne ~er1~~ana tes:s 

o~ TJescay, ~-~Y ,!, as :a~: c~ a si:e visi: a: Hcffma~~-~a Roche, we h:s:e~ 
leg4s~c::rs a,..i~ c:~~e,....s c::E~:~r.~ t~e C:...::~c~l c7 S:.:.:e G:·.·e~;.:7.e~.:sl E:.s:e~:J 
Fe·:~·crj;.~ Cc;,~e!""::--.:2 c.~.~~¥;., -=~:~r.:. C~:'"'~::: : ..... e s~:E .._,.:.s~: a s:~ir.:.; w:.s 

"'"'- · _,...,..;. ·Y"··.- .. -..,.c.-. •c .... -.:,.....~ .:.;., .. i---c '~""' ~--~- .... - ;......: .... ~ ,..:..:C:::,...'!C:.C::: ... ,..: t._.::. t~.,~ c .... r~c ..... c ... '.:'- en c ..... ::',::._.,.._::: L. ..... ::; ... , •• :: ;,, ""'""- w._r<.,.....~._:: w .. l.._.l '-'_ ........ __ c: .... :J_ !il 

e~:ere: ~; Asse-:·:-e~ F:y a~: _ ·-=. · ::-2~~:· cr :~~s sJ~~e::. ~e~s:~~e 
fr:m c~r Jia;~:s:~c =~~e~s~:~s a~: ~::~e ~~=~e:~:a· ~~::~a::,..ies c~vis~:~5 
partic~~:.:e: in ~h:.: SC"7:~;..:.~ :: sr;:.r~ :;.e~r ;::eY"s;:E::~·.te~ :- ... , :::~s s~!:~e·::. Yc~ 
me.,; te ir.:e:es:e: in Cisc~sS~:'; t~:.: s~~ir.cr ~N~th ;._ss:~:~·;;,'ic;; F:v a:.d in 
r e ~: i e ..• i n s r. i s b i ; l . • -

p 1 e a 5 e d c n r t he s ~ : =.: e t J c .:, ;--, : c..: : r:-. E I I ~.i c '..J h c ',• E a~ J' i \wi r: ~. E ~ c ~: s: i 0 ~ s 0 n t h i s 
mat:er, or if there is any o:~er way 1~ ~~~c~ I ca~ as5~s: yew. 

JB :J/sf 
A::achmen:s 

cc: The Honoraj1e Th:~as F:y 
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llU AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION OF NEW JERSEY 

38 WALNUT STREET 
NEWARK, NEW JERSEY 07102 

JEFFREY E. FOGEL 
Executive Director 

(201}642-2o84 

Hon. Robert E. Littell 
Box 328 Church Street 

___rzanklin~-R~w Jersey 07416 
'\ 

Re: A.2850 

Dear Assemblyman Littell: 

August 26, 1986 

First let me commend you again for your serious endeavors to bring 
some rationality to the hysteria of drug testing on the job. 

We are opposed to urine testing both because of the invasion of 
privacy inherent in such programs and because of the misuse of 
results. Urine tests do not demonstrate on-the-job intoxication or 
impairment and employees should not be fired for conduct with no 
demonstrable relationship with their job performance. 

A.2850 is an effort to limit testing programs to 11 reasonable 
suspicion .. and to set standards for such testing, and as such would 
provide legal protections to some workers currently subject to 
arbitrary and capricious programs. However, as presently written we 
cannot support this positive effort without addressing the following 
concerns: 

1. The definition of 11 rea~onable suspicion" is much tob broad 
and thus subject of abuse. We believe that legalistic phrases and 
buzz words like "suspicion" should be avoided and suggest that tests 
only be allowed where there are 11 trustworthy grounds to believe that 
the employee is under the influence of a controlled dangerous 
substance on the job ... 

2. The Commissioner of Labor should be required to identify the 
most reliable methodology and the bill should prohibit punitive job 
action unless that methodology is utilized. 

3. The bill should provide for absolute confidentiality 
regarding the records of any employee's drug abuse test. 

I~J 
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4. The employee should have the right to challenge the results 
of any drug abuse test as not in compliance with the statute and 
regulations promulgated under it with the remedy (administrative or 
judicial) of keeping his/her job 

There are a number of other provisions which would help effectuate the 
spirit of ~.2850 but which may be more appropriate to be dealt with by 
way of administrative regulation. 

We are anxious to work with you and the Committee to produce a bill 
consistent with the spirit reflected in A.2850. 

JEF/th 

cc: Joe Devaney 
Assembly Labor Committee 

Assemblyman Thomas Foy 

/\ 
Sincerely, . ). 

,.--, I :'\/", I 
__ --t(/ i ~-/' 

/e~E. Fpgel 
IEwecutiv~ Director 
\..._../ ' 

/7 X 
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DzPARTXZlf'T OP LABOR 

CMAAL.ES SERAAINO 
Commlnloner 

Honorable Robert Littell 
Chairman, Assembly Labor Committee 
47 Church Street 
P.O. Box.277 
Franklin, New Jersey 07416 

Dear Assemblyman Littell: 

August 22, 1986 

eN no 
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY OIIU.Oll 

This letter is regarding your legislation, A-2850, the •workplace 
Drug Abuse Testing Act.• The Department of Labor feels that it is incumbent 
to express to ~ou its concerns regarding A-2850. 

The fundamental objection to this bill is that it is an intrusion 
on the collective bargaining process. Except for the standards set . by 
the bill, any agreements reached during collective bargaining could only 
create tighter restrictions on drug testing (making it more difficult 
to test employees for drugs) or eliminate drug testing entirely. For 
example, some unions, where members depend on their colleagues for personal 
safety, may want to enact tougher drug testing polices. This would not 
be permissible under the bill. 

Another difficulty is that while drug testing is necessary 
in some instances to insure public safety, this bill would restrict drug 
testing to the potential detriment of the public. The public has the 
right to expect that such professionals as health care practitioners, 
air traffic controllers, and law enforcement personnel are not under the 
influence of narcotics. These employees cannot be tested under this 
legislation prior to the employer discovering a •reasonable suspicion• 
to administer a drug test. Often, 'the public, the employer, and fellow 
employees, feel that, particularly in dangerous occupations, waiting for 
a •reasonable suspicion• might endanger the _health and well-being of anyone 

AO·liA 19·84) 

coming into contact with such employees. 

It is estimated that between 25-30\ of the Fortune 500 have 
some type of drug testing program. Since this legislation will curtail 
the availability of drug testing, it might have a negative impact on the 
efforts to attract new business or for existing business to expand in 
New Jersey. 

\'t'll Jer't'l f, An Equal Orrurrumtr Emplurn 
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The legislation also calls for the bill to take effect 90 days 
after enactment. Given the highly technical procedures which will have 
to be regulated, as well as the large number of agencies, both public 
and private who will desire input into the regulations, it is anticipated 
that a more realistic effective date would be one year from enactment. 
This will enable time for regulations to be promulgated since, as written, 
the legislation allows for no drug testing until these requlations are 
put into effect and would terminate all drug testing in Hew Jersey from 
the effective date until the regulations were issued. 

Furthermore, the bill would not permit voluntary testing, which 
President Reagan supports. 

The Department of Labor has obtained Assemblyman Fey's amendments 
to A-2850 which are to be offered at the September 4 meeting. one of 
these amendments would establish an Advisory Commission to look at the 
drug testing procedures. The Department of Labor is concerned that as 
the legislation is written, the Advisory Commission will be reviewing 
this issue at the same time the Commissioner is preparing regulations. 
It is unclear as to whether or not the Commissioner of Labor must wait 
for the recommendations of the Advisory Commission, in which case, since 
the Commission has 15 months to report and since no drug testing can take 
place until regulations have been promulgated, drug testing will be entirely 
suspended for, at minimum, 15 months. 

Another technical concern with the Advisory Committee is that 
the representative from the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC) 
be removed from the Advisory Commission in orde-r that PERC retain its 
impartiality since they may, in the future, be required to adjudicate 
a dispute ar~s~ng out of an Advisory Commission reco~endation. As a 
rule, PERC does not participate on such Commissions. 

As an alternative to the current legislation, and in the interest 
of securing a drug testing policy more quickly, the Department of Labor 
suggests that the Advisory Commission be established to look at the entire 
issue of drug testing without any change in the status quo until the 
Commission issues its report. In this regard, it is suggested that the 
time for the Advisory Commission to report be shortened to one year and 
that the report be filed with the Governor rather than the Commissioner 
of Labor. Only in this manner can a drug testing policy, with a broad 
enough consensus to be effective, be established. 

I hope this information proves beneficial to you. 
happy to discuss this further with you. 

Legislative Services 

cc: Honorable Joseph Azzolina 
Honorable Thomas Foy 
Honorable Peter Genova 
Honorable Newton Miller 
Honorable Vincent Pellecchia 
Honorable Gerald Zecker 

/'!X 
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Statement·by the AFL.-CIO Executive Council 

on 

MandatorY Drua and Alcohol Tests 

May 21, 1986 
Washington, D.C. 

Drug addiction and alcoholism are illnesses. Those suffering from these diseases 

need treatment, not punishment. At the same time, addicted individuals can pose health 

and safety hazards on the job if they come to work in an impaired state. Accordingly, the 

problem of substance abuse ought to be addressed squarely and cooperatively by 
.. 
employers and unions. 

The AFL.-CIO and its affiliates have long promoted prevention and rehabilitation 

programs in the workplace and the community. Labor unions have sponsored institutes on 

alcoholism and drug use, trained union volunteer counselors to offer guidance and 

referrals to those with drug- and alcohol-related problems, supported community facilities 

for treating victims of drug and alcohol addiction, and established on-the-job treatment 

programs. 
In recent years, however, it has become increasingly fashionable for employers--

public and private alike--to use drug tests to screen all job applicants and all employees 

or to force applicants and employees to submit to such tests on a random basis. 

Many of the tests companies use to screen workers for drugs and alcohol are very 

inaccurate, especially the ones companies use in volume. False positives--showing drug 

· usage even though a person has not used illegal drugs--are 25 percent or higher for many 

tests, and the results of tests· which purportedly screen for illegal drugs can be affected 

by the use of such common substances as cough syrup, caffeine, asthma medicine and 

other common chemicals. 
In addition, the laboratories which perform drug and alcohol screening tests often 

have very high false-positive error rates. According to the Centers for Disease Control 

(CDC), some labs have false-positive error rates as high as 66 percent. As a result, 
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workers or job applicants may lose a job either because accurate tests are not available or 

because companies prefer to use less accurate, inexpensive tests in mass screening 

programs. 

Even if such drug tests were reliable, the tests would.reveal only which individuals 

had taken a drug during a prior interval of time, often encompassing a large amount of 

off-duty hours. Such tests cannot determine whether an individual is currently addicted 

to a drug, under the influence of a drug, or unable to perform job functions because of 

drug use. The employer's only legitimate interest is in judging an employee's ability to 

work. 

Tests for drug and alcohol usage are thus of dubious value in dealing with the 

problem of impairment in the workplace. Few testing programs include procedures for 

workers to challenge inaccurate findings or secure relief from the results of error. The 

test results are too often used to discharge competent employees. Perhaps most 

important, the administration of these tests on a random or across-the-board basis is 

degrading to, and invades the privacy and physical integrity of, those tested, the vast 

majority of whom use no illegal drugs at all. 

In addition, mandatory drug and alcohol testing programs raise serious legal 

questions. In many states, there are laws to protect personal privacy, laws which should 

be interpreted to prohibit overbroad testing programs. In addition, under federal law and 

the laws of many states, persons suffering from addiction, like persons suffering from 

other disabling conditions, are classified as handicapped and are protected from 

discrimination in employment based on their condition. To the extent drug and alcohol 

tests are aimed at disciplining addicted individuals without regard to whether the 

individual's impairment interferes with job performance or directly threatens harm to 

others, such tests may run afoul of the laws on discrimination against the handicapped. 

The process of collective bargaining holds the best hope of developing lawful 

solutions which reconcile the sometimes competing interests of the addicted individuals 

:::?. ) y 
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with those of workers who do not use drugs and who wish to avoid the degradation of drug 

testing, yet at the same time do not want to be endangered by a co-worker who is 

impaired. 

Through collective bargaining, unions and employers can develop carefully 

tailored and balanced programs which stress education and prevention of addiction and 

which also: 
* place appropriate limits and conditions for the use of tests for alcohol and 

drugs, including focusing only on workers who exhibit symptoms of job-related 

impairment; 

* establish safeguards for those who test positively, including guarantees of 

workers' rights to privacy and confidentiality; 

* fully inform workers and their representatives of the testing methodology an 

employer administers; 

* provide non-punitive, on-the-job responses and helpful treatment for those who 

are, in fact, unable to perform their jobs because of drug addiction or alcoholism. 

The AFL-CIO urges its affiliates, through the collective bargaining process, to 

continue to develop constructive solutions to the addiction problem, solutions responsive 

to the legitimate needs of all parties. 

We deplore the recent efforts by many employers, in the hysteria of the moment, 

to bypass the collective bargaining process and require mandatory screening or impose 

punitive programs which ride roughshod over the rights and dignity of workers and are 

unnecessary to secure a safe and efficient workforce. 

The AFL-CIO urges its affiliates to vigorously resist these harsh and unjustifiable 

programs and to assist union members who are injured by such employer-imposed 

programs to invoke their rights under federal and state law. We call upon Congress and 

the state legislatures to strengthen the legal protection afforded the addicted and to ban 

testing that unnecessarHy infringes on the privacy and dignity of workers. 

''' ~av 



New Jersey 
Business & Industry 
Association 

102 West State Street • Trenton; New Jersey 08608 • 609-393-7707 

~he Honorable Robert E. Littell 
47 Church Street 
P.O. Box 328 
Franklin, NJ 07416 

Dear Assemblyman Littell: 

August 13, 1986 

In reply to your letter of August 11, 1986, New Jersey Business and Industry 
Association welcomes your invitation to testify before the Assembly Labor Committee 
on September 4 concerning A-2850 which in effect restricts an employer's ability 
to achieve a drug free workplace. 

Federal law (OSHA) requires that every employer provide to each of his employees 
a place of work which is free from recognized hazards that are likely to cause 
death or serious physical harm to his employees. In an attempt to comply with 
the federal law, barriers should not be imposed on employers who seek to provide 
a safe workplace for their employees. 

I am enclosing herewith a draft copy of the testimony that NJBIA will present 
to the Labor Committee on September 4. 

jk 
Enclosure 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Assistant Vice President 
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m !'liB 
IIBW JERSEY GBNBRU. ASSBMBLY 

OB 
ASSBMBLY BILL 2850 

liew Jersey Business and Industry Association, t:he largest aaaociation o~ ~· 
in t:he state, takes this opportunity to express ita OPPOSI~IOB to b-..bly Bill 
2850 (Littell) in ita present fora. ~s bill authorises t:he Departaent ~ Labor 
to establish rules and regulations creating a UDifora atuadard for 4rug abaae 
testing. ~he bill would also prohibit an eaployer fra. adainiatering a drug abaae 
test to any eaployee or applicant for .. ploy.ent without first having a re.eoneble 
suspicion that t:he eaployee is under t:he influence of drugs. !'be eaploter•a auapicion 
aust be baaed upon visible evidence of erratic job behavior. 

Business Supports 

HJBIA suooorts a uniform standard for drug abuse testing. We favor unifora guidelines 
for the taking of blood or urine saaples; the .. thodology and procedure uaec1 to 
evaluate the contents of samples. Business would welcome the opportunity to provide 
input into the establishment of the criteria for t:he drug testing prograa. 

Business Aqainst 

At the aaae time HJBIA is OPPOSED to any law which, in any way, restricts an eaployer•a 
right and obligation to determine when a job applicant or eaployee aay be requested 
to suhai.t to a drug test. We feel that there should be no liaitation on an eaployer•a 
selection of employees to be tested. Drug abusers do not always ezhibit viaible 
evidence of erratic behavior as required by A-2850. Business seeks a drug free 
workplace to protect all working people and the public and to increase t:he productivity of our economy. 

HJBIA is OPPOSED to A-2850 because: 

o Pervasive In Workplace. 

o Jleducea Productivity. 

o Costs Lives. 

o Used At All Levels. 

o Pinancial Burden. 

Pervasive in Workplace 

The use of illegal drugs has reached epidemic proportions in this country. It 
has affected all age and socio-economic groups. Illegal drugs have becc.e so 
pervasive in the workplace that they are used in almost every industry by blue 
and white collar workers alike. Their presence on the job is sapping the energy, 
honesty and reliability of the American labor force. 



~~e&sure of the inroads drugs have -de on the vorkp1ace ia ~ ill t:1ae fteaideat: • • 
-tssion on Organised Criae's proposal of Karch 19861 aaldlag all V~S. onapeate• 
l consider testing their a.ployees for drug uae. !'be ec-iaaion aotecl tbat •dra9 
c-afficking ia the 1a0st serious organiaed-crU. probl- iD the world t:ocJay• aa4 
tult goverDIIellt and private COIIpanies caD play a role iD cu.rbiD9 tbe d=·nd for 
rugs. 

ast year, iD a typical ezaaple, reported by the Research !'ri.aP9le Iaat:it:ute, 
computer operator bigb on aari ju.ua failed to load a crucial tape iato aa a-rlaaa 

irling co.puter reservation systea. ~e systea was out of .arvice for eight: 
ours, costing the company SOllie $19 aillion. 

educes Productivity 

ther studies have found that drug abusers are far leas producti.ve than t:laeir 
o-workers. ~ey aiss ten times as aany workdays and are three tJaes as likely 
.o injure themselves or someone else. Addicts with ezpenaive habit:& are also 
10re likely to steal cash from a caapany safe, products frc. a warehouse, equis-ent 
rom a factory or secrets from a defense contractor. 

~be costs of drug abuse on the job are staggering. Consequences raage frc. accic1ellt:a 
md injuries to theft, bad decisions and ruined lives. X.paired workers involved 
"n industries such as public transportation, trucking and continuous cbeaical 
>perations, for example, could commit acts that result in injuries to the general 
?ublic, co-workers, and also posible extensive property daaage. 

::osts Lives 

Concern is greatest, of course, in industries where aistakes caD cost lives. Ill 
the last ten years, about 50 train accidents have been attributed to drug or alcohol 
impaired workers. Resulting in 37 deaths, 80 injuries and $34 aillion worth of 
property was destroyed. In 1983, at Hewark Airport, a cargo flight skidded off 
the runway killing two crewmen. An autopsy showed that the pilot had been -.okiD9 
marijuana, possibly while flying. 

Federal experts estiaate that between 10 and 23 percent of all u.s. workers uae 
dangerous drugs on the job. Mari ju.ua is the .oat C"' on drug in the workplace, 
and the uae of cocaine is increasing, because the intense bigb it geDerates often 
gives uaers the false feeling that they can do their jobs better and faster. 
Moreover, cocaine is easy to bide. In aany offices, drugs are as easy to obt:aiP 
as paper clips. Some dealers provide .. ssenger services right to their cuato.er'• 
desk or workplace. 

Used At All Levels 

Dangerous drugs can be found at every level of industry, frc. the shop floor to 
the executive suite. Drugs are also used by aultitudes of blue collar workers 
to relieve the deadening boredom of aenial jobs. Baployers with large blue-collar 
work forces have discovered that drug dealers offer virtually an alternative cafeteria 
service in their plants. 

Q.rx 



Once cc:apaniea aclalowledge and CODfront the drug threat, their first t:aak is to 
establish a fina and fair policy. Usually, they diaaias workers caught takiDg 
or selling drugs on the job, while offering ~ssistance to users ~ voluatarily 
admit their probl ... 

Financial Burden 

'l'o help put iapaired workers on the road to rehabilitation &a.e 501 Of tbe PortaDe 
500 industrial corporations have established in -- bouse e.ployee -- assistance 
proqraaa. Supervisors who spot unusual behavior can encourage workers to aeeJt 

· counseling. 

'!'he coat to an eaployer for employe~ drug ahuroe tr..eataent can ezceecl $30,000 amaaal.ly. 
Small eaployera can not afford this financial burden. !'his legislature auat DOt 
place obstacles in the path of eaployera seeking to avoid this financial burden. 

Conclusion 

'!'he corporate campaign against drugs aay do more, however, than create safer, 
more productive workplaces. It aay also begin to stem the plague of drug use 
in the United States. As more companies require job applicants to prove that 
they are drug free, it will became increasingly difficult to use drugs and .ake 
a living. '!'bus the econOIILi.c deterent may succeed, where the legal deterent has 
failed. 

While it is still too early to ..asure the success of the corporate war against 
drugs, same companies already cite impressive results. If companies can help 
employees kick the drug habit, the effort will pay dividends to business -- and 
society -- that can not be measured in dollars and cents~ BDact.ent of A-2850 
would be conterproducts to eaployer efforts to secure a drug free workplace, but 
also to the President's call for a •drug free workplace for all ~icana• as 
part of a program in a •~~ational crusade against drugs. • 

'HJBIA submits that because drug use by workers can result in shoddy, unaafe products 
and accidents in the workplace, individual rights •ust be subordinated to the 
broader welfare of fellow eaployees, custollera and the public~ We strongly urge 
that you OPPOSE A-2850. 
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EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

"The world is divided into those who ~~.·an: 
to become someone ond those who wont to ac-
complish something. There is less competition ir 
the second category. " 

Jeon Monnett /888-/9i~ 
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TESTIMONY 
of 

N.J. STATE AFL-CIO 
before the 

ASSEMBLY LABOR COMMITTEE 
on 

ASSEMBLY BILL 2850 
SEPTEMBER 4, 1986 

106 West State Street 
Trenton, New Jersey 08608 

(609) 989-8730 

The indiscriminate and random use of dangerous drugs in our 
society has become the scourage of the 1980s. It is creating havoc 
and untold human suffering in our homes, schools and the workplace. 
It is no longer a question of whether tough measures should be insti-
tuted to stern this creeping and prevading menace, but rather when and 
what form these measures will take. 

In the workplace, some of our largest public and private employ-
ers have already implemented various drug testing programs for their 
employees, and we believe it is safe to say drug testing will only 
increase and intensify in the years ahead. New Jersey currently has 
no uniform regulations or standards for the drug testing of workers, 
and the courts have been anything but consistent in ruling about the 
constitutionality of testing. Such an unstructured environment does 
not bode well for the continued maintenance of civil rights and 
liberties. 

With this in mind, the New Jersey· State AFL-CIO supports - with 
reservations - enactment of Assembly Bill 2850, legislation designed 
to establish uniform, statewide drug-testing standards and regulations 
and stringently define conditions under which the tests may be con-
ducted. 

Basically, the State AFL-CIO supports the concept of drug testing 
and rehabilitation as a means of protecting those not on drugs from 
becoming the innocent victims of drug-related accidents or mistakes, 
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and as a means of fulfilling society's obligation to those already 
relient on drugs. In the workplace, drug abuse by employees reduces 
efficiency and productivity, lessens the quality of goods and services, 
and increases the risks to the public and fellow employees through 
unsafe operating procedures and poor workmanship. 

However, organized labor can only support drug testing so lo~g as 
it does not erode basic worker rights and become as much a threat to 
our society as that posed by drug abuse itself. We cannot overempha-
size the need to enact guidelines and testing procedures that promote 
rehabilitation, not discipline, and insure that the tests are equitable 
and the results are valid. You must guarantee as much as humanly 
possible that no careers or reputations will be jeopordized by "false 
positive" results. 

While we agree with the overall thrust of A.2850, the State AFL-CIC 
would urge this committee to consider and adopt several amending pro-
visions that further address the legitimate rights and concerns of 
workers, specifically: 

1) The quality and type of permissable testing should be rigidly 
defined in this Act to prevent the possibility of inaccurate tests 
being used. We have read reports that up to 66 percent of the tests 
administered nationwide are returned with "false positive" results, a 
situation that is totally unacceptable. 

2) If a first test on a workers shows positive, a second test 
should automatically be administered for verification. If the second 
test is also positive, the employee should then be referred to reha-
bilitation without disciplinary action, unless he or she refuses the 
treatment or fails to complete the assigned course of action. 

3) Section 5 should be amended and revised to read "probable 
cause" instead of "reasonable suspicion" in order to comply with 
Section 2C of the state's Criminal Code. 

4) Any and all mandatory drug testing should be prohibited in 
New Jersey until minimum standards, as promulgated by the state (and 
this legislation}, are firmly in place. 

5) Strict confidentiality must b~ maintained in all aspects of 
the drug testing process. 

6} We ask that the proposed Advisory Committee on Employee Drug 
Testing be instructed to make a final report to the Commissioner of 
Labor within nine months instead of 15 months as presently suggested. 
We are facing a crisis situation both in New Jersey and throughout the 
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entire nation and action must be expedited concerning this matter. 
New Jersey has the opportunity to take the lead nationally in 
establishing adequate and accurate standards for drug abuse testing 
in the workplace. 

We believe that these amendments, along with existing provisions 
in the bill to allow employees and unions to establish collective 
bargaining agreements to either strengten standards or prohibit drug 
testing altogether, will provide sufficient civil liberities protec-
tions while creating a viable anti-drug instrument to benefit society 
and the workplace. Thank you. 



_;-2850 
WORKP~ACE ~R~G ABuSE TESTING ACT 

STA7EME~7 OF G. DO~ALD BATES 
PUBLIC AF:AIRS ASSISTANT MANAGER 

JERSEY CENTRA~ POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

September 4, 1986 

J~~SEY CENTRAL ?OWE~ AND LIGHT COMPANY GENERALLY SUPPORTS THE ESTABLISHMENT OF 

STANDARD RULES AND REGULATIONS RELATING TO THE ADMINISTRATION OF DRUG ABUSE 

TESTS. HOWEVER, WE STRONGLY FEEL THAT ANY GUIDELINES, RULES OR REGULATIONS, 

SHOULD NOT BE ADOPTED WITHOUT THE DETAILED INPUT OF THE BUSINESS COMMUNITY. 

~:TH RESPECT TO ASSEMBLY BILL 2850, WE TAKE EXCEPTION TO SECTION 5 WHICH 

STATES IT SHALL BE UNLAWFUL FuR A." E!-!?LOYER TO ADMINISTER DRUG TESTS TO ANY 

E~PLOYEE WITHOUT FIRST HAVING REASO~ABLE SuSPICION. 

WE FEEL IT IS OUR OBLIGATION TO DO EVERY7HING WE CAS TO ASSURE !HAT EMPLOYEES 

~~E OF SOUND MIND WHEN ON THE JOE, W~E7HER IT BE METER REA~ERS WHO GO FROM 

HOME TO HOME OR LINEMEN/LINEWO~ES WHOSE NEGLIGENCE COULD SEVERE:Y INJURE 

:'EEMSELVES, OTHER WORKERS OR CUT SER\'!CE TG OUR CUS':'OME.~S. 

PRESENTLY JERSEY CENTRAL POWE."q ANJ :..:GH: DOES NOT i-iA'/E A RANDOM DRUG SCREENING 

?;:(OGRAM BUT WE WOULD LIKE TEA: OP:J:vS AVAILABLE TO US IF WE DETERMINED IT 

WOUL~ BE IN THE BES7 INTERES: OF OUR E~?LOYEES ASJ :JS70MERS . 

. !,! OUR OYSTER CREEK N~CLE.l>...";\ ?O'toi'E!=. ?LAST, T!-:E IMPLEMENTATION OF A RAN:::>OM DRUG 

SCREENING PROGRAM IS BEING CONS!:::>ERED. WITH ME TODAY IS MIKE RUCHE FROM GPU 

NUCLEAR CORPORATION, THE OPERATORS OF OUR PLANT, WHO WILL DISCUSS THE REASONS 

AND METHODS FOR SUCH A PROGRAM. 

3ok 



TESTIMON1' Of GPU NUCLEAR CORPORATION 
ON A2850 - WORf PLACE DRUG ABDSE TESTING ACT 

NE\o.' JERSEY ASSE!".BLY LABOR CO~lTTI:E 

SEPTE~BER 4, 198t 



The Assembly labor Committee should be congratulated for 

its effort to establish a statewide policy for drug testing tn New 

Jersey work places. We applaud the idea of uniform standards for 

the administration of drug testing. 

As committee members themselves have stated, the issue of 

testing employees for drug and alcohol abuse so far has led only to 

an uncharted area where employers' well-intended efforts are 

challenged by individual rights to privacy. 

Our purpose here today is to focus attention on the 

paramount need to safeguard public health and safety by use of a 

random and periodic drug screening program. As proposed, the 

wor~place Drug Abuse Testing Act would preclude ranoo~ and periodic 

drug testing. 

We are all a~are of drug and alcohol abuse as a major 

problem throughout our society and the gro~ing need for corrective 

action. Research on drug use in our co~ntry has revealed that 12 to 

20' of adults abuse one or more drug. 

As written, the bill does little to assure the fitness of 

workers in occupations ~hich can affect the health anc safety of the 

public and to ease doubt in the public mind. 

--more--
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There should be no unnecessary doubt about worker fitness 

for duty in any endeavor, with the potential to significantly affect 

public health and safety in New Jersey, where the margin of error is 

sma 11. 

A recent, national public opinion poll conducted by the 

Gallup Organization for Newsweek showed that a substantial margin of 

the public believes required, periodic drug screening tests are a 

"good idea." Of those sampled, 85 percent favored drug screening 

for police officers, 84 percent for airline pilots, and 72 percent 

for government workers. ~o less than 50 percent of the poll 

respondents said periodic drug screening would be a good idea for 

all workers. 

Drug screening and randorr testing is not a novel or untried 

approach. As you kno~, harness drivers ana jockeys at Ne~ Jersey 

tracks sub~it to post race testing. It's routine for boxers after 

they leave the ring. ~umerous utilities conduct randorr ana periodic 

drug testing and the U. S. ~avy has been doing random and periodic 

drug testing for over ten years. Some states, including Ne~ Jersey, 

employ random testing--spot highway checks--as the primary tool to 

enforce their vehicle inspection sta~dards. 

The sensitivities of tne of drug and alcohol abuse problem 

are especially acute in the nuclear industry where a primary 

responsibility is protecting the health ana safety of the p~G1ic ana 

employees. 

--more--
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The GPU Nuclear Corporation is the operator of Jersey 

Central Power & Light's Oyster Creek Nuclear Generating Station at 

Forked River in Ocean County. Our primary objectives are the safety 

of employees and the public, fulfilling our obligations to GPU 

System customers, the protection of public and private property, and 

the preservation of public confidence placed upon us. 

The company has a firm commitment to a work environment 

free from substances that may alter mental or physical capacity, and 

free fro~ possible adverse effects of such substances. 

We have bee~ carefully considering on a continuing basis 

how best to fulfill these responsibilities. We have been monitoring 

nuclear inoustry activities dealing with fitness for duty and the 

requirements and intent of the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission. 

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Com~isstion has the responsibility for 

ensuring the safe operation of nuclear generating in the United 

States. 
In its "Policy Statement on Fitness for Duty of Nuclear 

Power Plant Personnel" issued last month, the NRC outlined minimum 

acceptable standards for licensee programs. Includea among the 

standards for an acceptable fitness for duty progra~ are the 

following elements: 
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(1) ~A pro~ision that the sale, use, or possession of 

illegal drugs within the protected area will result 

in immediate revocation of access to vital areas and 

discharge from nuclear power plant activities. The 

use of alcohol or abuse of legal drugs within the 

protected area will result in immediate revocation of 

access to vital areas and possible discharge from 

nuclear power plant activities.~ 

(2; 11 A provis~on that any other sale, possession, or use 

of illeg~l drugs will result in immediate revocation 

of access to vital areas, mandatory rehabilitation 

prior to reinstatement of access, and possible 

discharge frorr nuclear power plant activities." 

(3) 11 Effective monitoring and testing procedures to 

provide reasonable assurance that nuclear power plant 

personnel with access to vital areas are fit for 

duty. 11 

Tt-,e NR: is closely mcr:itoring inaustry initiatives in the 

area of fitness for dJty. 
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A corporate fitness for duty policy, in effect since 1982, 

prohibits possession or use of illegal and non-prescription drugs or 

alcoholic beverages on site and prohibits reporting for work under 

the influence of drugs or alcohol. Use of illegal and 

non-prescription drugs or the consumption of alcoholic beverages 

during working hours and during meals prior to scheduled work hours, 

also is prohibited by the policy. Supervisors have been trained to 

recognize aberrant behavior a~c an employee assistance program has 

been implemented. 

This sum~er the company decided that it could significantly 

increase the assurance for itself and the public that its employees 

are fit for duty by instituting augmented testing for drug and 

alcohol in preemployrnent screening, when there are reasonable 

grounds for suspicion of usage, as part of routine company-required 

pl"'lysical examinations, as a folloV~-up to a rehabilitation progrlLT 

and on a random basis. 

The augmented prograrr is consistent with the commitment of 

the industry and the NR: to a drug-free environment at plant sites. 

It is important to note that the company's purpose is to prevent and 

discourage drug and a1cohcl ab~se. 

Confirmed pcsitive test results, or refusal to take the 

test·, will result ir. imT•eciate denial of access to company 

facilities and could res~lt in dis~issal. ~ne policy alsc involves 

an opportunity for reha:ilitatio~ in certai~ cases throJgh co~~a~y 

medical and counseling progra~s. 

--more--
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A program which only te5t5 people suspected of being under 

the influence of drugs does not provide sufficient incentive to 

workers to refrain from using illegal substances. This fact has 

been recognized by the U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission in that 

it has announced it is establishing a program of random testing for 

its own employees. 

The company has proceeded very carefully to ensure all 

emplojee5 are aware of its plans. It has emphasized the 

availability of company supported rehabilation programs and 

encouraged employees who have a drug or alcohol related problem to 

seek help. 

ln sumrr.ary, the use of randorc and periodic screening 

provides a meaningful increase in the assurance that employees are 

fit for outy. It is appropriate where it contributes to public 

health and safety. Legislation, which is enacted for the corrr:-.or, 

good, sho~ld do nc less. 

hj1039c828S6 
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September 5, 1986 

Assemblyman Robert E. Littell 

Box 328 
Fran"Y~ in, t~J 07416 

RE: P.sse;::,ly Bi::..l 2850 

Dear ~tr. Littell: 

I had occasion yesterday to sit in on aL~ost all of the public hearing on A-2850, 
although 1 had not asked to spea~: on the bill. I ~uld like you to know the 
tx-Jsi~~:·:· c: ti-:e Ne;.; Jersev Phanr:ace-c~ic:..:.: .::.:.t..;:Lx., • .:.r-4·t.:; . .:.:,J~ini.: 2)t.,~, 
practicing pharmacists. Basically, we have no JX>Sition on ~ether testing for 
drugs in the v;ork place should be allowed or not allo~d. That is a public 
policy that should be determined by the legislature. We do have a JX>Sition on 
the type of drug test in~ that should be mandated, if drug testing is to be 
allowed. In a~ effort to protect innocent parties, the most accurate tests 
available should be utilized and the cost of the various tests available should 
not be taken into consideration. We sug_£est that your corrrnittee get sane input 
from personnel at the State Police Forensic Laboratory regarding the accuracy of 
the various tests available, and perhaps lock in through legislation the most 
accurate test in~ method available, whether it be urine testing or blood analysis. 

However, n:y main reason for writing this letter is the fact that I net iced 
yesterday that no one spoke on behalf of the large number of New Jersey residents 
~o, because of their medical condition, are taking Controlled Dangerous 
Substances ~nich have been legally p~escribed for them. The facts are that three 
of the top 10 drugs prescribed in this country tooay are considered as 
Controlled Dangerous Substances. Of the top 100 drugs, approximately 35 are 
Controlled U:mgerous Substances. This means that there are large nunbers of 
employees out there right no~ Who ~~11 test positive for Controlled Dangerous 
Substances if they are exposed to tha:: testing requirement. 

There was nc discussion on their rights, includin~ their rights to privacy 
regarding their -r:-~edical conditio::. ?·:a.-:y questions arise regarding the widespread 
use of le~i tL-:-.ate Co<:t:rC~lle~ U: .... '1germ.iP Subs:ai1ces. Sane of those questions are: 



1. Ib anployers currently, or should they be required to take a full 
medical history, including legal drug usage, WE!'l interviewing job 
applicants? 

2. [b a:nployers ask for a current medical update of employees prior to 
asking them to submit a sample of body fluids for drug testing? 

3. If a tranquilizer, which is a Controlled IBngerous &lbstance, is being 
Laker, by an anployee because his wife left him an:i took their t\r.'O 
chi 1 dren and hP doe~' t knn"' where any of then are, does the employee 
have to explain his whole personal problem to his employer? 

4. If the employer becomes aware that an anployee, or potential employee is 
taking a legal Controlled Imlgerouc; Substance, will that knowledge have 
an adverse effect on the person's employability? 

The list of questions regarding the relationship between the employer and the 
employee ~en the employee is taking a legitimately prescribed Controlled 
Dangerous Substance, can go an ad infinitum. 

There are other situations that might arise ~ereby an anployee might not know he 
is taking a Controlled Dangerous Substance; might not know that a Controlled 
Dsngerous Substance was administered to him, perhaps in a Jitysicians office; and 
obviously no lay person would have the slightest idea how long a drug residue 
might remain in the body even if they have discontinued their medication. 

We do believe that the relationship between employer and employee regarding the 
legit i.'ilate use of prescribed Controlled t~.ngerm.l' S-lbstances should be thoroughly 
reviewed by the committee at its scheduled October hearing on A-2850. 

These ccmnents are not meant to infringe on the ccmnittees efforts in any respect 
but, however, should be interpreted as a request to broaden your exarnination of 
the serious drug abuse problem into the area of the legitimate use of Controlled 
tangerous Substances, ~ich encropasses probably 90 - 95% of the Controlled 
Dangerous Substances consuned in this cotmtry today. 

Respectfully, 

--. ,... . 

Leon R. Langley, Phannacist 
Director of Goverrrnent Affairs 

IRL/jel 

cc: Assenblyma.-·1 Joseph Azzolina 
Assernblyman Thanas P. Foy 
Assemblyoan Peter J. Genova 
Asse:nblyrnan Nev.-ron E. Miller 
Assffiblvma:: Vincent Pellecchia 
Assembl~a~ Gerald Zecker 
Joh_T"J Levalley, t-ide, AEse;.cly l.B"tx::lr Ccm:!":ittee 
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1•7e \visl1 to thank Assemblyman Robert Littell and the Assembly 

Labor Committee for holdinr; these important hearings on \vhat ·"'e 

feel is the latest state-wide and national assault on the rights 

of American workers. 

My name is Jim Moran, and I am Associate Director of the 

Philadelphia Area Project on Occupational Safety and Health. 

PE:~20SE is a non-prof~t coal~tion of 130 local unions, workers, 

healt~, legal and ot~er professionals concerned about job safety 

a:-.d healt!'l. Ne provide tec!-.... ""li.cal assistat1ce and educat~on to 

workers and unior .. s en var.::.ous aspects of heal t:'l and safety a-:. 

work. : a.'":\ also a me:r.ber of tl':e ~~e,,.;spaper G;.:i. ld ~ocal 10, 

a scene pro~ably taki.ng place 

6 4 year c :.c. vlor:-.an worker s:.. -:-:.i:J.g i:J. -:.:::e bat!'lrccm a-: work: ski.r": up 

and pants down, A woman 

interes-:., -:elling her tc ~old her lef": h~~d high above her bead so 

there can be no tricks whi.le she uri:J.ates L~ the plastic container. 

This kind of complaint has come into our office. ! submit to you 

that th~s ki.nd of trea~"':lent of workers is benea~h hurna~ dignity 

and rur.s counter to everyt~ing our country allegedly stands for. 

We would condemn this huma~ rights violation were it to occur in 

any other country. 

Ra~dom alcohol a:J.d dr·J.g testing of workers has become the 

most popular activity among American employers second only to 

union busti:J.g. Random alcohol and drug testing without probable 

cause is strong 2.y opposed by the .=...F:.-c:o. We have begun to win cases 



2 

against employers in arbitration and in the courts, but we think 

that strong legislation is also needed to curb employer excesses 

in this area; excesses that include discrimination against union 

representatives of which you'll hear testimony about today. 

We will also submit for the record, documentation that reveals 

that lab studies done by the Center for Disease Control prove some 

labs have ~~ accuracy record of less t~an 75%. These cheap 

"bathtub gin" type of "do-it-yoursel~" urine test kits are being 

aggressively marketed by cc~porations capitalizing on the 

un~or~unate deat~s o~ professional at~letes and t~e equally 

un~ort:.:.nate panic st~:!.cke:-. ne•11s coverage t~a~ the public has been 

bombarded wit~ ~or ~any ~cnt~s. 

Based on t~ese ki~ds cf tes~s ~crke~s are ~eceivi~g "capitol 

punish.-nent" or "eccncmic assassi~aticn. ':'~at's what:!.<: means in 

t~e labor ~cvemen~ when a wcrke~ is fired. ':'his anti-worker 

political climate se~s t~e s~age for a ~yr~ac o= e~p:oyer abuses that 

are no'l..; rampant in t~e wcrkp.:.ace. 

But it does another thing tha~ is ~ore insidious. Since 

the industrial revolution in this country employers have been 

routinely killing and ~ai~ing American workers with virtual 

imp~~ity from any real penalties ~or their often criminal behavior. 

Aside ~rom having all the money, high priced law ~i~s, the White 

House, U.S. Senate and the Supreme Court protecting their profit 

interests, they have a long history of inventing schemes that 

would help the~ escape responsibility fer workplace carnage. 

We're all too familiar with the old method of firing workers 

for bei:1g "accident prone", which is nothing mere than blami:lg 

the victim. Then there's the scam about rewardi:1g wo~kers for no~ 
LJ""'" 
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reporting their injuries. Everything from Honda motorcycles 

to cash to VCR's have been offered in these programs. Often, 

injured workers will suffer in silence in the a~y of the working 

wounded rather than spoil their depart~ent's safety record by 

reporting the injury. They pay their own doctors and 

never file a workers compensation claim. This aids the company 

in keeping down workers compensation clai~s and allows them to 

hang a si~:1 outside t!"le fac-::.ory t=:at '!:10 lost 

injuries in the last 5, 10, or a thousand years". 

Injuries and illnesses reported by America's bosses e~ual 

a stagge~i:1g average of 5,000 killed ou-::.right on t~e job each 

year, 100,000 ceac from work-related diseases each year, ~~c. more 

-=~an 5 ::li2.lion injured ser:_cus:.y e=:ot:.gh ~c loose ti.::te at work 

each year. Agai:1, this only represen-::.s i:1:uries, illnesses and 

cea-::.::s that 

All of these s-::.a~istics are rap~=~Y r~s~:1g, with 1984's 

:Lumbers up _,;..., :;er ce:-~-:--<::<e ::.:~:-.es-: increase si:1ce statistics have 

been kept. a ::-es"..l:..": o: the :1a-::.ional .s::;eed-up of American 

workplaces i:1 the race :c~ procuc-::.ivity and profit. Work speed-up 

is a contributing factor -::.o why drugs-and alcohol are being used 

by workers. 

To mask the boss's. res.pcnsib.i:i.t:; for t:-~es.e. :1ura.be.rs. in recent 

h · ... · · ,.. - +- - l 1 ed the "il.·-~::.-years great emp as~s .• as ~een p~ace~ on wna~ ~s ca - -

style" ar;u.ment. This sc=-..e;:-,e :oc'.lses on pe::::-sonal li!e s:tyle as: the 

~eason :or injuries and ill:1esses, mostly illnesses and cancers. 

What we eat, c::::-ink, and smoke as well as the manne::::- i~ which we 

conduct our sex lives is cited as. t.he r-eason we have various 

cancers, et::. The •.vorkplace is. :ound not guilty :or having caused 

our healt=: problems. 



4 

The new extension of this argument is what brings us here 

today. The DuPont Company recently boldly announced a new plan 

to make the workplace safe. They will give alcohol and drug tests 

to every worker so that no injury will result from an accident 

caused by a fellow drug L~paired worker. This misguided, alleged 

attempt to make jobs safe is a wonderful smoke screen focusing 

attention once again on the life style of workers instead of 

t~e real causes of workplace injury, illness and death. 

unsafe machinery need not be repaired in this scenario. 

Workplace chemicals need no controls or regulation. It's more 

i~pcrtant t~at the boss have the right to know what chemicals we 

bring to work in our bod~es tha~ it is us have the right 

to knew what chemicals are being ~orce fed to us on the job. 

Ccr?orate ~~erica is in the ?recess of reversing t~e entire 

Right-to-Know ccnce?t cr. us as a side e~fec~ of the drug test 

mania that prevails a~cng e~~:oyers today. While they're 

checking our urine they cc~!d a~ least have the decency to check 

for merc~ry, lead, trichloroethylene or any c~ the more than 

600,000 chemica:s showered en workers daily in this cc~~try. 

Roughly 2,000 new chemicals are introduced into the workplace 

each year. They dcn't monitor workers for those chemicals and in 

fact have no idea what har~£~1 health ef~ects will ensue. Only 

after Bhopal-type massacres kill thousands of workers does the media 

give any attention to the real substance abuse t~at occurs as a 

fact of dialy life to workers--exposure to toxic chemicals on the 

job. Over 400,000 people will die from cancer this year, ~uch of it 

work-related. 
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\'Jhere is the government's war on work-related cancer-: \~e are 

the employers whose nock concern for worker safety has them drug testing all 

workers·: \'Je can tell you where they are at. They're in the 3ro circuit court 

of appeals fighting like hell against New Jersey's and Pennsylvania's Right-

to-Know LaWS o They Ire in 'Washington destroying the Q::cupatiOnal Safety an:i 

Health Act. They're in the workplace denying workers the right to a safe job 

and at the bargaining table denying us decent contract language for these 

same rights. 

What co we get as a subst~t~~e !or sa!e jobs? Or~q tests and 

Rar.co~ alcohol ar.d cr~g test~r.g ~s a w~t:t h~~t tta~ is br~~ging 

W . . -e a~~ to starr.? lt o~t once and 

for a.l: a.nd PE::..;..posE w:.:: ~e. :.~ t!":.e :o:e!=or~:: of t.~e fig!l-: to 

But tramp l~r.g on t~e r~ghts o! t!le ent~re wor;<i.:lg class is not the 

solution. It is also not t~e solution to ~~safe work~laces and to 

claim it is is an insult to al: workers, the~: unions and health and 

safety coalitions :ike PH:~OSE. 

If employers are really concerned about the health of their 

workers they shoul try humanizing· the workplace, the work pace 

and working conditions generally and of!er rehabilitation to 

any workers who exhibit alcohol or dr~q related problems. 

There is no place in American life for McCarthy-era type 

witch-hunts. We demand an end to such practices. 

Thank you again. 
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STATEMENT OF ROBERT ANGELO, AFSCMf COUNCIL ~1 EXECUTIVE 
VIRECTOR ON ASSEMBLY BILL 2850 

AFSCMf dou not enc.ouJt.age oJt condone the u..&e o6 dlw.g.6. VJtu.g a.bu..&e. 
.in oWL .6oc..iety .i.6 ci.ealli.y a pJtOb.f..em t.o wiU.ch a .6olufun mu.llt be 
6ound. Howe.veJt dlw.g .tut.ing .i.6 c.elt.ta.inty not the .6o.e.ut:A.ori7ha.t 
we .6eek. AFSCMf M a. u.n.ion .i.6 c.onc.eJtne.d about .6a6e. wo.lr.k..ing c.on-
c:Ut..i..on-6 a.nd the we.U-be.ing o6 OWl. membell.6. We want a.ny WOil.keJt 
.6u66Mhtg 6Jtom d!w.g abu..6e to get needed help, not be .6ubjec.t .to 
.W.cU...6 CJWn,i_na;te. .tu:U..ng • -

A-2850 .6eem.6 :to be a "knee je.Jtk" Jte.a..c.U.on :to a pltob.tem c.Uitlte.n:tly 
Jte.c.uv.ing a lot o[ me.cLiA. a:tte.Y!.tion. The.Jte. .6e.em-6 :to be a 1t.LL.6h to 
judgeme;.vt bw19 ma.de .that pe!l.mi.t.6 plt.ivate and p..Lbuc. employe: .. ·¢ 

to Jte.qu.ilte. tu:U..ng o 6 CLLMen.t and 6u:tu!te emp.toyee.-6 M a me.an6 o 6 
acJue.v.ing a ci"..ug n~tee woltkptac.e.. A- 28 50, by e.6:ta.bwrvi.ng .6:tanda!tcib 
6oJt the. u..6e of, d!w.g tu.t .. i..t18 .in tJie. wo!tk.ptac.e, .6-i..mpty adci6 6ue£ :to 
the. 6.ilte o6 pu.buc. a:tte.n:U..o1: 6oc.u..6.iri.g on c.a:tcJun.g woltkell.6 .that 
may olt may not abu. .. 6c. d.Jtu.g-6. 

A-28 50 enc.ou.Jta..ge.-6 .the. .i.6-6u.e ol, dJw.g te.-6:U..ng to be .the .6ubje.c.t ol, 
c.oUe.c.:U..ve. ba.Jtga.ir...{.ng be..tl.t1ee.n empf.oye...-"i..-6 and labolt oJtgar~.za.:t.i..on-6. 
T I-U..6 l e.g .i-6lati v e. e.nc.ou.Jta..g em en.t pu:t6 wo Jt.k eJL6 .in :the. po .6 ilion o 6 
.6a.CJI..i6-i,.c..ing wage. .in.CJte.Me.-6 Olt o:the.Jt ben.e.6ili .i11 oltde.Jt to plte.ve.n.t 
manda:toJty olt Jtandom d.Jtu.g tuu. A..6 an example., :th-iA ye.a.Jt oWL 
un.ion. .in. .the. :tm;..•n .. 61up o6 Woodblt.idge. wa.6 Mk.e.d t.o cJwol.le. be...t.ule.e.n 
h.i..g he.Jt wag u and mandc.;toJty d.Jtu.g te...bt.ing OJt lowelL wag e...6 and no 
:tu:t..ing. Th.i.6 fU...nd o 6 ba.Jtga..in..ing .6-i..t.ua.t.io n .it: n.o way p!tomotM 
labolt/ man.ag eme.n.t Jte.tat.io nb and c. e.Jt:ta..irJ:. y .in n.o way pit e. v e.n.t-6 d.Jtu.g 
a.bu.-6 e.. 

I6 .theJte .i-6 a Jte.ai. de...b.V .. e. on :the. pa.At o 6 :the S:t.a..te Le.g.i-6la.tUJte to 
have. an .impact on d!w.g abLL-6 e .in .the. woltkptac.e., U .6hould enc.ouJt.ag e 
educ.a.:tum and c.owv..e.Li..ng ltatJtv .. :tha..r.. .tut.ing and pun.i.6hmen.:t. The 
S:ta.:te o6 Nev.' Je.Mey hM a pltogJtam, :the. Employee Adv.i-6o1ty Se.Jtv.ic.e, 
uiU.ch pltOv.idu c.owl-6 e.Li..r..g a.nd educ.a.U..on :to .6:tate woJtk.ell.6 howe.ve.Jt 
U .i.6 wtdeJt6u.n.ded rutd undell.6:ta.l, 6ed. 

A-2850 would .6paltk w.idupJtea.d dJw.g tu:U..ng aCJtM-6 .the .6:tate wh.ich 
will .6LLbjec.t :thOLL-6anci6 On WOJtk.e.M :to illegal, LLnlteUable. a.n.cf LLtt-
nec.U.6a.Jty .incii..gnU.ie..~. AFSCME .i.6 .6:t-'to119iy oppC'M .. d to emptoyell.6 
Jtely.ing on :tut.i119 and :thc.~te.6cJtc. oppc-6 ed tc A- 28 50. Let' .6 educ.a:te 
a.nd JtehabJ..L<.;ta;te, not pun..i-6h and d.i..6c4J..e...i...ne.. 



407 WEST STATE STREET, TRENTON, N.J. 08618 (609) 695-3481 

JOHN E. TRAFFORD. Executive Director WILLIAM G. DRESSEL, JR., Asst. Executive Director 

Hon. Robert E. Littell 
Assemblyman, District 24 
Chairman, Assembly Labor Committee 
State House Annex 
CN-068 
Trenton, NJ 08625 

Dear Bob: 

August 13, 1986 

Re: Assembly 2850 - On drug testing 
of public officials 

Thank you for your letter of August 11 regarding the posting of A-2850 
before the Assembly Labor Committee on Septenber 4th. 

~e have just received a copy of the printed version of Assembly 2850 and 
we plau tc take it before our Legislative Co~r.ittee for a policy deter-
rr.ination shcrtly. Unfortunately, our Legislative Committee will not be 
meeting until after your September 4th meeting. Please be advised that 
v:e vdll communicate our position to you and to the Legislature as soon 
as our Committee has hac an opportunity to revie¥.' it. 

I am enclosing herewith a copy of a letter we recently received from 
Mayor Richard L. Taylor of Plainfield, whc has expressec some interest 
on the subject. I arr. sending c. copy of your agenda to Mayor Taylor for 
his possible consideration. 

Thank you very much for ad\·ising u!" of this meeting and we look forward 
to discussing this further with you. 

WGD:es 
Enc. 

\'ery ~ly yours, 

-~'{__( 
''--' 

\o:illiam G. Dressel, Jr. 
Assistant Executive Director 



OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

CITY OF PLAINFIELD 
SIS WATCHUNG AVENUE 

PLAINFIELD, NEW JERSEY 07061 
(201) 753-3310 

Mr. William G. Dressel Jr. 
Assistant Executive Director 
NJ State League of Municipalities 
407 West State Street 
Trenton, New Jers~y 08618 

Dear Mr. Dressel: 

August 6, 1986 
RICHARD L. TAYLOR 

The City of Plainfield has stepped to the forefront on the 
issue of mandatory testing of public safety personnel for drug 
abuse. My administration has chosen not to ignore the fact that 
there is a nationwide drug epidemic and that no city, including 
Plainfield, is immune from its devastating effects on the 
public's health, safety and economic well-being. 

In ~ay of this year, I supported and permitted my administra-
tior., in their efforts, to undertake the ma~datory drug testing 
of all Plainfield police and fire personnel, in order to ensure 
the health a~d safety of our City's 46,000 residents. The 
results of this testinh incicatec tha~ four police personnel and 
sixteen firefighterE were cru£ abusers. Except fer one 
individual, who resi2ne~, all of those pclice and fire personnel 
who tested positive were suspended witho~t pay, pending for~al 
discipline.ry hearings. Subsequently, the Fireme:-:'s Hutual 
Benevolent Association (F:.:31.), with s:1pport frorr. the American 
Civi! Liberties Union (A:~~). sue~ the City of Plainfield in the 
United States District Court on the basis that the City did not 
r.ave the right to ad:-:-:ini~ter a manC.atory drug testing program, 
because same was a::. unconstitutional invasion of privacy of the 
police a~d fire personnel. On July 31st, the United States 
District Court Judge, H. Lee Sarokin, supported the contentions 
of the FMBA and ACLU and through a temporary restraining Order, 
held that the suspended police and firemen be reinstated, pending 
an upcoming hearing in his court on September 15. 

While I arr. co;.'lpelled by court Order to reinstate the 
suspended police and fire personnel, I do not agree in any way, 
shape or form with the court's decision and the potentially 
devastating outcome which it will produce for the City of 
Plainfield. The residents of Plainfield will now be forced to 
rely upon some individual police and fire personnel who are drug 
abusers for the delivery of vital public safety services. I find 
such a situation to be unpalatable and reprehensible. No one has 
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the right to violate the law, especially our police officers and 
firefighters who occupy extremely sensitive positions of public 
trust. . Consequently, the City of Plainfield will press forward 
on all fronts, whether it be the judicial system, legislative or 
court of public opinion, in order ensure the health and safety of 
our residents, through the mandatory drug testing of police and 
fire personnel. If the courts are to ultimately rule that this 
type of drug testing is unconstitutional, then what safeguard 
will Plainfield and other cities around this nation have in 
protecting them from the menace at the "public safety" levels? 

I have taken the same drug test that was administered to 
Plainfieldis public safety personnel, in order to show my 
commitment to this issue. I urge all elected and appointed 
public officials to do likewise and show their support for this 
vital issue, not only by their words, but also example! 

We, in Plainfield, are on the frontier of this issue of 
mandatory drug testing for police and fire personnel. I ask for 
your support in helping the City of Plainfield and other munici-
palities combat drug abuse especially within the ranks of their 
public safety personnel through mandatory testing programs. In 
order to do so, we need your help in proposing and passing legis-
lation which would address and support this concept of mandatory 
drug testing. I will be contacting you personally in the near 
future, in order to fur~her discuss this important issue. 

In the interi~, please feel free to contact me by phone or 
writing and let me know what your thoughts are on this issue. I 
look forward to speaking with you soon. 

~~lJJ 
Richard L. Ta 
Mayor 
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THANK YOU FUR THE OPPORTUNITY 'ID TFSI'IFY ON ASSEMBLY BILL 2850. MY 

NN£ IS RICK ENGlER AND I AM DIREC.OR OF OCCUPATIOOAL SAFE'lY AND BEN.D.'6 lQl -~: · 
THE NEW JERSEY lNDllS'l'RIAL UNION CDUNCIL, AFL-CIO. rot\1\Y I REPRESDfl' DIE ~"' · 

OFFICERS OF THE IDC; ARCHER CDI.E, PRESIDENl', AND~ FRIC»D, SEX:Rm'AR!-

TREASURER. THE IOC REPRF.SEm'S OVER 200,000 w:>RRERS IN THE PUBLIC»>> PR1VM.'E 

SEcroRS. 

THE IUC STARI'S FlD1 THE PREMISE THAT DRU; AIDICl'ION AND Aia>mLUil .IRB . 
IllNESSES. TlDSE sm'ERING Ff()M THESE DISEASES NEED TREA1MENl' I K7l' PtmSB-

MENI'. 

IAOOR UNIONS HAVE IDNG PFOIDI'ED PREVENI'ION AND REHABILITATION PKlGRAMS 

IN THE w::>RI<PIACE AND m1MUNITY. UNIONS HAVE SPONSORED INSTITt1l'ES ON AI.(XH)IJ:S.! 

AND DRUG USE, TRAINED UNION VOLUNI'EEF<.. CDUNSEIDRS 'ID OFFER GUIDAN:E .AND 

REFERRALS 'IO TIDSE WlTH DRUG AND AI.CX>IDL-REIATED PFOBLEMS, SUPPORI'ED CXMruNITY 

FACILITIES FUR TREATING ADDICI'ION VICI'IMS, AND ESI'ABLISHED ON THE JOB 

TREATMENI' PROGRAMS. 

WHilE DRUG ABUSE IS INDEED A SERIOUS NATIONAL PFOBLEM, WE ARE DmPLY 

CDNCERNED AB:>UI' THE STEPPED UP EF:roRI'S OF El-iPIDYERS-PtJBLIC AND PRIVATE 

ALIKE--'IO USE DRUG TESTS 'IO SCREEN ALL JOB APPLICANI'S AND ALL EMPIDYEES OR 

'IO FURCE APPLICANI'S AND EMPIDYEES 'IO SUPMIT 'ro SUCH TESTS ON A RANrX>M BASIS. 

THE IUC :tS ABOOLUl'ELY OPPOSED TO SUCH TESTING WHICH ClEARLY VIOlATES Ht1-!AN 

RIGfn'S AND DIGITTY. 

WE FIND IT M)S1' OJRIOUS THAT WHEN WE TRY 'ro NE<Dl'IATE OBJECI'IVE MEDICAL 

TESTING PROGRAMS ro DE"''E»DNE IW MtX:H HARMFUL MERCURY, IEAD, ASBEsros, OR 

Ol'HER CHEMICALS ARE IN OUR OODIES FroM EMPIDYER GENERATED K:>RKPLACE EXPOSURE, 

EMPIDYERS :FREXJUENrLY REFUSE 'ro PFOVIDE St:CH TESTS. YET, EMPIDYERS ARE N:M . 

ENI'HUSIASTICALLY TESrmG WJRKERS FUR DRUGS WHERE THERE IS N::) EVIDENCE OF ON-

THE-JOB IMPAIRMENI'. 
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WE CAN ONLY CDNCUDE Fl0-1 THIS EXPERIENCE THAT THE ClJRRENl' WAVE OF 

EMPIDYER DRtx; TESTING IS ESSENI'IALLY A MEANS 'ro INCREASE ~ ~,', 

OF THE ~RKFORCE AND 'ro RED'OCE UNIOO ABILITY 'ro REPRE:SENI' IT Is 1'i!1ti:kSblP.,. ,.._ 
- -- ~---

WE HAVE THE roLIDWING SPEX:IFIC a:J+1ENrS ON ASSEMlLY BILL 2850: 

1. ] Ft.INDAME:NI'ALLY, WE ARE a:K:ERNED THAT THE BILL SANC!':n::H3 !MPIOmR 

DRUG TESTING THAT IS Em'IRELY INAPPR:>PRIATE. THEREFORE, ~ 7 SBXliD 

BE AMENDED 'ro ADDITIONALLY RE)'JUIRE THAT ID EMPIDYER MAY Ytrm omx; '1l!StiNG 

WITIDur PRIOR AGREEMENI' FR:>M THE CDLI.ECl'IVE BARGAINING REPRESENrATIVE ~ 

THE O'IJERALL AND SPECIFIC NATURE OF THE DRU; TESTING PR:XiRAM. 

THE IOC PROl?OSES THAT IN ORDER FOR EMPIDYERS 'ro 00 DRtx; TFSriHi 

MANAGEMENr AND UIOOR MUST FIRSI' AGREE IN WR.ITmG ON THE BASIS roR TFSJ:'IK;, 

TEsr METIDOOIDGY I PRIVACY m~ I JOB AND :rno:::l1E Pror.ECriONS AND REHABILITATION 

RESl?ONSIBILITIES. 

2. ] THE DEFmiTION OF "REASONABlE SUSPICION" IN SECTION 5 IS FAR 

'I'CX) BROAD • 

IDRK RElATED FATALITIES 1 INJURIES, AND DISEASES HAVE ~ED SHARPLY 

IN RECENr YEARS ACCORDING TO EMPIDYER SUPPLIED G.JVERNMENI' SI'ATISI'ICS. 

UNDER THE BILL's DEFINITION OF REASONABLE suSPICION I "mGHER THAN AVF:RN;E 

.ACCIDENr RATES ON THE JOB" IS A BASIS FOR TESTING. UNDER THIS CRITERIA 

THE ENI'IRE U.S. ~RKFORCE (X)UID BE TESTED AT ANYTIME! 

"SENSORY OR IDroR-SKILL MALFUNcriONS" mum MEAN VIRI'UALLY 

ANYTHING, FR::M DROPPING A PENCIL 'IQ HAVING A (X)ID. DECLINE IN EMPIDYEE 

ProDtCI'IVITY CDUID EASILY RESULT FR::M MANAGEMENr FAILURE 'ro INVFSl' IN 

TESTS SIDUID ONLY BE AI..I!M.ED WHERE THERE ARE "TRUS'IWJRl'HY GRJUNDS 'ro 

BELIEVE THAT THE EMPIDYEE IS UNDER THE JNFLUENCE OF A CDNI'ROLIED DANGER:>US 

SUBSTANCE ON THE JOB." AND AGAIN WE EMPHASIZE THAT TEsriNG SIDUID ONLY 

BE PERMrlTED 'WHERE THERE IS A Mm'UALLY AGREED Ul?ON WRITl'EN DRtx; TESTING 
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PR:>GRAM THAT AT IEAST MEErS STATE MINIMtM STANDARDS. 

~~=F:::=:::=::::-1~ 
• '. c~ ~ • 

AND 'ro ISSUE REGUlATIONS 'ro PROHIBIT arHER MEl'HDS F101 BEING USED. 

SINCE THE PERCE:NrAGES OF FALSE POSITIVES FlQ-1 MANY 'mSTS IS LAR:Z, 'l'BIS 

IS FSSEm'IAL. 

4. ] THE FOI.I.OOING .MINIMt:M EMPIDYEE RIGffl'S SIDUID AlSO BE ESTABLISBED 

BY THIS Sl'ATUI'E: 

A. THE RIGffl' 'ro CDNFIDENI'IALITY OF TEST RESUilrS AND THE RIGffl' '.10 

PRIVACY REG.RDING TESl'S. 

B. THE RIGHI' 'IO ~GE Nri TFSI' RESULTS AND THE RIGm' ro HAVE 

ADDITIONAL TESTS OONE AT EMPIDYER EXPENSE USING A MUI'UALLY AGREED 

UPON INDEPENDENI' !MORATORY. 

C. THE RIGHI' WI' 'IO BE FIRED OR Ol'HERWISE PUNISHED FOR HAVING A 

DISEASE. IF DRUG ADDICI'ION IS A DISEl!SE, ECX>N:>MIC CAPITAL 

PUNISHMENI' SlDUI.D N1.t' BE THE. RESUL'I'. 

D. THE RIGHI' 'IO ENI'ER A TREATMENI' AND REHABILITATION ProGRAM. 

SCIEm'IFIC STUDIES HAVE SlDWN THAT ONE OF THE CAUSES OF St.lBSTANCE 

ABUSE IS IDRK-RELATED STRESSES. THESE STRESSES INCWDE EXCESSIVE l«mm<<IAD 

.AND !DURS OF IDRK, .ROI'ATING SHIFT IDRK, ARBITRARY SUPERVISION, UCK OF 

POSSIBILITY FOR CAREER ADVANCEMENI' I FEAR OF PLAN!' CIDSURE I AND 'WSAF.E 

IDRKING CDNDITIONS. IN OI'HER WJP.DS 1 THE NATURE OF IDRK IN THE UNITED 

STATES '!OOAY IS ONE OF THE MAJOR CAUSES OF SUBSTANCE ABUSE. THIS BEING 

THE . CASE I EMPIDYERS SIDUI.D REDIRECI' THEIR EFFORI'S. INSTEAD OF tSING DRtX; 

TESTS 'IO BLAME THE VICI'IM, MANAGEMENl' S!DUID EJ@MINE tm MOCH OF THEIR "'lN 

~VESTMENl' .POLICIES AND PERSONNEL PRACTICES IN THEIR QUEST FOR ProDt.aiVITY 

AND ProFITS a>N.I'RIBUI'E 'IO DRUG ABUSE • . 



IF EMPlOYERS ARE TRULY cmc:ERNEI> AIDUl' N>RRER BEAI.Il'H, 'l'BEY SBXliD ··::·'t·-
-,. .. · ~ 

-
BtM\NIZE THE \tDRl(PIACE AND K)RKING CXH)ITIONS AND OFFER BEBABILrmr]Qq. 

~ -~~

~ ru: AISO SUPPORl'S IR>Ao :mmaw. Em>Rl'S IN OUR sa~~-'· 
WIVERSITIES '10 AIERl' YOU!'H '10 THE IWm OF D~. liE SUPPORT uti IRICKE-

MEN!' Em>Rl'S '10 CURI'AIL DROO DISTRIBtJl'ION. 

AND WE StiPPORl' NATIONAL PRIORITIES THAT OOUI.O CD FAR 'tafARD .1<I!Dll!11'G ,/ 
.,.'._.:.·: .. 

DRUG ABUSE BY REDIR£0'ING FUNDS FR:J.! FRAIDOIENI' MILITARY OEFJ!NSPS I..IIE 

'S1'AR WARS '10 THE ELIMINATION OF POVERl'Y. 

THE IOC STANDS READY '10 \tDRK wrm THE aMn'I'l'EE 'ro PKDtrE A BILL 

THAT APProPRIATELY JIDDRESSES THIS SERIOUS NATlt>NAL PK>BIEM. THANK .YOU. 

-~ ... ~ ~~:- . . .. ..-(-· 

..: .. -~~. -- : 

· .. :.·-..&.·-·-. 
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lo.'HEREAS I 

_; 

47th IF PTE CONVENTION 

July 28 - August 1,1986 

BAL HARBOUR, FLORIDA 

RESOLUTION No, 23 

OPPOSITION TO MANDATORY DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING 

Drug addiction and alcoholism are illnesses, and those suffering from 

3, these diseases need treatment, not punishment, the problem of substance abuse 

Q, ought to be addressed squarely and cooperatively by employers and unions, and 

5, WHEREAS, 

6, The IFPTE has promoted prevention and rehabilitation programs in the 

7, workplace and the community, and local unions have sponsored institutes on alco-

8, holism and drug use, with trained union volunteer counselors to offer guidance 

9, and referrals to those ~:ith drug anc alcohol-related problems, supported com:nunit:· 

10, facilties for treating victims o: drug and alcohol addiction, and established on-

11, the-job treatment programs, and, 

12, 1-'HEREAS, 

13, In recent years it has become increasingly fashionable for employers 

1~. federal, public, and private-- to use drug tests to screen all job applicants 

15, and all employees, or to force applicants and employees to submit to such tests 

16, on a randcrn basis, and 

17 I lo.'HEREAS I 

18, Many of the tests companies use to screen workers for drugs and alcohol 

19. are very inaccurate, especially the ones the companies use in volume, with there· 

20, sults of tests ~:hich purportedly screen for illegal drugs affected by the use of 

21, such co~~on substances as cough syrup, caffeine, asthma medicine, and other commor 

22, chemicals, and 

WHEREAS, 23. 
2Q. The laboratories which perform drug and alcohol screening tests often 

SUBMITTED BY: POLICY COHHITTEE 

COST: 

Committee 
Assignment ____________________ _ 

Co~~ittee Concur Convention 
Reco~endation ____________________ ~Action ________ __ 

RESOLUTION No, ___ 23 __ 
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have very high false-positive error rates, and as a result, ~orkers or job 

applicants may lose a job either because accurate tests are not available 

or because companies refer to use less accurate, inexpensive tests in mass 

2 8, screening programs, and 

29 , WHEREAS, 

30. Fe~ testing programs include procedures for ~orkers to challenge 

31. inaccurate findings or secure relief from the result of error. The adminis-

32. tration of these tests on a random or across-the-board basis is degrading, and 

33, l.'HEREAS, 

34, Mandatory drug and alcohol testing progrms raise serious legal and 

35. constitutional questions, 

36, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 

37, That the collective bargaining process be the vehicle through ~hich 

38, unions and ern;:>loyers can develop carefully tailored and balanced programs ~hich 

39, stress education and prevention of addiction, and 

40, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: 

41. That individ~al lo:als, through their collective bargaininE process, 

~2~ endeavo~ to: 

43. 
4LL 

45. 
46. 
47. 
48. 
49. 
50. 
51. 
52. 
53. 
54. 
55. 
56. 
57. 
58. 
59. 
60. 

* ?:ace apprc;:>riate limits and conditions for the use of tests 

for alcohol and drugs, including focusing only on ~orkers ~ho 

exhi~it S)~ptorns of job-related impairments; 

* Esta,lish safeguards for those who test p0sitively, including 

guarantees of workers' rights to privacy and confidentiality; 

* Fully inform ~orkers and their respresentatives of the testing 

methodology an employers administers, and; 

* Provide non-punitive, on-the-job responses and helpful treat-

ments for those ~ho are, in fact, unable to perform their jobs 

because of drug addiction or alcoholism, and where contractually 

possible may submit any adverse actions resulting from positive 

tests to binding arbitration. 

BE IT FIN.AJ.L Y RESOLVED: 

That the IFPTE and its affiliates continue to develop constructive solu-

tions to the addiction problem, responsive to the legitimate needs of all parties, 

with no random screening or imposition of punitive programs ~hich ride roughshod 

over the rights and dignity of ~orkers and are unnecessary to secure a safe and 

efficient ~orkforce. RESOLUTIoN No, __ 23_ 
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